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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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We were challenged by the business cycle in 2007. N g be

Housing starts declined 56 percent from the peak in 2006, and we experienced softness
in the office supplies channel, where we enjoy our strongest office furniture position.

In the face of these challenges, we did what we have always done well at HNI: We adapted
to the marketplace and aggressively pursued improvement across the corporation.

We continued to pursue our core strategies, leveraging our unique structure to get
closer to our customers and create value. We strengthened our businesses and
positioned them for long-term growth.

The actions we took resulted in record revenue and operating profit in our
office furniture business and record operating cash flow for the corporation
during 2007. We also improved consolidated gross profit margin during the
year despite the market decline our hearth business faced.

POSITIONING FOR VALUE CREATION AND GROWTH

Every year, in good times and bad, we strive to position ourselves for profitable " L3
growth by focusing on our markets and continuously strengthening and " STANA. ASKREN
streamlining our business. That's what we did in 2007. Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer
We aggressively retooled our hearth business to better align with dramatically
lower market demand, implementing more than $50 million in fixed and non-fixed
cost reductions. As a result, our hearth business continued to manage profitably through
the negative effects of the housing market. Even though its sales were down 23 percent
compared with 2006, the hearth business generated a 7.9 percent operating profit
margin in 2007.
We also sharpened our focus by streamlining our office furniture businesses and
product lines during the year. We continued to increase our cost leverage of HNI's scale
across the corporation, driving toward sharing more services and best practices. As a
result of these and many other actions, our office furniture business’s 2007 operating
profit grew more than four times faster than revenue.
At the same time, we worked to strengthen our market position, getting closer to our
customers to better understand their needs and tailoring our product offerings and selling
models accordingly. The result will be the launch of a record number of new product
solutions in 2008 and continued investment in our brands and selling models.
To enhance the fulfillment process for customers, we're transforming our manufacturing
and transportation network model. We're realigning our manufacturing capacity as part of
that effort, closing some facilities while improving and expanding others to support growth.
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LETTER 7O SHAREHGLDERS

We shut down our Monterrey, Mexico, facility earlier in the year. We announced
plans to close our Richmond, Virginia, plant in the first half of 2008 and consolidate production
into our Cedartown, Georgia, and Muscatine, Iowa, facilities. The Richmond closure alone
will eliminate approximately $10 million in annual costs when fully implemented in 2009.
We also outsourced a large part of our logistics management to a third-party provider,
which will result in a $7 million reduction in annual transportation costs when completed
in mid-2008.

We effectively responded to the business cycle in 2007, but we believe there is room for
more improvement. Rapid Continuous Improvement is at the heart of our culture and touches
everything we do. We're managing better today than we did a year ago; we'll manage even

more effectively a year from now.

HNI"S UNIOUE MODEL AND GROWTH STRATEGY CONTINUE

Our decentralized split-and-focus business model succeeded in a year that presented

an unusually wide range of challenges and opportunities. Because our companies

are independent and focused on unique market segments, each was able to nimbly tailor
its response to its own environment without compromising HNI's high standards of
quality and service.

Our contract-oriented office furniture businesses continued to expand and gain
market share while our supplies-oriented office furniture businesses dealt with softer market
demand. At the same time, our hearth business was able to resize significantly without
compromising its long-term competitive capability.

Each HNI company follows a “Core Plus” strategy, which focuses on growing the
existing businesses (the “Core”) while seeking out and developing new frontiers for growth
(the “Plus”). We grow the core profitably in two ways. First, by continually improving
operations through lean principles. Second, by focusing on end users and letting that guide
new branding, product development, marketing and selling strategies.

“Plus” growth opportunities include adjacent vertical markets like education or health
care; new distribution models, which have been a continued focus for our hearth and
contract-oriented office furniture businesses; and new geographies such as China, where
Lamex delivered strong performance in its first full year as an HNI company.

The Core Plus strategy is intended to renew our businesses continuously, enhancing
their competitiveness and producing growth faster than the industry. While Core Plus did
not fully offset major declines in our industry or in segments where we're especially strong
during 2007, it has enabled us to gain market share over time in both the hearth and office

furniture industries and strengthened our prospects for the longer term.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

GOING FORWARD: MEETING THE CHALLENGE

The business cycle and U.S. economy will continue to present challenges, at least in

the near term. We're planning for the current market weakness to continue through 2008—
conditions in the hearth industry will continue to deteriorate with the general housing
market, and we expect the supplies-driven channel in office furniture to remain soft

into 2009. We're projecting overall office furniture industry growth to soften during the
same period.

With the initiatives we've completed to resize our hearth business, we expect even
a modest recovery in new homebuilding to produce significant increases in profits. In our
hearth business and in all our office furniture businesses, we'll continue to be aggressive
in pursuing opportunities to further streamline operations and generate cash while
investing to drive growth, both organically and through acquisitions.

We remain excited about the long-term prospects of this corperation. Our strong
fundamentals remain unchanged: motivated and engaged members; well-managed, strong
business positions in industries with attractive long-term potential; strong profitability and
solid cash flow generation; and a track record of growing faster than our industries.

HNI members are working hard every day, driving change in our business in ways that
both improve performance now and strengthen our ability to perform even better in the
future. We all share a growing confidence that HNI will come out of this cycle stronger

than ever.
We thank you for your support,

Sincerely,

L O

STAN A. ASKREN
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
HNI Corporation
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HNi AT A GLANCE

Allsteel bEs. %

BIRIESHDE

L
i pETE . AOWD

Py HNI o
—

LAMEX g}

HNI comprises some of the strongest

and best-known brands in the marketplace.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of the Corporation’s histonical resulis of
operations and of 1ts hguidity and capial resources should be read
in conunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Corporation and related notes. Statements that are not fustorical
are forward-looking and invelve nisks and uncertainties, ncluding
those discussed under the caption “Risk Factors™ in ltem 1A of
the Corporation’s annual repost on Form 10-K and efsewhere in
this report

Overview

The Corporation has two reporiable segments: office furniture

and hearth products. The Corporation 1s the second largest office
furmture manufacivrer in the world and the nation’s leading
manufacturer and markeier of gas and wood-burning fireplaces. The
Corporanon utihizes its split and focus, decentrahzed business model
to deliver value to 1Its customers with vanous brands and selling
models. The Corporation 1$ focused on growing 11S exisung businesses
while seeking out and developing new opportuniies for growin.

During 2007, the office furmiture industry expengnced sohd growth
The Corporation experenced sofiness iy the supplies dniven
channel and sold demand 1n 1ts contract businesses in the office
furniure segment. Sales henefied from price increases as well as
acquisiions completed over the past two ygars, The housing market
continued 1o decline sharply, which negatively impacted the
Corporation’s hearih products segment

To support specific company strategies in both segments of its
business. the Corporation completed the acquisiiion of Harman
Stova Company, a povalely held domestic manufacturer of free-
standing stoves and frreplace inserts, as well as two small office
furniture dealer acquisiions. The Corporaiicn made the decision to
shut down one office furmiture faciity and completed the shutdown
of another office furmiure facility which had begun in 2006, The
Corporation alse made the decision 1o sell several small non-core
camponents of its oflice furniture services business.

8 HNI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 2007 ANNUAL REFORT

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

GENERAL

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operauons 1s based upon the Consclidated Financial
Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounuing Principles {"GAAP™). The
preparaucen of these financial statements requires management o
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, labihues, revenue and expenses, and relaied disclosure of
contingent assets and lishiities. Managemeni bases its estimates
on tustoncal expenence and on varnous other assumptions that are
bakeved o be reasonable under the cucumstances, the resulis of
which form the basis for making jJudgmenis about the carrying
values of assets and liabiiues that are not readily apparent from
other sources Semor management has discussed the development,
selection, and disclosure of these estmates wath the Audit
Commitiee of our Board of Direciors. Actual results may differ

from these estimates under different assumptions or conditons.

An accounting pelicy 18 deemed to be coucal it reguires an
accouning estmate io be made based on assumpuons about
matters that are uncertain at the ume the estimate 1s made, and

if different estimates that reasonably could have been used, of
changes in the accounung estimales that are reasonably hkely to
oceur periodically, could matenally impact the financial statements.
Management helieves the following ¢nuical accounting policies
raflect its more significant estimates and assumptions used In the
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Fiscal vear end — The Corporaucn follows & 52/53-week fiscal

year which ends on the Saturday nearest December 31. Fiscal

year 2007 ended on December 29, 2007; fiscal 2006 ended on
December 30, 2006:; and fiscal 2005 ended on December 31, 2005.
The financial statements for hiscal years 2007, 2008, and 2005 are
all on a 52-week basis. A 53-week yaar occurs approximately

avery sixth year.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenue recognition - The Corporation normally recognizes revenue
upon shipment of gocds to customers. In certain circumstances,
the Coarporation does not recognize revenue until the goods are
received by the customer or upon installation of customer
acceptance based on the terms of the sale agreement. Revenue
includes freight charged to customers; related costs are included

in selling and administrative expense. Rebates, discounts, and
other marketing program expanses directly related to the sale

are recorded as a reduction to saies. Marketing program accruals
reguire the use of management estimates and the consideration

of contraciual arrangements subject to interpretation. Customer
sales that achieve or do not achieve certain award levels can affect
the amount of such estimates, and actual results could differ from
these estimates. Future market conditions may require increased
ncentive offerings, possibly resulting in an incremental reduction in
net sales at the time the incentive i1s offered.

Aflowance for doubtful accounts receivable -~ The allowance for
doubtful accounts receivable is based on several factors, including
overall customer credit guality, historical write-off experience, the
length of 1ime a receivable has been outstanding, and specific
account analysis that projects the ultimate callectibility of the
account. As such, these factors may change over time causing
the Corporation to adjust the reserve level accordingly.

When the Corporation determines that a customer is unlikely 1o pay,
a charge is recorded to bad debt expense in the income statement
and the allowance for doubtful accounts is increased. When the
Corporation is reasonably certain the customer cannot pay, the
receivable is written off by removing the accounts receivable amount
and reducing the allowance for doubtful accounts accordingly.

As of December 29, 2007, there was approximately $300 million in
outstanding accounts receivable and $11 million recorded in the
allowance for doubtful accounts to cover potential future customer
non-payments. However, if economic conditions were 10 deteriorate
significantly or ane of the Corporation’s large customers declares
bankruptcy, a larger allowance tor doubtful accounts might be
necessary. The allowance for doubtful accounts was approximately
$13 million at year end 2006 and $12 million at year end 2005.

inventory valuation - The Corporation valued 87% of its inventory
by the last-in, first-out {("LIFO”) method at December 29, 2607.
Additionally, the Corparation evaluates inventory reserves in terms
of excess and obsolete exposure. This evaluaticn includes such
factors as anticipated usage, inventory turnover, inventory levels,
and ultimate product sales value. As such, these factors may
change over time causing the Corporation to adjust the reserve
level accordingly. The Corporation’s reserves for excess and
obsolete inventory were approximately $9 million at year-end 2007
and $8 million at year-end 2006 and 2005,

Long-lived assets - The Corporation reviews long-lived assets for
impairment as events or changes in circumstances occur indicating
that the amount of the asset reflected in the Corporation’s halance
sheet may not be recoverable. The Carparation compares an
estimate of undiscounted cash fiows produced by the asset, or

the appropriate group of assets, to the carrying value to determine
whether impairment exists. The estimates of future cash flows
involve considerable management judgment and are based upon
the Corporation’s assumptions about future cperating performance.
The actual cash flows could difter from management’s estimates
due to changes in business conditions, operating performance, and
economic conditions. Asset impairment charges assgciated with the
Corporation’s restructuring activities are discussed in Restructuring
Relatad and Impairmeant Charges in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Corporation’s continuous focus on improving the manufacturing
process tands to increase the likelihood of assets being replaced;
therefore, the Corporation is reguiarly evaluating the expected
useful ives of its equipment which can resuit in accelerated
depreciation,

Gooawiil and other intangibles - In accordance with the Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS”) No. 142, the
Corporation evaluates its goodwill for impairment on an annual basis
during the fourth quarter or whenever indicaters of impairment
exist. The Corporation has evaluated its goodwill for impairment and
has determined that the fair value of the reporting units included in
continuing operations exceeded their carrying value, so no
impairment of goodwill was reccgnized in continuing operaticns for
the period ending December 29, 2007 Goodwill of approximately
$257 million is shown on the consolidated balance sheet as of the
end of fiscal 2007,

HNI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 2007 ANNUAL REPORT




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management's assumptions about future cash flows for the
reporting units require significant jJudgment and actual cash flows
in the future may ditfer sigmificantly from those forecasted today.

The Corporation also determines the far value of indefinie lived
tradernarks on an annual basis ot whanever indication of impairment
ewists. The Corporation has evaluated its trademarks for impairment
and has determimead ihat the far market value of the trademarks
axceeds carrying value, so no impairment was recognized. The
carrying value of the wrademarks was approximately $43.5 milhon

at the end of fiscal 2007.

The Corporation has definite lived intangibles that are amortized
over ther estimated useful lives. Imparment losses are recognized
if the carrying amount of an intangible, subject to amortization, is
not recoverable from expected future cash flows and its carrying
amount exceeds its fair value. Intangibles, net of amortization, of
approximately $74 milhon are included on the consolidated balance
sheet as of the end of fiscal 2007.

Selt-insured reserves - The Corporation 1s partially self-insured
or carnes high deductibles for general, auto, and product hability;
workers' compensation: and certain employee health benefits.
The general, auto, product, and workers’ compensation Labilities
are managed via a wholly owned Insurance capuve; the relaied
labiltes are included in ihe accompanying financial statements.
The Corporation’s policy 1s 10 accrue amounts i accordance with
the actuanally determined lhabihiues. The actuanal valuauons are
based on histencal information alang with certain assumptions
about future events. Changes n assumptiens tor such matters
as the number of seventy of claims, medical cost inflation, and
magnitude of change in actual expenence development could
cause these estimates 10 change in the near term.

Stock-based compensanon — The Corporaton adopted the provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), "Share-
Based Payment” {"SFAS 123{R}"}, beginming January 1, 2006,
using the modified prospective transiion method. This statement
reguires the Corporation to measure the cost of employee services
in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the gran
date tar value of the award and to recognize cost over the requisite
sarvice period. Thus resulted in a cost of approximately $3.6 million
N 2007 and $3.2 mullion 1in 2006. In 2005 the Corporation accounted
for iis stock gption plan using Accounting Principles Board Opimion
("APB"} No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,”
which resulted in no charge to earmings when options are 1ssued

at tair market value |f the fan value method had been adopted
previously, the Corporation’s net income for 2005 would have been
reducad by approximately $2 mulhon.
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Incame taxes - Deferred income taxes are provided for the tempoiary
differences between the financial reporiing basis and the tax basis
of the Corporation’s assets and liabilites. The Corporation provides
for taxes that may be payable if undistributad earnings of overseas
subsidianes were to be remitted to the United States, except for
those earnings that it considers 1o be permanently reinvested.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting
for Uncertamnty in Income Taxes” ("FIN A8”). FIN 48 clarities the
accounting for uncertanty in Income taxes recognized in an
enterpnse’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 108,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 prescubes a recognition
threshold and measurement atinbute for the financial staternent
recognition and measurement of a tax posiaion taken of expected
o be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on
derecogmition, classification, interest and penzlties, accounting n
imternm penads, disclosure, and transibon. This Interpretation is
etfective for fiscal years beginming after December 15, 2006. The
Corporation adopted the prowision of FIN 48 on December 31, 20086,
the beginning of fiscal 2007. See "Income Taxes” footnote for
additional informaton.

In Sepiember 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 “Far Value
Measurements” which provides enhanced guidance for using farr
value to measure assets and liabilities. The standard also expands
the amount of disclosure regarding the exteni to which companies
measure assets and Lhabilties at far value, the information used 10
measure fair value, and the effect of fan value measurements on
earnings. The standard applies whenever other standards require
{or permit) assets or habilittes 10 be measured at fair value but does
not expand the use of fair valug in any new circumsiances. This
statermnent 15 effecuve for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, and ;tenm penods within
those fiscal years. The Corporation does not anticipate any material
impact te its financial statements from the adoption of this standard.

In February 2007, the FASB 1ssued SFAS No. 159, “The Far Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” {("SFAS 1597},
which permits entities 1o choose to measure many financial
instruments and certain other 1items at fair value that are not
currently required 1o be measured at farr value. The objective of
SFAS 159 is to improve financial reporting by providing entiies with
the opportumty o mitigate veolatiity in reporied earnings caused by
measuring related assets and labilities differently without having to
apply complex hedge accounting provisions. This statement is
effecuve as of the beginming of any fiscal year beginning after
November 15, 2007. The Corporation does not anticipate any
matenial unpact o 1s financial statements from the adaption of this
standard




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSiS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 {Revised),
“Busingss Combinations” ("SFAS No. 141(R)"}, replacing SFAS No.
141, "Business Combinations” ("SFAS No. 1417}, and SFAS No.
160. "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidation Financial Statements
- An Amendment of ARB No. 517 (“SFAS No. 160"). SFAS No.
141(R} retains the fundamental requirements of SFAS No. 141,
broadens its scope by applying the acquisiticn method to all
transactions and other events in which one entity cbtains control
over ong or more other businesses, and requires, ameng other
things, that assets acquired and liabilities assumed be measured at
fair value as of the acquisition date, that liabilities related ©
contingent considerations be recognized at the acquisition date and
remeasured at fair value in each subsequent reporting period, that
acquisition-related costs be expensed as incurred, and that income
be recognized if the fair value of the net assets acquired exceeds
the fair value of the consideration transferred. SFAS No. 160
establishes accounting and reporting standards for noncontrolling
interests {i.e., minority interests) in a subsidiary, including changes
in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary and requires, among
other things, that noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries be
classified as a separate component of equity. Except for the
presentation and disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 160, which
are 1o be applied retrospectively for all periods presented, SFAS No.
141 {R) and SFAS No. 160 are to be applied prospectively in financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2008. The Corporation does not anticipate any material impact to its
financial statements from the adoption of SFAS No. 160.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the percentage of consclidated net
sales represented by certain itemns reflected in the Corporation's
statements of income for the periods indicated.

Figcal 2007 2006 2005
Net Sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of products seld 64.8 65.4 837
Gross profit 35.2 34.5 36.3
Selling and administzative expanses 271.3 26.8 27.3
Restructunng related charges 0.4 a1 0.1
Operating income 1.5 7.7 8.9
Interest income {expense) net 0.7) 10.5} 0.0

Earnings from continuing operations
befare ncome taxes and minonty

Interest 6.9 7.2 8.9
Income taxas 22 2.4 32
Nhinonty nterest in earnings of subsidiary 0.0 0.0 0.0
Income from continuing operations 4.7% 4.8% 57%

NET SALES

Net sales during 2007 were $2.6 billicn, a decrease of 4.1 percent.
compared to net sales of $2.7 billion in 2006. Acquisitions contributed
$46 million or 1.7 percentage points of sales. Higher price realization
of $84 million was offset by softer demand in the supplies driven
channel of the office furniture segment and lower volume in the
hearth praducts segment. Net sales during 2006 were $2.7 billion,
an increase of 10.1 percent, compared 1o net sales of $2.4 billion in
2005. The increase in 2008 was due to $113 million of incremental
sales fram acquisitions, $43 million in price increases implamented
in 2005 and 2006, and solid growth across all brands in the office
furniture segment offset by lower volume in the hearth products
segment.

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit as a percent of nat sales increased 0.6 percentage
points in 2007 as compared 1o 2006 due 1o better price realization
and increased cost control offset partially by lower volume. Gross
profit as a percent of net sales decreased 1.7 percentage points
in 2006 as compared to 2005 due 1o broad-based material price
increases in both segments and lower valume in the hearth
products segment.

SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling and administrative expenses decreased 2.1 percent in 2007
and increased B.1 percent in 2006. The decrease in 2007 was due
to lower volume related expenses and cost containment measures
offset partially by additicnal costs from acquisitions, increased costs
related to brand building, new product and growth initiatives and
higher incentive basad compensation. The increase in 2006 was
due tc additional costs from acquisitions; increased freight and
distribution costs due to volume, rate increases and fuel surcharges;
stock based compensation expense due to the adoption of

SFAS 123(R), and costs to resize the hearth business. These
increases were partially offset by a gain on the sale of a vacated
facility, lower incentive compensation expense, and cost
containment measures.

Selling and administrative expenses include freight expense for
shipments to customers, product deveiopment costs, and
amortization expense of intangible assets. Refer to Selling and
Administrative Expenses in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further information regarding the comparative
expense levels for these major expense items.

HMI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 2007 ANNUAL REPORT 11




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

RESTRUCTURING AND IMPAIRMENT CHARGES

As a result of the Corporation’s ongoing business simphfication
and cost reduction imuauves, management made the decision

in 2007 10 close an office furniture facihity in Richmond, Virginia
and consohdate production into other focations. In connecticn with
ihe shutdown of the Richmond faciity, the Corporation recorded
$4 4 million of pre-tax charges which included $0 .6 million of
accelerated depreciation of machinery and equipment recorded

in ¢cost of sales and $3.8 milhon of severance recorded as
restruciuring costs. The closure and consolidaton will be completed
during the first hall of 2008. The Corporation will incur additional
restructuring charges and iransiticn costs of approximately $9 to
$11 mullion in connection with the closure.

The Corporation made the decision in 2007 to sell several small
non-core components of 11s office furmiture services business and
recorded $2.7 million of impairment charges, included in the
restructuning related and smpairment charges line item on the
siatement of income, 1o reflect the farr market value of the assets
being held for sale

The Corporation’s hearth products segment consolidaied some
of 1ts sarvice and distnibution lgcauons dunng 2007. In connection
with those consalidations, the Corporatan recorded $1.1 million
of severance and facility exit costs, which were recorded as
restructuring costs.

Duning 2007, the Corporation completed the shutdown of an oifice
{furmiture facihty, which began in the fourth quarier of 2006. The
facility was located m Monterray, Mexico, and praduction from this
facility was consoldated into other locatiens. In connecuon with
this shutdown, the Corporation recorded $0.8 mithon of severance
costs in 2006. The Corporatign incurred $2.1 milhien of current
penod charges durnng 2007,

During 2008, the Corporation completed the shutdown of two office
furniture facihiies, which began in the third quarter of 20056, The
faciimes were located in Keni, Washington and Van Nuys, California,
and production from these faciites was consolidated into other
locations. Charges for these closures in 2005 totaled S4.1 million,
which consisted of $0.6 million of accelerated depreciation of
machinery and eguipment recorded as cost of sales, $1.2 million

of severance, $0.4 milhon of pension-related expenses, and 51.9
million of factory exit, production relocation, and other costs which
were recorded as restructunng costs. In connection wath those
shuidowns, the Corporaton incurred $2 0 million of current penod
charges during 2006.
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DPERATING INCOME

Operaung income was $194 milhon in 2007, a decrease of

6.2 percent compared to $206 million 1in 2006. The decrease in
2007 1s due to lower volume in the hearth products segment,
mereased costs refated to brand bulding, new product and growth
imitiatives, higher incentive-based compensation and restruciunng
charges offsei parually by improved pnice realizavon and cost
containment measures. Operaung income was $206 millien in
2006, a decrease of 4.8 percent compared 10 $217 million in 2005,
The decrease 1n 2006 1s due o lower volume in the hearth products
segment, broad-based matenal cost increases, increased freight
costs, and stock compensation expense dug to the adoption of
SFAS 123(R) offset by higher volume and price increases In the
ofhice furniture segment.

INCOME FROM CONTINUING CPERATIONS

Income from continuing operations in 2007, which excludes the
Corporation’s discontinued business {see Discontinued Operations
in the Notes 1o Consohdated Financial Statements), was 5120 million
compared with $130 million in 2008, a 7.6 percent decrease. income
from contnuing operations was negatively impacted by increased
interest expense of $4 million on moderatie debt levels, consistent
with the Corporation’s straiegy of maintaining a more efficient
capial struciure. Income from continuing cperations in 2006 was
$130 milion compared with $138 mulhon in 2005, & 6.1 percent
decrease Income from continuing operations was negatively
impacted by increased interest expense of approximaiely $12 million
on moderate debt levels. The Corporation completed a detalled
analysis of all deferred tax accounis in 2006, and determined that
net deferred income tax habihties were cverstated. The
overstatement prmarily related 10 a deferred iax liability associated
with property, plant and equipment, parually offset by an overstated
deferred tax asset associated with inventery. In analyzing the
difference, the Corporation determined that the items cnginaied
primarily in fiscal years pnor 1o 2002. To correct this difference, the
Corporation reduced income iax expense in the fourth quarter of
2006 by $4.1 milhon. The effect of this adjustment was to reduce
the effective income tax rate related 1o continuing operations by

2.1 percentage points for the year and increase earnings per share
from continuing operatens by $0.08. Income from cantinuing
operatons per diluted share decreased by 0.8 perceni to $2.55 in
2007 and increased by 2.4 percent o $2.57 10 2006 including a
positive tax adjustment of $0 08 per share.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During December 2008, the Corporation committed to a plan to
sell a small non-core component of its office furniture segment.
The Corporation reduced the assets to the fair market value and
classified them as beld for sale. The sale was completed during the
second quarter of 2007. Revenues and expenses associated with
this component are presented as discontinued operations for all
periods presented. This operation was formerly reported within the
Office Furniture segment. Refer to Discontinued Operations in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

NET INCOME

Net income decreased 2.4 percent 10 $120 million in 2007
compared to0 $123 million in 2006 which was a decrease of

10.2 percent compared 10 2005. Net income per diluted share
increased by 4.9 percent to $2.57 in 2007 and decreased

2.0 percent to $2.45 in 2006. Net income per diluted share was
positively impacted $0.18 ger share in 2007 and $C.21 per share
in 2006 by the Corporation’s share repurchase program.

OFFICE FURNITURE

Office furniture comprised 82 percent, 78 percent, and 76 percent
of consolidated net sales for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.
Net sales for otfice furniture increased 2 percent in 2007 to

$2 11 billion compared to $2.08 billion in 2008. The increase in
2007 was due to approximately $37 milion from the Corporation’s
acquisitions. Organic sales ware virtually flat, including increased
price realization of $78 million, due to softness in the supplies driven
channel of the business. Net sales for office furniture increased

13 percent in 20086 1o $2.1 billion compared to $1.8 billion in 2006.
The increase in 2006 was due to approximately $95 million from
the Corporation’s acquisitions and organic growth of approximately
$144 million or 7.8 percent, including increased price realization of
%41 million. The Business and Institutional Furniture Manufacturer’s
Assocciation ("BIFMA”} reported 2007 shipments up 6 percent and
2006 shipments up 7 percent.

Operating profit as a percent of net sales was 9.2 percent in 2007,
8.8 percent in 2006, and 9.7 percent in 2005 The increase in
operating margins in 2007 was due to better price realization and
benefits of cost reduction initiatives partially cffset by increased
costs related to brand building, new product and growth initiatives,
higher incentive based compensation and higher restructuring
costs. The decrease in operating margins in 2006 was due to
higher material, transportation and other input costs offset partially
by price realization, lower restructuring charges, and a gain on the
sate of a vacant facility. Acquisitions also negatively impacted
profitability as anticipated.

HEARTH PRODUCTS

Hearth products sales decreased 23 percent in 2007 to $462 million
compared to $803 million in 2008. New acquisitions contributed

$9 million of sales. The decrease in organic sales was a result of a
severe and rapid two year decline in new home construction that
created one of the worst housing markets on record. Hearth products
sales increased 1 percent in 2006 te $603 million compared tc
$595 million in 2005 due to the contribution from new acguisnions
of $18 million. The decrease in organic sales was due 1o a dramatic
decline, which began in the second half of 2006 as a result of the
decline in the housing market.

Operating profit as a percent of sales in 2007 was 7.9 percent
compared to 8.7 percent in 2006, and 12.6 percent in 2005,
respectively. The decrease in operating margins in 2007 was due
to lower averall volume offset partially by cost reducticn initiatives.
The decrease in oparating margins in 2006 was due to lower overall
volume, highar mix of lower margin remodel/retrofit business and
increased material and transportation costs.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

During 2007, cash flow from operations was $291.2 million driven
by broad-based improvements in working capital. Cash flow from
operations along with available cash and short-term investments
and funds from stock option exercises under employee stock plans,
provided the funds necessary to meet working capital needs, pay
for strategic acguisitions, invest in capital improvements, repurchase
common stock, and pay increased dividends.

Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments totaled

$43.8 million at the end of 2007 compared to $37.3 million at the
end of 2006 and $84.7 million at the end of 2005. These funds,
coupled with cash from future operations and additicnal debt,

if needed, are expected 1o be adequate to finance operations,
planned improvements, and internal growth. The Corporation is not
presently aware of any known trends or dermands, commitments,
events, or uncertainties that are reasonably likely tc result in its
liquidity increasing or decreasing in any material way.

The Corperation places special emphasis on the management and
control of its working capital with a particular focus on trade
receivables and inventory levels. The success achieved in managing
receivables is in large part a result of doing business with quality
customers and maintaining close cormmunication with them. The
Corpaeration’s inventory turns werg 18, 18, and 18, for 2007, 2006,
and 2005, respectively The Corporation is increasing its foreign-
sourced raw materials and finished goods, which while reducing
inventory turns doas have a favorable impact on the overall total cost
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INVESTMENTS

Management classifies invesiments in markeiable secunties at the
time of purchase and reevaluates such classification at each balance
sheet date. Equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and
are stated at current market value with unrealized gains and losses
included as a separate component of equity, net of any related tax
effect Debt securities are classified as held-to-maturity and are
stated at amortized cost. In 2005, the Corporation wivested in an
mvestment fund, which was excluded from the scope of Staterment
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115 “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” {"SFAS No. 1157,
however, the Corporation’s ownership in this investment fund is
such that the underlying investments are recorded at far market
value. A table of holdings as of year-end 2007, 2006, and 2005 is
ncluded in the Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investmenis note
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE INVESTMENTS

Capital expenditures were $58.6 mullicn i 2007, $58.8 mullion
In 2006, and $38.9 million in 2005. These expenditures have
consistently focused on machinery and equipment and tooling
required 10 support new products, continuous IMprovements
in our manufacturing processes, and cost savings initiatives.
The Corporation anticipaies capiial expenditures for 2008 1o be
570 to $75 mulhon due 1o increased focus on new products and
operational process improvemant.

ACQUISITIONS

During 2007, the Corporation completed the acquisiton of Harman
Stove Company, a privaiely held domestic manutacturer of free-
standing stoves and fireplace inseris and two small oifice furniture
dealers for a total combined purchase pnce of approximately

g41 milion. Durnng 20086, the Corperation completed the acquisition
of Lamex, a privately held Chinese manufacturer and marketer of
office furniture, as well as a small office furniture services company,
a small office furniture dealer and a small manufacturer of fireplace
facings for a total combined purchase price of appraximately

$78 million. During 2005, the Corporation completed the acguisition
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of four small office furniture services compames, three office
furmiture dealers and three small hearth distnibutors for a total
combined purchase price of approximately $35 muillion. Each of the
transactions was paid 1n cash and the results of the acquired entities
have been included in the Consolidated Financial Statements since
the date of acguisiton.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt, including capital lease obligations, was 38% of total
capitalization as of December 29, 2007, 37% as of December 30,
20086, and 15% as of December 31, 2005. The increase in long-term
debt dunng 2008 and 2005 was due to the Coiporation issuing
$150 mithon of semior unsecured notes through the private
placement debt market and utihizing 1ts revolving credit {acility 10
fund acquisitions and share repurchases in accordance with its
strategy of operaung with a more efficient capital structure. On
January 28, 2005, the Carporation replaced a $136 million revolving
credit facility entered into on May 10, 2002 with a new revolving
credit facility that provided for a maximum borrowing of $150 million
subject to increase {to @ maximum amount of $300 millhon) or
reduction from time 1o tme according 1o the terms of the agreement.
On December 22, 2005, the Corporation increased the facility 10
the maximum amotnt of $300 million. On April 6, 2008, the
Corporation refinanced $15C million of borrowings outstanding
under its revolving credit facility with 5.54 percent ten-year
unsecured Senior Notes due in 2016 1ssued ihrough the privale
placement debt market. Additional borrowing capacity of

$172 militon, less amounts used for designated lettars of credit,

is available through this revolving bank credit agreement in the
event cash generated from operations should be inadequate to
meet future neads The Corporation does not expect future capital
resources to be a constraint on planned growth. Certain of the
Corporation's credit agreements include covenants that mit

the assumption of additonal debt and lease obligations. The
Corporation has been, and currently 1s, in complance with the
covenants related 10 the debt agreements.




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
The following table discloses the Carporation’s obligations and
commitments to make future payments under contracts:

Payrments Due by Penod

Mare Than
3-5Years 5 Years

Less Than

tin thousands) Toial 1 Year 1-3 Years

Leng-term debt
obligations, inchuding
estimated interast!!

Camtal lease

£385,507 § 29,673 $30,777 $145321 $179736

obhgations 1,409 552 689 168 -
Operating lease

obligations 145,412 35,858 57,728 33,019 18,807
Purchase obligations 2 77,911 77.911 - - -
Cther long-term

obligations 3 34,225 2,426 4,558 1,111 26,130
Totat $644 464 $145420 $93,752 $179619 $224673

{14 interest has haen mohuded for a3l debr at enner the hved rate or vanable raie in effect 45 of
December 29. 2007, as applicable

(2] Purchase obliganans include agreemen!s o purchase goods or services that are enfarceable,
legatly binging. and spaciy alf significant terms, including the quantty 10 be purchased. the
price o be pad, and the nming of the purchase

{3) Orher long-1erm Lahihities represent payments due to members who are participants in the
Corporation’s salary defesral and long-termy incentive COMPENSalion programs, mandaigry
purchases of e fémaining ungwned wierest 1 fou! acousiions, kabity for unrecogrized tax
habifires 1 accontance with FIN 18, and coninbuson and benetil payments expected 1 be
made far our past-etrement benelt plans. It should be noled that the obhigations related 1o
post-reurement benefi plans are nat contractual and the plans could be amended ar the
ahscrenon of the Corporaton The disclosurs of contibutions and banefit payments has been
hted to 10 vears. as informanion bayand this ume nenod was not avalabie

CASH DIVIDENDS

Cash dividends were $0.78 per commeon share for 2007, $0.72

for 2008, and $0.62 for 2005. Further, the Board of Directors
announced a 10.3 percent increase in the quarterly dividend from
$0.195 to $0.215 per common share effective with the February 29,
2008, dividend payment far shareholders of record at the close of
business February 22, 2008. The previous quarterly dividend increase
was from $0.18 to $0.195, effective with the March 1, 2007 dividend
payvment for shareholders of record at the close of business on
February 23, 2007. A cash dividend has been paid every quarter
since April 15, 1955, and quarterly dividends are expected to
continue. The average dividend payout percentage for the most
recent three-year period has been 29 percent of prior year earnings.

COMMON SHARE REPURCHASES

During 2007, the Corporation repurchased 3,581,707 shares

of its common stock at a cost of approsimately $147.7 million,

or an average price of $41.23. The Board of Directors authorized
$200 million on November 11, 2005, an additional $200 miliion on
August 8. 2006, and an additional $200 million on Novemnber 9,
2007, for repurchases of the Corporation’s common stock.

As of Decernber 29, 2007, approximately $192.2 million of this
authorized amount remained unspent. During 2006, the Corporation
repurchased 4,336,987 shares of its common stock at a cost of
approximately $203.6 million, or an average price of $46.96. During
2005, the Corporation repurchased 4,059,068 sharaes of its common
stock at a cost of approximately $202.2 million, or an average price
of $49.82.

LITIGATION AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Corporation is involved in various kinds of disputes and legai
proceedings that have arisen in the course of its businaess, including
pending litigation, environmental remediation, taxes, and other
claims. It is the Corporation’s opinion, after consultation with legal
counsel, that additional liabitities, if any, resulting from these
matters are not expectad to have a material adverse effect on the
Corporation’s financial condition, although such matters could have
a material effect on the Corperation’s guarterly or annual operating
results and cash flows when resolved in a future period.

l.ooking Ahead

Management believes that macreeconomic indicators point o
continued slowing in the office furniture business during 2008.
The Corporation expects to increase its investment in growth
opportunities and position for the market recovery by enhancing
its selling capabilities and launching a significant number of new
products. The Corporation will work to offset the market softness
and increased investment by eliminating waste, attacking
structural cost and streamlining its businesses.

The housing market is expected to decline during 2008 and continue
1o significantly pressure both revenue and profit in the Corporation’s
hearth products segment. The Corporation intends to continue to
profitably manage through these conditions by streamlining its
operations; however, it will continue to position the business for
long-term growth once conditions stabilize.

The Corporation anticipates that its iax rate on average will be

35.5 percent in 2008 due to the expiration of the research tax credit.
In the event this credit is renewed in its most recent form, it would
lowaer the effective rate approximately 0.8 percentage poinits.

The Corporation remains focused on creating long-term shargholder
value by growing its business through investment in building
brands, product sclutions and selling mode!s, enhancing its strong
member-cwner culture and remaining focused on its long-standing
rapid continuous imgrovement programs 1o build best totai cost

and a lean enterprise.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

rAmounts 1 thousands, excep! for per share dalal For the Years 2007 2008 2005
Net sales §2,570,472 $2,679,803 $2,433.318
Cost of producis sokd 1,664,697 1,752,882 1,549,475
Gross profit 905,775 926,921 883.841
Selhng and adnunistrative expenses 702,329 717.676 663.667
Restruciunng related and impairment charges 9,788 2,829 3,462
Qperating mcome 193,658 206,416 216,712
Interest income 1,229 1,139 1,518
Interest expense 18,161 14,323 2,355
Earmings from continuing operations before income iaxes and minonty interest 176,726 193,232 215875
Income taxes 57,141 653,670 77,715
Earnings from continuing operations before muncrity inierest 119,585 129,662 138,160
Mmoniy interest in earnings of subsidiary (279) (1100 1)}
income from contnuing operatons 119,864 129,672 138,166
Discontinued operauons, less applicable ncome taxes 514 16,297) (746)
Net income $ 120,378 $ 123,375 $ 137420
MNep income from continuing operations — basic S 2,57 5 259 S 2.53
Net income from disconunued operations - basic 0.01 {013 (0.02)
Net income per common share — basic S 2.58 S 248 S 25i
Weighted average shares outstanding - basic 46,684,774 50,059,443 54,649,159
Net income from connnuing operations - diluted S 2.55 S 2.57 ) 2.51
et income from discontinued operations — diluted 0.02 012} 0on
Net income per common share - diuted $ 2.57 S 2.45 5 2.50
Weighted average shares outstanding - diluted 46,925,161 50,374,758 55,033,741

The accompamang notes are an nteqal part of the consohoaied financial siatements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{Amounts in thousands of dollars and shares except par value) As of Year-End 2007 2006 2005
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents § 33,881 $ 28077 $ 75,707
Short-term investments 9,900 9,174 9,035
Receivables net 288,777 316,568 278,515
Inventories 108,541 105,765 91,110
Deferred mmcome taxes 17,828 15,440 15,831
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 30,145 29,150 16,400
Total Current Assels 489,072 504,174 486,598
Property, Plant, and Equipment 305,431 309,952 294,660
Goodwill 256,834 251,761 242,244
Other Assets 155,639 160,472 116,769
Total Assels $1,206,976 $1.226,359 $1,140,271
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 367,320 $ 328,882 $ 308,222
Note payable and current maturities of long-term debt and
capital lease obligations 14,715 26,135 40,350
Current maturities of other long-term obligations 2,426 3,625 8,602
Total Current Liabilities 384,461 368,542 358,174
tong-Term Debt 280,315 285,300 103,050
Capital Lease Obligations 776 674 819
Other Long-Term Liabilities 55,843 56,103 48,871
Deforred Income Taxes 26,672 29,321 35,473
Minority Interest in Subsidiaries 1 500 140
Commitments and Contingencies
Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred stock — $1 par value - - -
Authorized: 2,000
Issued: None
Common stock — $1 par value 44,835 47,908 51,849
Authorized: 200,000
Issued and outstanding: 2007 - 44,835; 2006 - 47,906, 2005- 51,848
Additional paid-in capital 3,152 2,807 941
Retained earnings 410,075 448,768 540,822
Accumulated other comprehensive ({loss) income 846 (3,062} 332
Total Shareholders’ Equity 458,908 495519 593,944
Totaf Liabilities and Sharehoiders’ Equity $1,206,976 $1,226,359 $£1,140,271

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financal statemeants.
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CONSOLICATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Accurmulated

Other Totat
Addvional Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
{Amounts n thousandsl Common Stock Pawi-in Capizal Earmings Loss) Income Equity
Balance, January 1, 2005 %£55,303 $ 6,879 $ 606,632 $ 349 % 669,183
Comprehensive income:
Net incorme 137,420 137,420
Other comprehensive loss (7 7]
Comprehensive mcome 137,403
Cash dwidends (33,841) (33,841)
Commaon shares — treasury:
Shares purchased {4,059) {(28,789) {169.389) (202.217)
Sharesissued under Members’ Stock Purchase Plan
and stock awards 605 22,831 23,436
Balance, December 31, 2005 51,849 941 540,822 332 593,944
Comprehensive income:
Net income 123,375 123,375
Other comprehensive mcome 1,168 1.168
Comprehensive income 124 543
Adopuion of FAS 158 impact (4,562} {4,562}
Cash dividends {36,028} (36,028)
Common shares — treasury:
Shares purchased {4,337} 119,408} (179.901) (203.540)
Shares 1ssued under Member's Stock Purchase Plan
and stock awards 394 21,274 21,668
Balance, December 30, 2006 47,906 2,807 448,268 {3,062} 495,919
Comprehensive income:
Net income 120,378 120,378
Other comprehensive income 3,908 3,908
Comprehensive incame 124,286
Adoption of FIN 48 impact {509} {509}
Cash dividends (36,408) (36,408)
Comimon shares — treasury:
Shares purchased (3,682) (22,439) (121,654) (147,675)
Shares 1ssued under Member's Stock Purchase Plan
and stock awards 511 22,784 23,295
Balance, December 29, 2007 $44,835 $ 3,152 $410,075 S B46 $ 458,908

The accompamang notes are an mtegral part of the consolidated financial statemernts
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

tAmounts in thousands) For the Years 2007 2006 2005
Net Cash Flows From {To) Operating Activities:
Net income $120,378 $ 123,375 $ 137,420
Noncash items included in net income:
Depreciation and amortization 68,173 69,503 685,514
Other postretirement and post-employment benefits 2,132 2,109 2,002
Stock-based compensation 3,603 3,219 -
Excess tax benefits from stock compensation (808) (865)
Deferred income taxes {4,935) (3,712) (8,933)
Net loss on sales, retiremenis and impairments of long-lived
assets and intangibles 1,662 4,639 1,529
Stock issued to retirement plan 6,611 7,948 6,199
Other - net (1,162) 1,733 1,164
Changes in working capital, excluding acquisition and disposition:
Receivables 39,941 {24,059} (25,654)
Inventories 20,380 (7,123 (10,488)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,264 9,541 {4,207)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 30,944 (2,794) 36,809
Income taxes 1,169 (2,088) 15,534
Increase {decrease) in other liabilities 835 {2,742} 5,188
Net cash flows from (to} operating activities 291,187 158,602 201,009
Net Cash Flows From (To} Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures (b8,568) {68,921 (38,912}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 12,145 5,952 317
Capitalized software {346) (1,003 (2,890}
Acquisition spending, net of cash acquired (41,696} (78,569) (33,804)
Short-term investments — net - 925 2,400
Purchase of lgng-term investments {24,427} (13,600} (34,495)
Sales or maturities of long-term investments 20,576 8,250 32,505
Other — net 294 - {68)
Net cash flows from fto) investing activities {92,022} (136,965) {74,947)
Net Cash Flows From (Te) Financing Activities:
Purchase of HNI Corporation common stock {147,679) (203,646) {202,217)
Proceeds from long-term debt 289,503 515,167 199,000
Payments of note and long-term debt and other financing (309,297) (352,401 (57,970}
Proceeds from sale of HNI Corporation common stock 9,708 5,786 14,987
Excess tax benefits from stock compensation 808 865 -
Dividends paid (36,408) {36,028} (33,841}
Net cash flows from (to} financing activities (193,361} (70,267} (80,031}
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,804 (47,630 46,031
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 28,077 75,707 29,676
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 33,881 $ 28,077 $ 75,707
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 18,213 $ 12,002 $ 1961
fncome taxes $ 57,128 $ 75,266 $ 88,133

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nature of Operations

HNI Corporation with 1ts subsidianies (the "Corporation”™), 15 a
nrowvider of office furniture and hearth products. Boih industries are
reportable segments; however, the Corporation’s office furniiure
business 15 1ts principal hne of business. Refer to Operating
Segment Information for turther information. Office furniture
products are sold through a national sysiem of dealers, wholesalers,
retall superstores, and to end-user customers, and federal and state
governments. Dealer, wholesaler, and retail superstores are the
major channels based on sales. Hearth products include a full array
of gas, electric, and wood-burning fireplaces, nserts, stoves,
facings. and accesscnes. These products are sold through a
national system of dealers and distributers, as well as Corporation-
owned distnbution and retall outlets. The Corporation’s products
are marketed predonunantly in the United States and Canada. The
Corporation exports select products to a hmited number of markets
outside North America, principally Laun America and the Caribbean,
through 1ts export subsidiary and manufactures and markets office
furniture in Asia; however, based on sales, these activities are

not significant,

Summary ol Significant Accounting Policies

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND FISCAL YEAR-END

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts and
iransactions of the Corporation and 1ts subsidharies. Intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Corporation follows a 52/53 week fiscal year which ends on
the Saturday nearest December 31. Fiscal year 2007 ended on
December 29, 2007; 2006 ended on December 30, 2006; and
2005 endad on December 31, 2005. The financal statements for
fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005 are on a 52-week basis. A fitiy-
thiea week year cceurs appraximately every sixth year.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents generally consist of cash, money market
accounts, and debt secunues. These securities have original maturity
dates not exceeding threg months from date of purchase. The
Corporanon has short-term investments with matunties of less than
one year and also has investrments with maturities greater than ong
vear that are included in Other Assets on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet Management classifies investments in marketable securities
at the ume of purchase and reevaluates such classification at each
halance sheet date. Equity secunities are classified as availlable-for-
sale and are stated ai current market value with unrealized gains
and losses included as a separate component of equity. net of any
related tax effect. Debt secunties are classified as held-to-matunty
and are staied ai amoruzed cost. The speciiic identfication method
1s used to determune realized gains and losses on the trade date.
The Corporation has invested in an mvestment fund that is excluded
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from the scope of SFAS No. 115, "Accountng for Certain
Investments in Debt and Egquiiy Secunities”; however, the
Corporation’s ownership in this imvestment fund is such that the
underlying investments are recorded at farr marcket value.

At December 29, 2007, December 30, 2006, and December 31,
2005, cash, cash equivalents, and investments consisted of the
following (cost approximates market valuel:

Yaar-End 2007

Carsn and Cash Shorttenn Long-tarm
fir thovsanas) Eqawaems Inyesiments Invesimens
Availabla for sale secunmes
Debt and equity secunies S - $ - $ 4,996
Invesiment in master fund - 9,900 25,705
Cash and money market accounts 33,881 - -
fotaf $33.881 9,900 530,701
Year-End 2006

Cash ann Chsh Shon-perm Long term
in thousangs) Equivalanls InvestImen:s Inyestments
Held-io-maturtiy securtties
Ceruficates of deposit S - ) - $ 400
Investrment i mastar fund - 9174 25,589
Cash and money rmarket accounis 28,077 - -
Total $28.077 34,174 $25,989
Year-End 2005

Cash ard Cash Shart-ierm Longierm
fler thousanos) Eequwa’ants Invesinens I imients
Held-to-maturity secunties
Ceruficates of deposit 5 - s - $ 400
Investment in master fund - 9.035 19,086
Cash and money martet accoumnis 75,707 - -
Total $75.707 29,035 $19.485

RECEIVABLES

Accounis receivable are presented net of an allowance for doubiful
accounts of $11.5 million, $12.8 million, and $12.0 million, for 2007,
20086, and 2005, respecuvely. The aliowance 1s developed based on
several factors including overall cusiomer credit guality, historical
write-off expenence, and specific account analyses that project the
ultimate coliecubility of the account. As such, these {actors may
change over ime causing the reserve level 1o adjust accordingly.

INVENTGRIES

The Corporation valued 87%, 86%, and 89% of its mventory

by the last-in, first-cut {"LIFO™") method at December 29, 2007,
December 30, 2008, and December 31, 2005, respectively.
Addiuonally, the Corporation evaluates 11 INventory reserves In
terms of excess and obsolete exposuras. This evaluation includes
such factors as anticipated usage, iInventory turnover, inventary
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levels, and ultimate product sales value As such, these {actors may
change over time causing the reserve level 1o adjust accordingly.
The reserves for excess and obsolete inventory were $9.1 million,
$7.7 million, and $8.2 million, at year-end 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation has
been computed using the straight-line method over estimated useful
lives: land improvements, 10-20 years, buildings, 10-40 vears; and
machinery and equipment, 3-12 years.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment as events or changes
in circumstances occur indicating that the amount of the asset
reflected in the Corporation’s balance sheet may not be recoverable.
An estimate of undiscounted cash flows produced by the asset, or
the appropriate group of assets, is compared to the carrying value to
determine whether impairment exists. The estimates of future cash
flows involve considerable management judgment and are based
upon assumptions abouwt expected future operating performance.
The actual cash flows could differ from management’s estimates
due to changes in business conditions, operating perfcrmance,

and economic conditions. Asset impairment charges recorded in
connection with the Corporation’s restructuring activitiss are
discussed in Restructuring Related Charges. Thase assets included
real estate, manufacturing equipment, and certain other fixed assets.
The Corporation's continuous focus on improving the manutacturing
process tends to increase the likelihood of assets being replaced,;
tharefore, the Corporation is regularly evaluating the expected lives
of its equipment and accelerating depreciation where approgpriate.

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets” ("SFAS 142”), the Corporation evaluates its goodwill for
impairment an an annual basis based on values at the end of third
guarter or whenever indicators of impairment exist. The Corporation
has evaluated its goodwitl for impairment and has determined that
the fair valug of reporting units in cantinuing cperations exceeds
their carrying value so no impairment of goodwill was recognized
in continuing operations. Management's assumptions about future
cash flows for the reporting units requires significant judgment, and
actual cash flows in the future may differ significantly from those
forecasted today. The goodwill associated with the reporting unit
held for sale was impaired in 2006 and were included as part of the
loss from discontinued operations.

The Corporation alse determines the fair vaiue of indefinite lived
trademarks on an annual basis or whenever indications of
impairment exist. The Corporation has evaluated its trademarks for
impairment and recognized an impairment charge of $1.0 million in
2006 related 1o two trademarks where the carrying value exceeded
the fair market value. These trademarks were associated with the
reporting unit classified as held for sale and were included as part
of the loss from discontinued cperations.

The Corporation has definite lived intangibles that are amortized
over their estimated useful lives. Impairment losses are recognized
it the carrying amount of an intangible, subject to amortization, is
not recoverable from expected future cash flows and its carrying
amount exceeds its fair value. Intangibles, net of amortization, of
approximately $74 miltion are included on the consclidated balance
sheet as of the end of fiscal 2007

PRODUCT WARRANTLEES

The Corporation issues certain warranty policies on its furniture
and hearth products that provides for repair or replacement of any
covered product or component that fails during normal use because
of a defect in design, materials, or workmanship. A warranty reserve
is determined by recording a specific reserve for known warranty
issues and an additional reserve for unknown claims that are
expected to be incurred based on historical claims experience.
Actual claims incurred could differ from the original estimates,
requiring adjustments to the reserve. Activity associated with
warranty obligations was as follows:

fin thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Balance at the beginning of the peripd $ 10,624 $ 10,157 $ 10,794
Accrual assumed from acguisition 703 125 -
Accruals for warranties issued

during the period 14,831 12,273 9,809

Accrual related to pre-existing
warranties 600 810 1,449
Settlements made during the period (14,635} {12,741) {(11,895)

Balance at the end of the period 512,123 $ 10,624 $ 10,157

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is normally recognized upen shipment of goods to
customers. In certain circumstances, revenue is not recognized
until the goods are received by the customer or upen installation
and customer acceptance based on the terms of the sales
agreement. Revenue includes freight charged to customers; the
related costs are recorded in selling and administrative expense.
Rebates, discounts, and other marketing program expenses that
are directly related 1o the ssle are recorded as a reduction to net
sales. Marketing program accruzls require the use of management
estimates and the consideration of contractual arrangements that
are subject to interpretation. Customer sales that achieve or do
not achieve ¢certain award levels can affect the amaount of such
estimates and aciual results could differ from these estimates.

PROOUCT DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Product development costs relating to the development of new
products and processes, including significant improvements
and refinements to existing products, are expensed as incurred.
These costs include salaries, contractor fees, building costs,
utilities, and administrative fees. The amounts charged against
income were $24.0 millicn in 2007, $27.6 million in 2008, and
$27.3 million in 2005,
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STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Corporation adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounung Standards No. 123(R}, "Share-Based Payment”
("SEAS 123(R)"). beginning January i, 2006, using the modiiied
prospective transition method. This statement requires the
Corporation to measure the cost of employee services in exchange
for an award oi equity instruments based on the grant-date fair
value of the award and 10 recognize cost over the requisite service
perod. Under the modified prospective transition method, financial
statements for penods prior 10 the date of adoption are not adjusted
for the change 1 accouniing. See “Stock-Based Compensation”
footnote tor further mformation.

INCOME TAXES

The Corpeoration accounts for income taxes under SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes,” and 1n accordance with Interpretation
No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes™ ("FIN 48").
This Statement uses an asset and hability approach that reguires the
recagniion of deferred tax assets and habiliues for the expected
future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the
Corporation’s tinancial statements or tax returns. Deferred income
taxes are provided to reflect the differences between the tax bases
of assets and hatilimes and ther reported amounts in the financial
staterments. The Corperation provides for taxes that may be payable
if undistributed earnings of overseas subsidianes were 1o be remitted
to the United States, except for those earnings that it considers to

be permanently remvested. There were approximately $7.7 million

of accumulated earnings considered to be permanently renvested

as of December 29, 2007.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are based on the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding durning the year. Shares
potentially issuable under options and deferred restricted stock
have been considered outstanding for purposes of the diluied
earmings per share calculation.

The following table reconciles the numerators and denominators
used in the calculation of basic and diluted earrungs per share (EPS):

00 thousInils 2aceni o shaie dang! 2007 2006 2006

Numerators:
MNumerators for both basic and

diluted EPS net income $120.378 $123,375 3137420
Denominators
Drenomunatar for basic ERPS
welghted-average common
shares ouistanding 46,685 50,069 54,649
Potenually ditutive shares from
stock option plans 240 310 385
Denommator for diluied EPS 46,925 50,375 55.034
Earnings per share - basic 5258 52 46 $2.51
Earmings pes shara — diluted $2.57 $2.45 5250
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Certain exercisable and non-exercisable stock options were not
n¢luded 1n the computation of diluted EPS for fiscal year 2007,
2006, and 2005, because ther inclusion would have been anti-
dilutive. The number of stock options outstanding, which met this
cntenion far 2007 was 412,916; for 2008 was 290,366, and for
2005 was 176,900,

USE DFESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
reguires management to make estumaies and assumplions that
atfect the amounts reporied i the financial statements and
accompanying notes. The more significant areas requiring the use of
management estimates relate 1o allowance for doubtful accounts,
inventory reserves, marketing program accruals, warranty accruals,
accruals for seli-msured medical claims, workers’ compensauon,
legal contingencies, general hability and auto insurance claims, and
useful lives for depreciation and armortization Actual results could
differ from those esumaies.

SELF-INSURANCE

The Corporation is partially self-insured for general, auto, and
product hability, workers’ compensailon, and certain employee
health benefits. The general, auto, product, and workers’
compensation latiliues are managed using a wholly owned
instirance captive: the related labilities are included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. The Corporation’s
policy 15 to accrue amounts in accordance with ihe actuarially
determined liabitities. The actuarial valuations are based on histoncal
informanon aleng with certain assumptions about future events.
Changes in assumptions for such matters as legal acuons, medical
cost inflation, and magnitude of change n acwual experience
development could cause these estimates to change in the fulure.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATIONS

Foreign currency hinancial statements of foreign operations where
the local currency 1s the tunctional currency are translated using
exchange rates in effect at period end for assets and habilities and
average exchange rates during the penod for results of operations.
Related transtation adjustments are reported as a component ot
Stockholders’ Equity. Gains and losses on foreign currency
transactions are included in the "Selling and administrative
expenses” capuon of the Consolidaied Siatements of Income.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Prior periods Statements of Income have been restated for
disconunued operations. Certain reclassifications have been made
within the footnotes 1o conform 1o the current year presentation.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONQUNCEMENTS

in July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, "Accounung
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”™ ("FIN 487). FIN 48 clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an
enterpnse’s financial staterments In accordance with SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 prescnbes a recognition




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected
10 he taken in a lax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in
intertm periods, disclosure, and transition. This Interpretation is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, The
Corporation adopted the provision of FIN 48 on December 31,
2006, the beginning of fiscal 2007. See “Income Taxes” footnote
for additional infarmation,

in September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 “Fair Value
Measurements” which provides enhanced guidance for using fair
value to measure assets and liabilities. The standard also expands
the amount of disclosure regarding the extent to which companies
measure assets and liabilities at fair value, the information used to
measure fair value, and the effect of fair value measurements on
earnings. The standard applies whenever other standards reguire
{or permit) assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value but does
not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances. This
statement s effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within
those fiscal years. The Corporaticn does not anticipate any material

impact to its financial statements from the adoption of this standard.

In February, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS 159")
which permits entities to choose tc measure many financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not
currently required 1o be measured at fair value. The objective of
SFAS 159 is to improve financial reporting by providing entities
with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reperted earnings
caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differantly
withcut having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions.
This statement is effective as of the beginning of any fiscal year
heginning after November 15, 2007. The Corporation does not
anticipate any material impact to its financial statements from the
adoption of this standard.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147 {Revised),
"Business Combinations” ("SFAS No. 141(R)™), replacing SFAS
Ne. 141, "Business Combinations” {"SFAS No. 1417), and SFAS
No. 160, "Noncontrofling Interests in Consclidation Financial
Statements - An Amendment of ARB No. 51" (“SFAS No. 160").
SFAS Ng. 141(R) retains the fundamental requirements of SFAS
No. 141, broadens its scope by applying the acquisition method to
all transactions and other events in which one entity abtains control
over ong or moare other businesses, and requires, among other
things, that assets acguired and liabilities assumed be measured

at fair value as of the acquisition date, that liabilities related to
contingent considerations be recognized at the acquisition date and
remeasured at fair value in each subseguent reporting period, that
acquisition-related costs be expensed as incurred, and that income
be recognized if the fair value of the net assets acquired exceeds
the fair value of the consideration transferred. SFAS No. 160

establishes accounting and reporting standards for noncontrolling
interests {i.e., minority interests) in & subsidiary, including changes
in a parent’'s ownership interest in a subsidiary and requires,
among other things, that noncontrolling interasts in subsidiaries
be classified as a separate component of equity. Except for the
presentation and disclosure reguirements of SFAS No. 160, which
are to be applied retrospectively for all periods presented, SFAS
No. 141 (R) and SFAS No. 160 are to be applied prospectively in
financiat statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008. The Cerporation does not anticipate any
material impact to its financial statements fraom the adeption of
SFAS No. 160,

Restructuring Related and Impairment Charges

As a result of the Corporation’s ongoing business simplification
and cost reduction initiatives, management made the decision in
2007 to close an office furniture facility in Richmond, Virginia and
consolidate production into other locations. In connection with
the shutdown of the Richmond facility, the Corporation recorded
$4.4 million of pre-tax charges which included $0.6 million of
accelerated depreciation of machinery and equipment recorded in
cost of sales and $3.8 million of severance which was recorded
as restructuring costs. The closure and censolidation will be
completed during the first halt of 2008. The Corporation will
incur additional restructuring charges and transition costs of
approximately $9 to $11 million in connection with the closure.

The Carporation’s hearth products segment consolidated some
of its service and distribution locations during 2007. In connection
with thosa consolidations, the Corperation recorded $1.1 million
of severance and facility exit costs, which were recorged as
restructuring costs

During 2007, the Corporation completed the shutdown of an office
furniture facility, which began in the fourth quarter of 2006. The
facility was located in Monterrey, Mexico, and production from this
facility was consolidated into other locations. In connection with
this shutdown, the Corporation recorded $0.8 million of severance
costs in 2006. The Corporation incurred $2.1 million of current
period charges during 2007.

During 2008, the Corporation completed the shutdown of two
office furniture facilities, which began in the third quarter of 2005,
The facilities were located in Kent, Washingten and Van Nuys,
Califormia, and production from these facilities was consclidated into
other locations, Charges for these closures in 2005 totaled $4.1 million,
which censisted of $0.6 million of accelerated depreciation of
machinery and equipment recorded in cost of sales, $1.2 million of
severance, $0.4 millicn of pension-related expenses, and $1.9 million
of factory exit, production relocation, and ather costs, which were
recorded as restructuring costs. In connection with those shutdowns,
the Cerporation incurred $1.9 million of current period charges
during 2006.
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The following 1able summanzes the restructurning accrual acuvity
since the beginning of fiscal 2005. This summary does not include
the effect of the Corporauon's employee reurement plans in 2005,
as this tem was not accountad for through the restruciunng accrual
on the Consotidated Balance Sheets but)s included as a compoenent
of "Restructuning Related and Impairment Charges” in the
Consolidated Statements of Income

Fac &
Seergrce Tgrr gt on and
[ais v FENRTILY) Costs Other Cosis Totd
Restruciunng reserve al
January 1. 2005 5 - 3 - 5 -
Resiruciunng charges 1,142 1,876 3.018
Cash payments 325} 1532) 19571
Restructunng reservi i
December 31, 2005 5 817 $ 1,244 $ 2,061
Restruciunng charges 865 1,564 2,829
Cash payimenis 184 1) 13.208) 12,049)
Resiruciining reserve at
Deacennbor 30, 2006 s 841 s - S 84
Rastuctuning charges 3.539 3,523 7.062
Cash payments (522) [2,533) 13,055)
Restruciunng reserve al
December 28, 2007 $3,858 s 990 S 4,848

The Corporation made the decision in 2007 o sell several small
non-core compenents of 1ts office furniture services business and
recorded $2.7 million of impanment charges, included in the
“Restructunng Related and Impairment Charges” ling 1term on the
Consoldated Statements of Income, to reduce the asseis being
neld for sale to {anr market value.

Business Comhinations

The Corporation completed the acquisition of Harman Siove
Company, a privately held domestic manufacturer of free-standing
stoves and fireplace mseits, as well as two small othice furmiture
dealers duning 2007, The combined purchase price of these
acquisitions, less cash acguirad. totaled $40.9 million.

The Corporation has finalized the allocation of the puichase price for
all acquisitions other than the Harman Stove Corpany acquisiion,
which accurred in the final quarter of the year. Any modification i1s not
expected to be significant A reclassilication between goodwill and
other Intangible asseis will occur hased an the final valuaton report
ior the Harman Stove Company acquisiion. There are approxmately
$1.6 mulion of intangibles associated with these acquisitions. Of
these acquired intangibles, $0.4 milhon was assigned to trade names
that are not subject to amoruzavon. The remaining $1 2 midhon have
estimated useful hves ranging from one o fifteen years wiih
amortizaton recoided based on the projected cash flow associated
with the respective intangible assets’ existing relationships. There 1s
appromimately $8 & millon of goodwill asscciated with thase
acquisiticns of which $3.6 milllon was assigned to the office furniture
segment and $5 0 million was assigned to the hearth products
segment. Al goodwill 1s deductible tor income tax purposes.
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The Corporation completed the acquisition of Lamex, a privately
held Chinese manufaciurer and marketer of otfice furniture, as
well as a small office furniture services company, a small office
furmiture deater. and a small manufacturer of fireplace facings
during 2006. The combined purchase price of these acquisiions.
less cash acauired, totaled $78 2 milhon. The Corporation ncreased
115 borrowangs under the revolving cradit facility 1o fund the
acquisiiions. The Corporation acquired controlling interest in the
office furmiture dealer and the ablty to call the remaining interest
on or after fiscal year-end 2011, The Corporation must exercise 11s
call on or before the end of fiscal 2016. SFAS No. 150 "Accounting
for Certain Financial Instruments with Charactenstics of both
Liabhities and Equity™ {"SFAS No. 150"} requires a mandatorily
redeemable financial mstrument to be classified as a liability unless
the redemption 15 required to eccun only upon the liguidation or
termination of the reporting entity It also requires that mandatonly
redeemable financial nstruments be measured at {ar value.
Therefore, the Corporanion hes recorded a fizbility for the remaining
nterest at tarr value. The Corporation continues to monitor and adjust
the recorded amount (¢ accrele the obligation 1o the estimated
redempuon amount through a charge (o earnings as required.

There are approximaiely $53 7 million of iniangibles associated with
these acquisiions. Of these acqurred intangible assets, 314 mullion
was assigned 1o a irade name that 1s not subject o amoruzauon.
The remaiming $39 7 million have esumated useiu! hves ranging
from 1wo 10 hiteen years with amortization recorded basad on the
projected cash flow associated with the respective intangible
assels’ existing relationships. There 1s approximately $11.7 millign
of goodwill associated with these acquisiuons, of which $8 9 mullion
was assigned 1o the office furniture segment and $2.8 million was
assigned to the hearth products segmeni. Approximately $6.9 million
of the goodwill is not deductible for Income tax purposes.

The Corporation completed the acquisiuon of four small office
furniure services companies, three office furniture dealers,

and three small heaith distributors during 2005, The combined
purchase price of these acquisitions totaled $35.4 million, of which
$33.4 million was paid in cash and the remaining 1s due to the
seliers over the nexl several years The Corporation acquired
controlling interesis n 1he three office furniture dealers and the
ability to call the remawing interests on or after fiscal year-end 2008
and 2010. The Corporation must exercise its calls on or before the
end of fiscal 2014 and 2015, SFAS No. 150 reguires a mandatorily
redeemable finanoial nstrument o be classiied as a hability unless
the redemgption 1s required to accur only upon the ligudation or
tarmination of the reporiing entity. It also requires that mandatonly
redeemable inancial iInstruments be measured at farr value.
Therefore. the Corporabon has recorded a liabiliiy for the remaining
interest at fair value The Corporation continugs to monitor and
adjust the recorded amount o accrete the obhgation 10 the
estimated redemption amount through a charge (o earnings as
required. There are apprommaiely $14.1 milhon of intangibles
associated with these acqusitions. Of these acguired intangible
assels, $1.5 milion was assigned to indefinite-lived trademarks
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that are not subject to amortization. The remaining $12.6 million
have estimated useful lives ranging from two to fifteen years with
amortization recorded based on the projected cash flow associated
with the respective intangible assets’ existing relationships. There
is approximately $18.9 million of goodwill associated with these
acquisitions, of which $13.7 imillion was assigned to the office
furniture segment and $5.2 million was assigned to the hearth
products segment. Aporoximately $2.1 million of the goodwill
assigned to the office furniture segment is not deductible for tax
PUrpoOses.

The results of the acquired entities have been included in the
Consclidated Financial Statements since the date of acquisition.

Discontinued Operations

During December 2006, the Corporation committed to a plan to sell
a small non-core component ot its otfice furniture segment. The
sale was completed during the second quarter of 2007. Revenues
and expenses associated with this component are presented as
discontinued operations for all periods presented. During the fourth
quarter 2006, the Corporation recorded a pre-tax charge of
approximately $7.1 million to reduce the assets to the fair market
value. The charge was mainly due to the writedown of goodwill and
other intangibles not deductible for tax purposes.

Summarized financial information for discontinued operations 1s
as follows:

fin thousanadsi

Discontinued operations:
Operating income {loss) before tax $ 818)
Ineome tax {294}

MNet income {loss) from discontinued
operations 1524)

Impairment loss on discantinued
operations:
Impairment 10ss on discontinued
aperations befare tax
Benefit for income tax

{7,125)
{1.352)

Netimpairmeant loss on discontinued

operations 5.773)

Discontinued operations, net of

ncome tax $i6,297)

Inventories

iln thousands) 2007 2006 2005

$ 76,804
52,641
(20,904}

% 66,238
58,789
(19,262)

$61,027
46,398
{16,315}

Finished products
Matenals and work In process
LIFQ reserve

$108,541 $105.765 $91.110

Property, Plant, and Equipment

fin thousands/ 2007 2006 2005
Land and land improvements % 23,806 $ 27,700 T 26,361
Buildings 268,650 266,801 240,174
Machinery and equipment 501,950 550,979 523,240
Construction and equipment
installation in progress 25,858 12,836 23,976
820,263 858,416 813,751
Less: accumulated depreciation 514,832 548,464 519,091
$305,431 $309,952 $294 660

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Pursuant 1o Statement ¢f Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS™)
No. 142, the Corporation evaluates its goodwill for impairment on an
annual basis based on values at the end of third quarter or whenever
indicators of impairment exist. The Corporation has evaluated its
goodwill for impairment and has determined that the fair value of

its reporting units included as continuing operations exceeds the
carrying values and, therefore, no impairment of goodwill was
recorded in continuing operations. The Corporation did record an
impairment charge of $5.7 million in 2006, which was included in
discontinued operations on the Consclidated Statements of Income.

The Corporation aiso owns trademarks having a net value of
$43.5 million as of December 29, 2007, $43.2 millicn as of
December 30, 2006, and $30.2 millicn as of December 31, 2005,
The trademarks are deemed to have an indefinite useful life
because they are expected to generate cash flow indefinitely.

The Corporation recorded an imgairment charge of $1.0 millicn

in 2006 and $0.5 million in 2005 related to two office furniture
trademarks associated with the discontinued operation where the
carrying amount exceeded the current fair market value. The charge
was included in discontinued operations on the Consolidated
Statements of Income.

The table below summarizes amortizable definite-lived intangible
assets, which are reflected in Other Assets in the Corporation’s
consolidated balance sheets:

{tn thousands) 2007 2006 2005
$ 18,780 $ 18780 $18,480

101,320 103,492 67,211
45,833 39,796 28,758

Patents
Custamer lists and other
Less: accumulated amortization

Net intangible assets $ 74,267 $ BZ2.476 $56.933
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Amortization expense for definite-lived intangibles for 2007,

2006, and 2005, was $9.2 million, $10.4 million, and $7.3 mullion,
respectively. Based on the current amount of intangible assets
subject to amaortization, the estimated amortization expense for
each of the following five fiscal years is as follows:

fin thausandsi 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

AMOrizaton expense £6.8 $6.5 £5.6 $4.9 $4.8

The occurrence of events such as acquisitions, dispositions, or
Impairments in the future may result in changes to amounts.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill since January 1,
2005, are as follows by reporting segment:

Otfice Hearti,
fin thousanas) Furmiture Froduets Teral
Bafance as of January 1, 2005 65,531 $159,023 3224654
Goodwill iIncrease dunng peried 12,128 5,662 17,690
Balance as of December 31, 2005 $77.669 $164,685 3242244
Goodwill increase dunng pencd 12 810 2.790 15,600
Goedwill deciease dunng period 15,664) {428) 6,083)
Balance as of Decamber 30, 2006 $84.815 $166.946 $251,761

Goodwill ncrease dunng pencd 3,577 5,001 8,678
Goodwill decrease during period 13,118 387} (3,505}

Balance as of December 28, 2007 $85,274 $171,560 $256,834

The goodwill Increases relate to acquisitions completed. See
Business Combinations note. The decrease in gocdwill in the office
furmiure segment in 2007 1s due to goodwill associated with office
services business units held for sale and final purchase price
allocations for previous acquisitions. The decrease in goodwill in the
office furniture segment in 2006 is due to the impairment of the
goodwill asseciated with discontinued operations. The decreases

n the hearth products segment relates tc the sale of a few small
service and distribution locations.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

iln thousancs) 2007 2008 2005
Trade accounts payable $133,293 $102.436 $ 86,945
Compensation 30,544 27,835 34,272
Frolit shaning and retirement expense 30.441 20645 32,461
Marketing expenses 57,361 60,676 54,797
Other accrued expenses 115,681 108,390 100,747

$367,320 $328.882 $309,222
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Long-Term Debt

(I thousanos! 2007 2006 2005

MNate payable to bank, revelvsng credit
agreement with interest at a variable
rats 12007 - 5.46%; 2006 — 5.70%,

2005 - 4.69%) $128,000 £144,000 $140,000
Note payable to bank, with interest at a

tfixed rate (2007 - 5.039%:; 2006 -6.11%} 14,205 14,200 -
Semor notes due in 2016 with interest

at a fixed rate of 5.54% per annum. 150,000 150,000 -
Industrial developrment revenue

bonds, payable 2018 with interest

at 3.55% per annum 2,300 2,300 2,300
Other notes and amounis 63 794 900
Total debt 294,568 311,284 143,200
Less: current portion 14,253 25,994 40,150
Long-term debt $280,315 $285,300 $103,050
Aggregate maturities of long-term debt are as follows:
fin thousands)
2007 $ 14,263
2008 i5
2009 -
2010 128,000
20N -
Thergafter $152,300

QOn January 28, 2005, the Corporation replaced a $136 million
revolving credit facility entered into on May 10, 2002 with a new
revolving credit facility that provided for a maximum barrowing

of $150 million subject to increase (1o a maximem amount of
$300 million) or reduction from time to time according to the
terms of the agreement. On December 22, 2005, the Corporation
increased the facility to the maxirmum amount of $300 million.
Amounts borrowed under the Credit Agreement may be borrowed,
repaid, and rebarrowed from time to time untit January 28, 2011,
As of December 28, 2007, none of the borrowings outstanding
was classified as short-term as the Corporation does not expect
to repay any of the barrowings within a year.

On April 6, 2008, the Corporation refinanced $150 million of
borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit facility with
5.54 percent ten-year unsecured Senior Notes due in 2018 1ssued
through the private placement debt market. Interest payments
are due semi-annually on April 1 and Octcber 1 of sach year and
the principal is due in a lump sum in 2016. The Corporation
maintained the revolving credit faciity with a maximum borrowing
of $300 million
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Certain of the above berrowing arrangements include covenants
which limit the assumption of additional debt and lease chligations.
The Corporation has been and currently is in compliance with the
covenants related 1o these debt agreements. The fair value of the
Corporation's cutstanding long-term debt obligations &t year-end
2007 approximates the recorded aggregate amount.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

iln thousands) 2067 2006 2005

Freight expense for shipments

10 customers $164,062 $182,814 $158,329
Amortization of intangible and
other assets 11,702 12,456 10,155
Product development costs 23,967 27,567 27,338
Other selling and administrative
expenses 502,598 494,839 487 B4as
$702,329 $717 676 $663,667

Income Taxes

Significant components of the provision for income taxes are as follows:

iln thousands! 2007 2008 2005
Current;
Fedaral 553,965 $61.399 $77.343
State 6,588 8,671 8,954
Foreign 811 678 131
Current provision 61,364 70,748 86,428
Deferred:
Federal (3,031) 17,628 18,048)
State (353) Bs1) 11,081
Fareign (418) (483 -
Deferred provision (3,802} 18,662) 19,129}
£57,062 $62,086 $77,299

A reconciliation of the statutery federal income tax rate to the
Corporation’s effective income tax rate for continuing cperations is
as follows:

{0 thousands) 2007 2008 2005
Federal statutory tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State taxes, net of federal tax effect 23 28 2.4
Credit for ncreasing research activities 0.9 0.7 0.4)
Deduction related to domestic

production activities 1.4) 0.8 {0.91
Extraterritonial income exclusion - 0.4) 0.3)
Excludable foreign income (2.0} 0.7 -
True-up of deferred tax items - 2.1 -
Other - net 10.7) 0.1 0.2
Effective tax rate 32.3% 33.0% 36.0%

In the fourth guarter of 2008, the Corporation cormpleted a detailed
analysis of all deferred tax accounts, and determined that net
deferred income tax liabilities were overstated by $4.1 million. This
overstatement primarily relates 1o a deferrad tax ligbility associated
with property, plant, and equipment, partially offset by an overstated
deferred tax asset associated with inventory. In analyzing the
difference, the Corporation determined that the items originated in
fiscal years prior to 2002. To correct this difference, the Corporation
reduced income tax expense in the fourth quarter of 2006 by

$4.1 million. The effect of this adjustment i$ to reduce the effective
income tax rate related to continuing operations by 2.1 percentage
points for the year and increase earnings per share from continuing
operations by $0.08.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and ligbilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income
tax purposes.

Significant componenis of the Corporation’s deferred tax liabilities
and assets are as follows:

{In thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Net long-term deferred tax liabilities:

Tax over book depreciation $ 1,614 $ (1,052} $(16,458)
Compensation 4,624 4 899 5,907
Goodwill (38,559) {33,826} {30,489)
Other - net 5,649 558 5,577
Total net lang-term deferred
tax liabilities {26,672) (29,321} 135,473}
Net current deferred tax assets:
Allowance far doubtful accounts 3,491 3,563 3.858
Vacation accrual 5,302 5,323 4,924
inventory differences 2,572 3.096 5,720
Deferred income (4,484) (5.880) {6,596}
Warranty accruals 4,234 3,806 3847
Other - net 6,713 5,432 4,078
Total net current deferred tax assets 17,828 15,440 15.831
Net deferrad tax thabilities) assets $ (8,844) $13.881) $(19.6842)

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the
“FASB") issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48"). FIN 48 addresses the determination of
whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax
return should be recorded in the financial statements. Under FIN 48,
the Corporation may recognize the tax benefit frcm an uncertain tax
position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be
sustained on examination by the taxing suthorities, based on the
technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the
financial statements from such a pesition should be measured
hased on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. FIN 48 also
provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and
penalties on income taxes, and accounting in interim periods and
requires increased disclosures.
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The Corporation adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on December 31,
2006, the beginning of fiscal 2007. As a result of the implementation
of FIN 48, the Corporation recognized a $1.7 million increase in the
lability for unrecognized benefits. This increase in Lability resulted
in a decrease to the December 31, 2006 retained earnings balance
in the amaount of $0.5 million and a reducticn in deferred tax
liabilities of $1.2 million,

2 thousands)

Unrecogrized tax henehts, December 31, 2006 33895
Increases in positions taken in & poor penod 49
Decreases n positions taken m a prior panad (5}
Increases in posiions taken in a current perod 1.018
Decreases due 10 settlernents 2,117
Unrecognized tax benetits, December 28, 2007 52,839

The amount of unrecognized tax benefits which would impact the
Corporation’s effective tax rate, if recognized, was $2.7 million at
December 31, 2006 and $2.3 mullion at December 29, 2007.

The Corporation recognized interest accrued related to
unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in
operating expenses, which is consistent with the recognition of
these items in prior reporting. Interest and panaliies recognized
in the Income Statement amounted to a benefit of $0.5 millien.
As of December 31, 2006, the Corporation had recorded a liability
for interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits of
$0.9 million. As of December 29, 2007, the Corporation had a
recorded lisbihty for interest and penalties related to unrecognized
tax benefits of $0.4 million.

The Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS") has completed the
examination of all federal income tax returns through 2003 with no
1ssues pending or uniesolved. The years 2004 through 2007 remain
open for examination by the IRS. The years 2002 through 2007 are
currently under examination or remain open 10 exammation by
several states.

As of December 29, 2007 1t is reasonably possible that the amount
of unrecognized tax benefits may increase or decrease within the
twelve months following the reperting date. These increases or
decreases in the unrecognized tax benefits would be due to new
positions that may be taken on income tax returns, seitlement of
tax positions and the closing of statues of imitation. 1t 1s not
expected that any of the changes will be significant indmdually or
1N total 1o the results or financial posiiion of the Corporation.
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Shareholders' Equity

2007 2006 2005
Comrmon Stock, §1 Par value
Authorized 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and outstanding 44,834,519 47,905,351 51,848,591
Prefarrad Stock, $1 Par Value
Authonzed 2,000,000 2,000,000 2.060.000

Issued and outstanding - — -

The Corporation purchased 3,581,707, 4,338,987, and 4,059,068
shares of its common stock during 2007, 2008, and 2005,
respectively. The par value method of accounting is used for common
stock repurchases. The excess of the cost of shares acquired over
ther par value is allocated 1o Addiional Paid-In Capital with the
excess charged to Retained Earnings.

Components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
consist of the following:

fln thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of penod ${3,062) $ 332 $ 349
Foreign currency translation

adjustments — net of tax 765 631 293
Change 1n unrealized gains (losses) on

marketable secunmes - nes of tax (147} - -
Change in pension and postretirement

habthity - net of tax 3,290 537 310
Adjusiment to inmally apply SFAS 188,

net of tax - 12,662] -
Balance at end of period $ 846 $(3,062) $ 332

In May 2007, the Corporation registered 300,000 shares of its
common stock under 11s 2007 Equity Plan for Non-Employee
Directors of HNI Carporation. This plan permits the Corporation

to issue 1o 1ts non-employee directors opticns to purchase shares
cf the Corgoration’s commaen stack, restnicted stock of the
Corporation, and awards of the Corporation’s comman steck. The
olan also permits non-employee direciors to elect to receive all or a
portion of ther annual retaners and other compensation in the form
of shares of the Carporation’s common stock. Upon approval of this
plan in May 2007, no awards are granted under the 1997 Equity Plan
for Non-Employee Directors of HNI Corperation, but all outstanding
awards previously granted under that plan shall remain outstanding
in accordance with ther terms. Dunng 2007, 2006, and 2005,
16,194 13,947; and 13,621 shares of the Corporation’s commaon
stock were 1ssued under these plans, respectively.

Cash dividends declared and paid per share for each year are:

il dollacs) 2007 2006 2005

Common shares 5.78 372 $.62
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During 2002, shareholders approved the 2002 Members’ Stock
Puichase Plan, as amended January 1, 2007 Under the plan,
800,000 shares ¢f common stock were reqgistered for issuance to
participating members. Beginning on June 30, 2002, rights to
purchase stock are granted on a quarterly basis to all members who
custornanty work 20 hours or more per week and who customarily
work for five months or more in any calendar year. The price of the
stock purchased under the plan is 85% of the closing price on the
exercise date. No member may purchase stock under the plan in an
amount which exceeds a maximum fair value of $25,000 in any
calendar year. During 2007, 127,436 shares of common stock were
issued under the plan at an average price of $33.43. During 2006,
114,397 shares of cammon stock were issued under the plan at an
average price of $40.03. During 2005, 77,410 shares of common
stock were issued under the plan at an average price of $44.87.

An additional 280,180 shares were available for issuance under

the plan at December 29, 2007.

The Carparation has granted rights to purchase shares of the
Corporation's commaon stock pursuant to a shareholders’ rights
plan. The rights become exercisable in connection with certain
acquisitions of 20% or more of the Corporation’s common stock
by any person or group in a iransaction not approved by the
Corporation's Board of Directors. Each right entitles its holder to
purchase shares of commen stock of the Corporation with a market
value of $400 at a price of $200, unless the Board authorizes the
rights be redeemed. The rights may be redeemed for $0.01 per
right &t any time before the rights become exercisable. In certain
instances, the right 1o purchase applies to the capital stock of the
acqguirer instead of the common stock of the Corporation. The
Corporation has reserved preferred shares necessary for issuance
should the 1ights be exercised. The rights are scheduled 1o expire
on August 20, 2008.

The Corporation has entered into change-in-control employment
agreements with some corporate officers and ceriain other key
employees. According to the agreements, a change in control
occurs when a third person or entity becomes the beneficial owner
of 20% or more ot the Corporation’s common stock when mare
than one-third of the Corporation’s Board of Directors is cemposed
of persons not recommended by at least three-fourths of the
incumbent Board of Directors, upon certain business combinations
involving the Corporation, or upon approval by the Corporation’s
shareheolders of a complete liquidation or dissoiution. Upon a
change in control, a key employee is deemed (o have a two-year
employment agreement with the Corporation, and all of his or her
henefits vest under the Corporation’s compensation plans. If, at any
time within twao years of the change in control, his or her
employment is terminated by the Corporation for any reason other
than cause or disability, or by the key employee for good reason, as
such terms are defined in the agreement, then the key employee is
entitled to receive, among other benefits, a severance payment
equal 1o two times (three times for the Corporation’s Chairman,
President and CEQ) his or her annual salary and the average of the
prior two years' bonuses.

Stock-Based Compensation

Under the Corporation’'s 2007 Stock-Based Compensation Plan

{the "Plan”), as amended effactive May 8, 2007, the Corporation
may award optiens to purchase shares of the Corporation’'s commaon
stock and grant other stock awards 10 executives, managers, and
key personnel. Upon approval of this plan in May 2007, no future
awards are granted under the Corporation’s 1985 Stock-Based
Compensation Flan, as amended, but all cutstanding awards
previously granted under that plan shall remain outstanding in
accordance with their terms. As of December 29, 2007 there were
approximately 5.0 million shares available for future iIssuance under
the 2007 Plan. The Plan is administered by the Human Resources
and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. Restricted
stock awarded under the Plan is expensed ratably over the vesting
period of the awards. Stock options awarded to members under the
Plan must be at exercise prices equal to or exceeding the fair
market value of the Corporation’s commeon stock on the date of
grant. Stock options are generally subject to four-year cliff vesting
and must be exercised within 10 years from the date of grant.

The Corporation also has a sharehelder-approved Members’ Stock
Purchase Plan [the "MSP Pian”). The price of the stock purchased
under the MSP Plan is 85% of the closing price on the applicable
purchase date. During 2007, 127,436 shares of the Corparation’s
commaon stock were issuad under the MSP Plan at an average
price of $33.43.

The Corporation adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123(R), "Share-Based Payment”

{"SFAS 123(R)"). beginning January 1, 2008, using the modifisd
prospective transition method, This statement requires the
Corporation to measure the cost of employee services in exchange
for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair
value of the award and to recognize cost over the requisite service
pericd. Under the modified prospective transition method, financial
statements for periods prior to the date of adoption are not adjusted
for the change in accounting.

Prior to January 1, 2008, the Cerporation used the intrinsic value
method te account for stock-based employee compensation
under Accounting Principles Beard Opinion No. 25, "Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees,” and therefore did not recogniza
compensation expense in association with options granted at or
ahove the market price of common stock at the date of grant.

As a result of adopting the new standard, earnings befere income
taxes for the year ended December 29, 2007 decreased by

$3.6 million, and net earnings decreased by $2.4 million, or $.05 per
basic share and $.05 per diluted share. These results reflect stock
compensation expense of $3.6 million and tax benefits of

$1.2 million for the period. For the year ended December 30, 2006,
earnings before income taxes decreased by $3.2 million and net
garnings decreased by $2.1 million, or $.04 per basic share and
$.04 per dituted share.
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Adopuion of the new standard also affected the preseniation of
cash flows The change s related to tax benefits associated with
ax deductions that exceed the amount of compensation expense
recogrized In the financial siatements For the vears ended
Dacember 29, 2007, and December 30, 2008, cash flow from
operaung activities was reduced by $0.8 milhon and $0 9 milhon and
cash flow from financing activities was ncreased by 50.8 mulhon
and $0 9 milhon, respectively, as a result of the new standard

Concurrent wiih ihe adoption of the new statement, the Corporation
began ic use the non-subsiantive vesting penod approach for
attnbuting stock compensaton o individual periods. The nominal
vesting penod approach was used i deigrmining the siock
compensaiion expense for ithe Corpeoration’s pro forma net earnings
disclosure for the year ended December 31, 2005, as presenied in
ihe table helow. The change in the aunbuton methad will not affect
the ultimate amount of siock compansalion expense recogmized,
but it has accelerated the recogrition of such expense {or non-
subsiantive vesung condiions, such as reurement ehgibiliy
prowisions. Under both approaches, ihe Corporation elecled 1o
recognize stock compensation on a straight-line basis

The following table presenis a ieconciliation of reporied net
earnings and per share information to pro ferma net earmnys and
pes share mformation that would have been reporied Il the fair value
method had been used 1o account for stock-hased employae
compensation in 2005,

noe pew e Lo share dalal 2005
Net mcome, as reporied $1374
Deduct Total stock-based employee compansation expense
deiermned under iar value based method for all awaids,
net of related Lax effects 18
Pro forma net income $135 6
Earnings per share
Basic - as reported $ 251
Basic - pro forma § 248
Diluted - as 1eponed $ 2.50
Diluted - pro forma 5 2.47

The stock compensation expense for the years ended
December 29, 2007 and December 30, 2008, and the stock
compensation expense used in the preceding disclosure of pro
forma earmings for the year ended December 31, 2005, was
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes opuion-
pricing model that used the following assumpticns by grant year.

Year Ended Yerar Lewderd Yol Critden
Dec 29, 2007 Dec 30 7006 e 312005
Expected iesm 7 years 7 years 7 years
Expected volatlity
Range used 26.97% 7975%-3123% 31 77%-3349%
\VWeighted-average 26.97% 3121% 3347%
Ewpecied dividend yield
Range used 1.60% 124%-1 43% 1 17%-145%
Woeighied-average 1.60% 124% 1 45%
Risk-free ‘nieresi raie
Range used 4.71% 4 62%-509% 4 21%-457%
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Expecied volatliues are based on historical volatlity as the
Corperaton does not feel that future volatility over the expected
term of the options 1s likely 1o differ from the past. The Corporation
used a simple-average calculation method based on monthly
frequency points for the prior seven years. The Corporation used
the current dividend vield as there are no plans to substantially
ncrease or decrease 1ts dividends. The Corporauon elected o usg
the simplified method as allowed by Staff Accounuing Bulleun

No 107 “Share Based Payment” {"SAB No. 1077) to determine
the expected term since the awards gualifled as "plain vanilla”
options as defined n SAB No. 107. The nsk-free interest raie was
selected based on yiglds from U S. Treasury zero-coupon I1ssues
with a remaning term equal o the expecied term of the options
beng valued.

The following table summanzes the changes in ouisianding stock
options since the beginning of fiscal 2005.

Legirad-Average
Evercse Pree

Ouisianchng ar Janvary 1, 2005 1,308,450 $78 65
Granted 175,800 42 81
Exgroised {331,5001 2514
Forfelied 124,100) 30 95
Quistanging ai December 31, 2005 1,128,650 $3184
Granted 135,946 58 06
Ereicised (68,5001 2251
Farteied 122,480Q) 399
Outstanang at December 30, 2006 1,173.616 35 27
Granted 185,823 48.66
Eweroised {214,000} 24.86
Forfened 1102,373) 46.14
Chaistanding #1 December 28, 2007 1,043,066 $38.72

A summary of the Corporauon’s nonvested shares as of
December 29, 2007 and changes during the year are presented
below:

Winghieo-

Average

Grant Date

Honvested Shares Shatas Fau Vatue
Nanvested at Decermber 30, 2006 665,966 £15.97
Granted 185,823 15.67
Vested (202,500) 11.17
Forterted (102,373) 17.64
Nonvesied a1 December 29, 2007 546,916 $17.34
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At December 29, 2007, there was $4.2 miilien of unrecognized
compensation cost related to nonvested awards, which the
Corporation expects to recognize over a weighted-average period of
1.3 years. Informaticn about stock options that are vested or expected
to vest and that are exercisable at December 29, 2007, follows:

Weghieo- Weighted- Aggregate

Average Average Intrinsie

Exercise Remaining Value

Options MNumber Price Lite in Years 1$000s)
Vested or expected to vest 998,626 $38.32 6.1 -
Exercisable 496,180  $29.73 45 523803

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted was
$15.67, $21.39, and $15.74 for 2007, 20086, and 2005, respectively.
Other information for the year follows:

Year Ended

i thousands) Dec. 29, 2007 Deac. 30, 2006 Dec 31, 2005
Total fair value of shares vested 32,261 $1.702 $ B7b
Total Intrinsic value of optians

exercised 4,673 1,987 8,447
Cash received from exercise of

s10ck options 5,321 1,542 8,334
Tax benefit realized from exercise of

stock opions 1,551 725 2,899

Retirement Benefits

The Corporation has defined contribution profit-sharing plans
covering substantiaily all members who are not participants in
certain defined benefit plans. The Corporation’s annual contributicn
to the defined contribution plans is based on member eligible
earnings and results of operations and amounted to $28.1 million,
$28.2 million, and $27.4 million, in 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

The Corporation sponsors defined benefit plans which include a
hmited number of salaried and hourly members at certain
subsidiaries. The Corporation’s funding policy is generally to
contribute annually the minimum actuarially computed amount. Net
pension costs refating to these plans were $0, $0, and $653,000, in
2007, 2008, and 2005, respectively. The increase in 2005 is due to
a plan curtallment resulting from the shutdown of an office furniture
facility in Van Nuys, California. The actuanal present value of
obligations, less related plan assets at fair value, 1s not significant.

The Corporation also particicates in a multi-employer plan, which
provides defined benefits to certain of the Corporation's union

members. Pensicn expense for this plan amounted 1o $376,000,
$352,000, and $353,000, in 2007, 2008, and 2005, respectively.

Postretirement Health Care

The Corparation adopted SFAS No. 168 “Employers’ Accounting
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R}" for
its 2006 year-end financial statement and recognized on the 2006
balance sheet the funded status of other postretirement benefit

plans. The foliowing table provides the information required by
SFAS No. 158. The table also provides the funded status of the

plan, reconciled to the accrued posiretirernent benefit costs

recognized in the Corporation’s balance sheets for the years prior

to the adoption cf the new standard.

itn thousands) 2007 2008 2005
Change in benefit obhgation
Banefit obligation at
heginning of year $19,082 $ 19,738 % 18,308
Service cost 480 326 303
Interest cost 1,067 1,053 1,057
Plan changes (584) 0 0
Benefits paid {1.361) (1,218} {1,503)
Actuarial (gain) or loss (3.081) 817) 923
Benefit obligation at end of year 515,603 $ 19,082 $19,738
Change in plan assets
Fair value at beginning of year $ 6,693 $ 7,682 $ 8777
Actual return on assets 487 326 300
Ernployer contributions 1 3 8
Benafits paid (1,361} {1,218} 11,503}
Fair value at end of year $ 65,819 $ 6,693 $ 7.582
Funded status of pfan $(9,784) $(12,388) $(12,156)
Amounts recognized in the Statement
of Financial Position consist of:
Current liabilities ] 0 $ 0 -
Noncuirent liabilities $ 9,784 $ 12,388 -
Amounts recognized in Accumulated
Crther Comprehensive ncome
tbefore tax) consist of:
Unrecognized actuanal (gaini/loss %{1,273) 5 2,068 -
Unrecognized transition
{assetl/obligation 2,654 3,618 -
Unrecognized prior service cost 0 431 -
$§ 1,381 $ 6,118 -
Change in Accumuiated Other
Comprehensive Income {hefore tax).
Amount disclosed at
beginning of year S 6,118 $ 0 -
Change during year prior to
SFAS 158 adoption - s} -
Change due to the adoption of
SFAS 168 - 6,118 -
Change due tc unrecognized
actuarial {gainiloss (3,342) 0 -
Change due to unrecognized
transition {assetl/obligation (964} 0 -
Change due to unrecognizad prior
service ¢ost 431} 0 -
Amount disclosed at end of year $ 1,381 § 6,118 -
Reconciiiation of funded status
Funded status N/A N/A $012,1586}
Unrecognized actuarial {gain) or loss N/A N/A 3,132
Unrecegnized transition obligation
or lasset) N/A N/A 4,199
Unrecognized prior service cost N/A N/A 661
Net amount recognized at yearend N/A N/A $ (4.164)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Esmated futwre benebhi pavments fin thousands!

Fiscal 2008 $1.120

Fiscal 2009 1,116

Fiscal 2010 1.126

Fiscal 2011 1,127

Fiscal 2012 1,149

Fiscal 2013-2017 6.296
Eapected contributions durtng frscal 2008

Toaf 3 0
Plan Assets - Perceniage of Far Value by Calegory

2007 2006 200%

Cash equvalenis 0°s 19 0%
Equity 25% 25% 0%
Debt 75% Fd% Q9%
Oihes 0% () 1009%
Total 100% 100% i00%

The Corporation invested ihese funds in high-grade money market
instruments 1in 2005 and 2004,

The discount rates at fiscal year-end 2007, 2006, and 2005, were
6.4%, 5.8%, and 5.5% respectively. The Corporation’s payment for
these benefits has reached the maximum amounts per the plan;
therefore, healthcare trend raies have no impact on the
Colpeoration’s cost.

Componeants of Nei Penowic Postreinemais: Benefit Cos!

{Ir1 theusands) 008
Service cosl 5 396
Interesi cost 9G3
Expected return an assots (3581
Amorhization of unrecognized net lganiloss 508
Net penodic posiretrement Denelt cost/incomel $1.509

& discount rate of 6.4% and an expected long-term return on

plan assets of 8.8% were used 1o detenmine net penodic benelit
cost for 2008 The discount rate is set 8t the measurement date 1o
refiect the vield of a portfolio of high quality, fixed income debt
nstrumenis. The expected return on plan assets 1s based on the
specific allocation of assets and an analysis of current market
conditions.
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l.eases

The Corporation leases cerlain warehouses, plani facilities,

and equpment. Commitments for minimum renials under
non-cancelable leases at the end of 2007 are as follows:

Gperatng Legses

40 thousanus! Cap-alzed Leases

2008 $ BE&Z2 5 35,858
2009 431 30,871
2010 258 26,857
2011 168 22,795
2012 - i0.224
Thereatter - 18,807
Toial mimimum 'gase pavmenis 1,409 $145,412
Less amount represeniing Interast 171
Presen: value of nat msmmunt lease pavimenis,

ncluding current maiurites of 5162 $1,238

Property, plant, and equipment at year-end include the tollowing
amounts {or capnalized leases.

i thousenUs! 2007 2006 2005
Build ngs £3,299 $3,289 $£3.299
Machinery and equipmaent 906 - 38
Cifice equipment - - 761
4,205 3,299 4,098

Lass allowances for depraciation 3,084 2,954 3,564
1,121 5 345 $ 534

Rent expense for the years 2007, 2006, and 2005, amounted to
approximately $35 6 midtion, $32.1 million, and $19.5 mullion,
respectively. The Corporation has an operaung lease for a production
faciity with annual rentals totaling approximately $380,000 with a
corporaticn i which the munarity owner of one of the Corporation’s
consolidated subsidiarias 15 an investor Contingent rent expense
under hoth capitalized and operating leases {generally based on
mileage of transportation eguipment) amounted to $0, $165,000,
and $169.000, for the years 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Guarantees, Commitments and Contingencies

The Corporation utilizes letters of credit in the amount of

$25 million to back certain financing instruments, insurance policies
and payment obligations. The letters of credit reflect fair value as

a condition of their underlying purpose and are subject to fees
competitively determined.

The Corparation is invelved in various kinds of disputes and legal
proceedings that have arisen in the course of its business, including
pending litigation, environmental remediation, taxes, and other
claims. It is the Corporation’s opinicn, after consultation with legal
counsel, that additional liahilities, if any, resulting from these
matters are not expected to have a material adverse gffect on the
Corporation’s quarterly or annual operating results and cash flows
when rasclved in a future period.

Significant Customer

One office furniture customer accounted for approximately 1%,
12%, and 12% of consolidated net sales in 2007, 20086, and 2005,
respectively.

Operating Segment Information

In accordance with SFAS Ne. 131, "Disclosures about Segments
of an Enterprise and Related Information,” management views the
Corporation as being in two operating segments: office furniture
and hearth products, with the former being the principal segment.
The otfice furniture segment manufactures and markets a broad
line of metal and wood commercial and home office furniture,
which includes storage products, desks, credenzas, chairs, tables,
bookcases, freestanding office partitions and panel systems, and
other related products. The hearth products segment manufactures
and markets a broad line of gas, electric, and wood-burning
fireplaces, inserts, stoves, facings, and accessorias, principally

for the home.

For purposes of segment reperting, intercormpany sales transfers
between segments are not material, and operating profit is income
before income taxes exclusive of certain unallocated corporate
expenses. These unallocated corporate expenses include the net
costs of the Corporation’s corporate operaticns, intergst income, and
interest expense. Management views interest income and expense
as corporate financing costs and not as an operating segment cost.
in addition, management applies an effective income tax rate to its
consolidated income before income taxes s¢ income taxes are not

reported or viewed internally on a segment basis. ldentifiable
assets by segment are those assets applicable to the respective
industry segments, Corporate assets consist principally of cash and
cash equivalents, short-term investments, and corperate office real
estate and related equipment.

Mo geographic information for revenues from external customers
or for long-lived assets is disclosed since the Corporation's primary
market and capital investments are concentrated in the United States.

Reportable segment data reconciled to the consolidated financial
statements for the years ended 2007, 2006, and 2005, is as follows
for continuing operations:

itn thousands) 2007 2008 2005
Net sales:
Office furniture 52,108,439 $2.077.040 §1,838.386
Hearth products 462,033 602,763 554 930
52,570,472 32,679,803 $2,433316
Operating profit:
Office furniturg 840! § 194,692 § 181,811 § 177487
Hearth products' 36,444 58,699 74,822
Total operating profit 231,136 240,510 252,309
Unallocated corporate expenses (53,992| (47,108} 136,424}
Income belore income taxes $ 177144 § 193405 § 215,885
Depraciation and amaortization
expense;
Office furniture $ 49,294 3 48,753 & 43967
Hearth products 14,453 16,558 15,275
General corporate 4,426 4,197 6,272
$ 68173 ¢ 63503 § 65514
Capital expenditures:
Office furniture $ 47408 § 42128 § 27760
Hearth products 8,736 11,093 8,498
General corporate 2,770 6,705 5,544
$ 58914 § 595924 § 41802
ldentifiable assets:
Office furniture $ 724447 § 748285 § 617591
Hearth products 356,273 359,646 361,668
General corporate 126,256 118,428 161,112
$1,206,976 $1,226,359 $1,140,271

{a} Inciuded in oparating profit for the office furniture segment are pretax charges of 8.7 milhon,
£2.8 milfion, and $3.5 mithon, for closing of facdites and wnparment charges in 2007, 2008,
and 2005, respectively.

(bl Includes minonty intarest.

{c) Included in operating profit for the hearth products segment are pretax charges of $1.1 mihion
for closing facihes in 2007
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following sable presents certain unaudited guarterly financial information for eacn of the past 12 quarters. In the opinion of the
Corporation’s management, ihis information has been prepared on the same Dasis as ihe consclidated iinancial siatemenis appearing

elsewhere in this report and includes all adjustmenis (consisting only of normal recurring accruals) necessary to present fairly the financial

results set forth herein. Results of operations for any previous quarier are noi necessarily indicative of results for any future perioc.

Firsi Second Trurg Fourih
{fr: thousanls, @CeO: 08T share 0aial Quariat Quarter Quariar Ouarer
Year-End 2007
Net sales £609,200 $618,160 $674,628 $£668,484
Cost of producis sold 402,500 402,523 434,385 425,289
Gross profit 206,700 215,637 240,243 243,195
Selling and administialive e<Densas 170,814 169,559 176,904 185,052
Restruciuiing related cnarges (income) (136) 728 4,264 4,932
QOperating mcome 36,022 45,350 59,075 53,211
Interest income (expense) - net (4,036} {4,578) (4,489) (3,829)
Zarnings from conunumg operatons before iNcome 1axes arkl mINonty mierest 31,986 40,772 54,586 49,382
Income 1285 11,363 14,404 19,342 12,032
Minonty nterest in earnings of a subsiciary (28} {25} (63) {163)
income from contmung operatons 20,651 26,393 35,307 37,613
Discantinued operations, less apphicable 1exes 30 484 - -
MNet income $ 20,681 $ 26,877 $ 35,307 $ 37,513
Net mcome from continung operations — basic s 43 5 .56 5 76 $ B2
Net income from discontinued aperations - basic .00 .01 - -
MNer income per common share - basic S 43 ] 57 s .76 s .82
Weighteg-average common shares outstancing — 0asic 47,996 46,937 46,256 45,550
MNat mcome from continuing operations — diluted $ 43 s .56 5 76 3 B2
Met income from discontinued operatons - diluted .00 a1 - -
Net mncome per common share — diluted $ A3 H] 57 s 16 [ B2
Weighted-average common sharas ouistanding - diluted 48,278 47,199 46,487 45,775
As a Percentage of Net Sales
Mei sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Gross profit 33.9 349 35.6 36.4
Selling and adminisirative expenses 28.0 274 26.2 237
Resiructuiing relaied charges 0.0} 0.1 0.6 0.7
Operating income 5.9 1.3 8.8 8.0
Income taxes 19 2.3 2.9 18
Income from conunuing operatcns 3.4 4.3 5.2 5.6
Disconunued operations, less apphcable taxes 0.0 0.1 - -
Net income 3.4 43 52 5.6
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

First Second Third Fourth
ftn thousands, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Cuarter Quarter
Year-End 2006
Net sales $645,665 $667,706 $684,317 $682,215
Cost of products sold 416,610 434,060 447,587 454,625
Gross profit 228,955 233.646 236,730 227,590
Selling and administrative expenses 181,188 184,806 176,134 175,548
Restructuring related charges {income} 1,719 228 (27 909
Operating income 46,408 48,612 60,623 51,133
Interest income (expense) - net (1,108} (3,425} 4,111 (4,540}
Earnings from continuing operations before income taxes and rminority interest 44 940 45,187 56,512 45,593
Income taxes!'! 16,403 16,483 20,627 10,147
Minority interest In earnings of & subsidiary {39 {22) (24) (25)
Income from continuing operations 28,576 28,716 35,909 36,471
Discontinued operations, less applicable taxes {108) {64 (147) (5,980
Net mcome $ 28,470 $ 28,652 $ 35,762 $ 30,491
Net income from continuing operations - basic 3 B5 $ E6 3 73 $ 78
Met income from discontinued operations — basic (.00} (R {00 .13
Net income per common share - basic 3 .55 $ 56 $ 73 $ 63
Weighted-average common shares cutstanding - basic 51,836 51,009 49,324 48,069
Net income from continuing operations — diluted 3 bh % b6 g 72 $ 75
Net income from discontinued operations — diluted (.00} (.00} {.00) (12
Net income per common share - diluted 3 .Bb $ 56 $ 72 kS 63
Weighted-average common shares cutstanding - diluted 52,229 51,339 49,692 48,363

As a Percentage of Net Sales

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Gross profit 35.5 35.0 346 33.4
Selling and administrative expenses 28.1 27.7 257 257
Restructunng related charges 0.3 0.0 0.0} 0.1
Operating income 7.2 7.3 89 75
Income taxes 2.5 25 3.0 15
income from continuing operations 4.4 4.3 5.2 53
Discontinued operations, less applicable 1axes 0.0} 0.0} 0.0} 0.9
Net income 4.4 4.3 5.2 4.5

(1) The Corporauon recorded 8 $4.1 mullion tax benefir i the 4th quarter of 2006 as discussed in the "lncome Taxes" footnote to the financial statemenis.
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Fus: Second Thad Fourtn
I thousands. excent ner Shave datal Cuarter Quiatier Cuarter Quarter
Yaar-End 2005
Net sales 5558,168 $38%,620 $628,291 $657.237
Cost of products sold 363,135 376,169 393,200 416,967
Gross profit 195,029 213,451 235,091 240,270
Se'ling and adrinisiraiive expenses 154,244 158,936 170,827 179,650
Rasiructunng related charges - - 1,071 2,391
Operating ncome 40,785 54,515 63,183 58229
Interest income (expensel - nei 55 ag 1498) {492)
Farmngs from contmuing operations before income taxes and nminority interest 40,8240 54 613 62 685 57,737
Income taxes 14,498 19,386 22,251 21,580
Minoniy ierest in earmings o a subsidiary - - (11} 5
Income from coninuing operatons 26,342 35,227 40,445 36,152
Discontinued operations, less applicable taxes 1220] (242] 116 (400}
Ner income $ 26,122 5 34885 $ 40,561 § 35752
Nei mcome from continwing operations - basic S 48 ) 54 % 74 s .68
et income irom discontinued operations — basic Q1) {01 00 on
Net ncome par common share — basic % 27 3 63 S 74 3 57
Weighted-average common shares ouisianding - basic 55,176 55,121 55,012 53,278
Ne! wcome from continuing operations — dhluted g 47 3 53 ) 73 k3 67
net income from disconunued operatons - diluied i 00} { 00} 0o .00}
Net mncome per comimon share — diluted S 47 5 63 S 73 3 67
Weighted-average comman shares outstanding - diluted 55,661 55513 55,447 53,693
As a Percentage of Net Sales
Mei sales 100 0% 100 0% P00 0% 100 0%
Gross arofiz 349 362 374 36.6
Selling and aciministrative expenses 276 270 272 273
Restruciuring related charges - - 07 04
Operauing income 73 g2 i0 1 89
Income taxes 28 33 35 33
Income from continuing operaions 4.7 60 6.4 55
Discanunued operaiions, less acplicahle 1axes 0.0 {oR0)] 0.0 Q1
Nel ncome &7 59 8.5 54
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SELCCTED FINANCIAL DATA — FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Per Common Share Data (Basic and Dilutive)
Income from continuing operations - basic $ 2.57 $ 259 % 2.53 5 1.99 $ 1.69
Income from continuing operations — diluted 2.55 2.57 2.51 1.97 1.68
Net income — basic 258 2.46 2.51 1.99 1.68
Net income - diluted 257 2.45 2.50 1.97 1.68
Cash dividends .78 72 62 .58 52
Book valug — year-end 10.24 10.35 11.46 12.10 12.19
Net working capital — year-end 2.33 3.04 2.48 1.96 3.71
QOperating Results {Thousands of Dollars)
Net sales $2,570,472 $2,679,803 $2,433,316 $2,084,435 $1.755,728
Gross profit as a % of net sales 35.2% 34.6% 36.3% 36.0% 36.4%
Interest expense $ 18,161 § 14,323 $ 2,355 $ 838 3 2,970
Income from continuing operations 119,864 129,672 138,166 113,660 98,105
Income from continuing operations as a % of net sales 4.7% 4.8% 5.7% 5.5% 5.6%
Discontinued operations @ $ 514 & 6297 $ {(746) % (78) -
Net income 120,378 123,375 137,420 113,682 98,105
Net income as a % of net sales 4.7% 4.6% 5.6% 5.4% 5.6%
Cash dividends $ 36,408 $ 36,028 $ 33841 $ 32,023 $ 30299
% return ¢n average shareholders” eguity 25.2% 22.5% 21.8% 16.5% 14.5%
Depreciation and amortization $ 68,173 $ 69503 $ 65514 $ 66,703 5 72772
Distribution of Net Income
% paid to shareholders 30.2% 29.2% 24.6% 28.2% 30.9%
% reinvested in business 69.8% 70.8% 75.4% 71.8% 69.1%
Financial Position (Thousands of Dollars)
Current assets § 489,072 § 504174 $ 486,598 $ 374,579 $ 462,122
Current liahilities 384,461 368,542 358,174 266,250 245818
Working capital 104,611 145,632 128,424 108,329 216,306
Current ratio 1.27 1.41 1.36 1.41 1.88
Total assets $1,206,976 $1.226,359 $1,140,271 $1,021,657 $1.021.826
% return on beginning assets employed 15.8% 18.1% 21.2% 17.5% 14.7%
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations $ 281,091 $ 285,974 $ 103,869 % 3,645 % 4,126
Shareholders’ equity 458,908 495,919 593,944 669,163 709,889
Current Share Data
Number of shares outstanding at year-end 44,834,519 47,905 351 51,848,591 55,303,323 b§,238,619
Weighted-average shares outstanding during year - basic 46,684,774 50,059,443 54,649,199 57,127,110 58,178,739
Weighted-average shares outstanding during year ~ diluted 46,925,161 50,374,758 55,033,741 57,577,630 58,645,363
Number of shareholders of record at year-end 7,625 7,475 6,702 6,466 6,416
Other Operational Data
Capital expenditures (thousands of dollars) $ 58,568 $ B89N $ 38912 $ 32,417 § 34,842
Members {emplaoyees) at year-end 13,271ib) 14,170(p) 12,6040 10,589%! 8.926

fa} Component reported as discontinued operations acquired in 2004

fbi Includes acquisitions completed during the fiscal year,
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OTHER INVESTOR INFORMATION

COMPARISON OF FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE RETURN
$220.00

$200.00 e

£180.00 \«M
$160.00 //\\ \

$140.00 R —

/_' =
$120.00 -
/

$100.00

380.00

$60.00

$40.00 | | 1 | |

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
=== HN| Corporation — S4P 500 ——cas (OF|G*

Annual Retum 2002 2003 2004 2005 2008 2007
HMI Corporation $100.0 $160.1 $161.3 $208.4 $1710 %1395
SXP500 $100.0 51289 $143 3 $150.3 5140 $184.8
OFIG" $1000 £131.8 $i3756 31452 $186.9 51618

' Ihe Cfce Furniue nausiry Group (OFIGT 1s « compasiie pees index consiructed by ine Corporstion ftis weighted by marke! capirahization and compnsed of 1ha following companies Herman hilier In¢
simball intectalional inc . Texmon Carparation, and Steeicase nc 1S weghted each quarter according 1o the marke! caprtahialton of 48 coNsHIuenis on tie st trading dav o the Corperation’s proi
hacal quarter

Total rerurns for HMI Corporauon. S& P 500 and OFIG gre depicted at the end of Carporation’s hscal years The total return assumes $i00 00 invested 1 wach of HNI Comoraion's Commuon Stack, the
S&P 500 and the Oftos Furmiure indusiry Group Stocts on Decemper 27 2002, plus furthar reinvestmen: of dnicends on the date of umuend pavment 58P 500 returns assumez 58 P 500 dvidands are
oand and renvested on the last Hading dav of the Corposation’s hiscal quarler

The compardive performance at the Corporation’s Comman Stock agaiist the ndenes as dapucted i this graph s dependent on the price of stock af 3 parhcula measurement pomtan time Singe ndwrdut
stochs gre more valalie thdn broader stock mdavas. the percetved comparalve perfarmance of the Corporatian’'s Common Sock may vary based on the steength or weaknoss of the stock prce at the new
migasurement pont used o edeh futuie annual 1eport graptt For ths reason. the Corporation dogs not beleve that this graph should be considerec 2§ the sole indicator of e Corporation’s perlormance

Common Stock Market Prices and Dividends Common Stock Market Price and Price/Earnings
{(Unaudited) Ratio (Unaudited)
QUARTERLY 2007-2005 FISCAL YEARS 2007-2003
Dineiend o Diluted i
2007 oy Quaries High Low 'nav' LSE;:;: L Mot Puce Farnings - Price/Eanmngs Faa
rear Hign Loww sor Shate High Low
st $51.65 $43.95 $135 007 $5165 $33.79  $257 20 13
2nd 47.94 40.14 195 2006 5168 3824 245 25 16
3rd 45.35 35.56 195 2005 62 41 38 80 250 25 18
Ath 44.32 33.79 195 2004 45 71 35 25 197 23 18
Total dividends pard $ .78 2003 4412 24.65 1.68 26 15
Dwidends Five-year average 24 15
2005 Dy Cuarier High Low per Share
15t 36168 $54.83 $ 18
2nd 59,70 44 68 18
3rd 26 14 38.34 18
ath 4831 41.05 .18
Total drvidends pard $ 72
Drvipends
7005 by Quarter High Low per Shate
151 34570 $38.80 $.155
2nd 54.23 44 65 155
3rd B0 23 50 92 155
dth 62 41 46 94 155
Total dnidends paid § 62
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements in this report that are not strictly histerical, including
staterments as to plans, outleck, objectives, and future financial
performance, are "forward-looking”™ statements, within the meaning
of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, made pursuant to the safe harbor
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Refoerm Act of 1995.
Words such as "anticipate,” "believe,” “could,” “confident,”
"estimate,” “expect,” "forecast,” "hope,” "intend,” “likely,” “may,
"plan,” "possible,” "potential,” “predict,” "project,” “should,”
"will,” and variations of such words and similar expressions identify
forward-locking statements. Forward-looking statements involve
known and unknown risks, which may cause the Corporation’s
actual results in the future to differ materially from expected results.

"

These risks include, without limitation:

* the Corporation’s ability to realize financial benefits from its
{a} price increases, (b) cost containment and business simplification
initiatives for the entire Corporation, (c) investments in strategic
acquisitions, new products, and brand building, (d} investments
in distribution and rapid continuous improvement, (e} repurchases
of common stock, (f) ability to maintain its effective tax rate, and
{g) consolidation and logistical realignment initiatives;

s yncertainty related to the availability of cash to fund future growth;

» lower than expected demand for the Corporation's products due
to uncertain political and economic conditions, including, with
respeact to the Corporation's hearth products, the pretracted
decline in the housing market,

* |ower industry growth than expected,

* major disruptions at our key facilities or in the supply of key raw
materials, components, or finished goods;

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Curing the normal course of business, the Corporation ts subjected
to market risk associated with interest rate movements. Interest
rate risk arises from our variable interest debt obligations. For
information related to the Corporation’s long-term debt, refer to the
Long-Term Debt disclosure in the Notes to Consclidated Financial
Statements filed as part of this report. The Corporaticn does not
currently have any significant foreign currency exposure.

The Corporation is exposed to risks arising from price changes for
certain direct matenals and assembly components used in its
operations. The largest such costs incurred by the Corporation are
for steel, plastics, textiles, wood particieboard and cartoning. Steel
is the most significant raw material used in the manufacturing of
products. The market price of plastics and textiles in particular are
sansitive to the cost of oil and natural gas. Oil and natural gas prices

* uncertainty related to disruptions of business by terrorism, military
action, epidemic, acts of God, or other Force Majeure events;

* competitive pricing pressure from foreign and domestic competitors;

* higher than expected costs and lower than expected supplies of
materials {inciuding steel and petroleum-based materials);

« higher than expected costs for energy and fuel,
» changes in the mix of products sold and customers purchasing;

» restrictions imposed by the terms of the Corporation’s revelving
credit facility and note purchase agreement; and

» currency fluctuations and other factors described in the
Corporation's annual and guarterly reports filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commissicn on Forms 10-K and 10-Q.

The factors identified above are believed to be important faciors
{but not necessarily all of the important factors) that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those expressed in any
forward-looking statement. Unpredictable or unknown factors
could also have rmaterial adverse effects on the Corporation. All
forward-looking staterments included in this report are expressly
qualified in their entirety by the feregoing cautionary statements.
Because of the foregoing risks, as well as other variables affecting
the Corporation’s operating results, past financial performance
may not be a reliable indicator of future performance, and historicat
trends should not be used to anticipate results or trends in future
periods. The Corperation undertakes no obligation t¢ update,
amend, or clarify any forward-looking statement, whether as a
result of new information, future events, or otherwise, except as
required by applicable law.

have increased sharply in the last several years, and as a result,
the cost of plastics and textiles has increased. The cost of wood
particleboard has been impacted by continued downsizing of
production capacity in the wood market as wel! as increased cost
in transportation related to oil increases.

The Corporation works to offset these increased costs through
global sourcing initiatives and price increases on its products;
hawever, margins have been negatively impacted due to the lag
betweean cost increases and the Corporation’s ability to increass
its prices. The Corporation believes future market price increases
on its key direct materials and assembly components are likely.
Consequently, it views the prospect of such increases as an
outlook risk to the business.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF HNI CORPORATION:

In our opinion, the accempanying consolidated balance sheets and
related consolidated statements of iIncome, shareholders” equity

and cash flows, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
posiuon of HNI Cerporation and 11s subsidiarias {the "Corporation”}

at December 29, 2007, December 30, 2006, and December 31, 2005,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the penod ended December 29, 2067 in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America. Alse in our opinion, the Corporation mantained, in all
matenal respects, effective internal contrel over financial reporting as
of December 29, 2007, based on criteria estabhshed in /ntermal Controf
— Integrated Framewaork issued by the Commuttee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (CQSO). The Corporation’s
management 1s respensible for these financial statements, for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
i1s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included i the Management Report on Internal Control
Cver Financial Reporting. Cur responsibility 1s to express opinions on
these financial staterments and on the Corporation's internal control
over financial reporung based on our integrated audits. We conductad
our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstaternent
and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all matenal respects. Our audits of the financial statements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit

of internal control over financial reporting icluded obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audits provide a rezasonable basis for our opinions.
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As discussed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
the Corperation changed the manner in which it accounts for share-
based compensation effective January 1, 2006 and the manner in
which obligations associated with defined benefit pension and other
postretirement plans are presented effective December 30, 2006.

A company’s internal control over fingncial reporting 1s a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the rehability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’'s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (1) provide reasonable assurance that iransactions
are recorded as necessary to parmit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorzations of management and directors of the
company; and {iil} provide reasanable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, of disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of 1ts inherent limitauons, internal centrol over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, prejections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may becomea inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of comphance with the policies or
procedures may deternorate.

As described in the Managemeant Report on internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, management has excluded Harman Stove
Company {"Harman"} from 1ts assessment of internal contrel over
financial reporting as of December 29, 2007 because it was acquired
by the Corporation in a business purchase combination during 2007
We have also excluded Harman from our audit of internal control
over financial reporting. Harman's total assets and total revenues
represent approximately 3% and less than 1%, respectively, of the
related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the
year ended December 28, 2007.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
Chicago, lllmois
February 25, 2008




MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of HNI Corporation is responsibie for establishing

and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Rules 13a-15{f) and 15d-15{f) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, HNI Corporation's internal cantrol over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
written policies and procedures that:

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reascnable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispasitions of
the assets of HNI Corporation;

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded

&s necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, and that receipts and expenditures

of HNI Corporation are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of HNI Cerporation;
and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of assets
that could have & material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Internal control over financial reporting includes the controls
themselves, monitoring (including internal auditing practices), and
actions taken to correct deficiencies as identified.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject t©
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may detericrate.

On November 13, 2007, the Corporation completed the acquisition

of Harman Stove Company (“Harman”) as discussed in the Business
Combination footnote to the Corporation’s consolidated financial
statements. Management excluded Harman from its assessment of the
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as it was acquired
during the fiscal year. Harman's total assets and total revenueas represent
3% and less than 1%, respectively, of the consclidated financial
statement amounts as of and for the year endec December 29, 2007.

Management assassed the effectiveness of HNI Corporation’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 29, 2007
Management based this assessment on criteria for effective internal
control over financial reporting described in internal Control ~ Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission. Management's assessment included
an evaluation of the design of the Corporation’s internal control over
financial reporting and testing of the operational effectiveness of the
Corporation's internal control over financial reporting. Management
revigwed the results of its assessment with the Audit Committee of
our Board of Directars.

Based on this assessment, management determined that, as of
December 29, 2007, HNI Corporation maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting.

Management's assessment of the effectiveness of the Corporation’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 29, 2007

has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in its report which
appears herein.

MG

STAN A_ ASKREN
Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer

A e

JERALD K. DITTMER
Vice President and
Chief Financiai Officer

February 22, 2008
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A MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS:

The pillars of the HNE Corporation Vision statement straightforward management style and conservative
(as shown on page 44) are operating profitability, creating  financial management. We also believe shareholder
long-term shareholder value, pursuing profitable growth, interests are best served by well-informed, active and

delivering quality in all we do, being a great place to work engaged Board members, and this is what each of

and. above all, being a responsible corporate citizen. us strives 1o be.

Our role as members of the Board of Directors is to do We are proud to serve on this Board. We are committed
our utmost to easure the realization of the NI Vision. to ensuring the highest standards of ethics and

We do this by supporting HNI Corporation’s sound corporate governance in all we do. We thank you for
policies and practices, clear and open communications, your continued support.

Sincercely,

THE HN1 CORPORATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

BOARO OF DIRECTORS

Stan A. Askren
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer,
HNI Corporation

Mary H. Bell

Vice President,
Building Consiruction
Products Division,
Caterpillar Inc,

Miguel M. Calado
Director and Chigl
Financial Officer,
Hovione, SA

Gary M. Christensen

Lead Director,
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Advisor, Wind Point Partners
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Vice Charman,

Corporate Leadership Center
Independent Business and
Financial Advisor

John A. Halbrook
Chairman,
Woodward Governor
Company

James R. Jenkins
Senior Vice Prestdent
and Ganeral Counsel,
Deere & Company

Dennis J. Martin
Independent Business
Consultant

Retired Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer,
General Binding Corporaticn

Larry B. Porcellate
Independent Business
Consultant

Former Chief Executive Qfficer,
ICI Paints Narth America

Joseph E. Scalzo
President and

Chief Executive Officer,
WhiteWave and
Marningstar Foods, LLC

Abbie J. Smith

Chaired Professor,

The University of Chicago
Graduate School of Business

Brian E. Stern
Director,
Starboard Capital
Partners, LLC

Ronald V. Waters, [l
Director, President and
Chiet Operating Officer,
LoJack Corporation

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Audit
Ronald V. Waters, IIt,
Chairperson

Miguel M. Calado
James R. Jenkins
Joseph E. Scalzo

Human Resources
and Compensation
Abbie J. Smith,
Chairperson

Gary M. Christensen
John A Halbrook
Larry B. Porcellato

Public Pelicy and
Corporate Governance
Dennis J. Martin,
Chairperson

Mary H. Ball
Cheryl A. Francis
Brian E. Stern

HNICORPORATION OFFICERS

Stan A. Askren
Chairman, President and
Chief Exacutive Officer

Marshall H. Bridges
Treasurer and Vice Fresident,
Mergers and Acquisitions

Gary L. Carlson
Vice President, Member
and Community Relations

Jerald K. Dittmer
Vice President and
Chiet Financial Officer

Robert J. Driessnack
Vice President,
Controller

Tamara $. Feldman
Vice President,
Financial Reporting

Robert D. Hayes
Vice President,
Business Analysis and
General Auditor

Douglas L. Jones
Vice President and
Chief Information Qfficer

Jettrey D, Lorenger
Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary

OPERATING COMPANIES

Timothy J. Anderson
President,
Omni Workspace Company

Farida Chow
President,
Lamex

Bradley D. Determan
Executive Vice President,
HNI Corporation
President,

Hearth & Home Technologies Inc.

David W. Gardner
President,
Paali Inc.

Eric K. Jungbluth
Executive Vice President,
HN! Corporation
President,

The HON Company

Marco V. Molinari
Executiva Vice President,
HNI Corporation
President,

HNi international Inc.

Jean M. Reyrolds
President,
Maxon Furniture Inc.

Eugene Sung

Executive Vice President,
HNI Corporaticn
President,

Allsteel Inc.

Donald C. Wharton
President,
The Guniocke Company LLC
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CUR VISION

We, the members of HN1 Corporation, are dedicated to creating long-term value

for all of our stakeholders, to exceeding our customers’ expectations and o making

our company a great place o work. We will always treat each other, as well as customers,

suppliers, shareholders and our communities, with fairness and respect, Our success

depends upon business simplification, rapid continuous improvement and innovation

in everything we do, individual and collective integrity, and the relentless pursuit

of the following long-standing beliefs:

WE WILL BE PROFITABLE.

We pursue mutually profitable relationships with
custemers and suppliers. Only when our company
achieves an adequate profit can the other elements

of this Vision be realized.

WE WILL CREATE LONG-TERM VALUE FOR SHAREHOLDERS.

We create long-term value for sharcholders by earning
financial returns significantly greater than our cost of
capital and pursuing profitable growth opportunities.
We will safeguard our sharcholders” equity by maintain-
ing a strong balance sheet to allow flexibility in
responding to a continuously changing market and

business environment.

WE WILL PURSUE PROFITABLE GROWTH.
We pursuc profitable growth on a global basis in order
to provide continued job opportunities for members

and financial success for all stakeholders.

WE WILL BE A SUPPLIER OF QUALITY PREDUCTS AND SERVICES.

We provide reliable products and services of high quality
and brand value 1o our end-users. Our producets and
services exceed our customers' expectations and enable

our distributors and our company to make a fair profit,

44 HMI CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2007

WE WILL BE A GREAT PLACE TD WORK.

We pursue a participative environment and support

a culture that encourages and recognizes excellence,
active involvement, ongoing learning and contributions
of cach member: that seeks out and values diversity; and
that attracts and retains the most capable people who
work safely, are motivated and are devoted to making

our company and our members successiul.

WE WILL BE ARESPONSIBLE CORPORATE CITIZEN.

We conduct our business in a way that sustains the well-
being of society, our environment and the economy in
which we live and work, We follow ethical and legal
business practices. Our company supports our volunteer
efforts and provides charitable contributions so that we
can actively participate in the civic, cultural, educational,

environmental and governmental affairs of our society.

70 OUR STAKEHOLDERS:

When our company is appreciated by its members,
favored by its customers, supported by its suppliers,
respected by the public and admired by its shareholders,

this Vision is fulfilled.




Valassis.,

VALASSIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC. .~
19975 VICTOR PARKWAY *
LIVONIA, MI 48152 4 85

AND PROXY STATEMENT

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS, ‘4"‘1/[43( T
COpy v

TO BE HELD APRIL 24, 2008 N

It is my pleasure to invite you to this year’s annual meeting of stockholders of Valassis Communications, Inc., which will beeg
held at Valassis Corporate Headquarters, 19975 Victor Parkway, Livonia, Michigan 48152 on the 24th day of April, 2008, at 9:00 a.m.
Eastern Daylight Time). The purpose of the annual meeting is to:

(I} elect nine directors to our Board of Directors to held office until our next annual meeting of stockholders or until their
respective successors are duly elected and qualified;

(2) approve the Valassis Communications, Inc. 2008 Senior Executives Semi-Annual Bonus Plan;
(3) approve the Valassis Communications, Inc. 2008 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan;

(4) ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31,
2008; and

(5} consider any other appropriate matters as may properly come before the annual meeting or any adjournment or
adjournments thereof.

Our Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on February 29, 2008 as the record date for the determination of the
Etockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the annual meeting. Each share of our common stock is entitled to one vote on all
matters presented at the annual meeting.

ALL HOLDERS OF OUR COMMON STOCK (WHETHER THEY EXPECT TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING OR
NOT) ARE REQUESTED TO COMPLETE, SIGN, DATE AND RETURN PROMPTLY THE PROXY CARD ENCLOSED WITH
THIS NOTICE OR VOTE BY TELEPHONE OR ON THE INTERNET ACCORDING TO THE INSTRUCTIONS ON THE PROXY
CARD.

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS FOR THE STOCKHOLDER
MEETING TO BE HELD ON APRIL 24, 2008: THE PROXY STATEMENT AND OUR 2007 ANNUAL REPORT ARE
AVAILABLE AT WWW. VALASSIS.COM.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

TODD WISELEY
Secretary

March 20,2008 * 5 L
REST AVALABLE coPy
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VALASSIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
PROXY STATEMENT
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD APRIL 24, 2008

INTRODUCTION

This proxy statement is being furnished to stockholders of record of Valassis Communications, Inc. (“Valassis,” the
“Company,” “we,” “us” or “our”) as of February 29, 2008 in connection with the solicitation by our Board of Directors of proxies for
the 2008 annual meeting of stockholders to be held at Valassis Corporate Headquarters, 19975 Victor Parkway, Livonia, Michigan
48152 on April 24, 2008 at 9:00 a.m. (Eastern Daylight Time), or at any and all adjournments thereof, for the purposes stated in the
notice of annual meeting. The approximate date of mailing of this proxy statement and the enclosed form of proxy is March 20, 2008,

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS
ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING AND VOTING

What is the purpose of the annual meeting?

At our annual meeting, stockholders will act upon the matters outlined in the notice of annual meeting on the cover page of this
proxy statement, including the election of directors, the approval of the Valassis Communications, Inc. 2008 Senior Executives Semi-
Annual Bonus Plan, the approval of the Valassis Communications, Inc. 2008 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan and the
ratification of our independent auditors.

Who is entitled to vote at the meeting?

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on February 29, 2008 are entitled to receive notice of and to participate in
the annual meeting. If you were a stockholder of record on that date, you will be entitled to vote all of the shares that you held on that
date at the meeting, or at any postponements or adjournments of the meeting. The Company will post all of the voting results on its
Web site at www.valassis.com within 14 calendar days following the annual meeting.

What are the voting rights of the holders of our common stock?

Each share of our common stock, par value $.01 per share, outstanding on February 29, 2008 will be entitled to one vote on each
matter considered at the annual meeting.

Who can attend the annual meeting?

All stockholders of our common stock as of February 29, 2008, or their duly appointed proxies, may attend the annual meeting,
and each may be accompanied by one guest. Registration will begin at 8:00 a.m., and seating will begin at 8:30 a.m. If you attend,
please note that you may be asked to present valid picture identification, such as a driver’s license or passport.

Please also note that if you hold your shares in “street name” (that is, through a broker or other nominee), you will need to bring
a copy of a brokerage statement reflecting your stock ownership as of February 29, 2008 and check in at the registration desk at the
meeting.

What constitutes a quorum?

The presence at the meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the shares of our common stock, issued and
outstanding as of February 29, 2008, will constitute a quorum. As of February 29, 2008, we had 48,041,472 shares of our common
stock outstanding. Therefore, the presence of the holders of our common stock representing at least 24,020,737 votes will be required
to establish a quorum.

Proxies received but indicating abstentions and broker non-votes will be included in the calculation of the number of votes
considered to be present at the annual meeting.




How do I vote?
By Mail

Be sure to complete, sign and date the proxy card and return it to us in the prepaid envelope. If you are a stockholder and you
return your signed proxy card but do not indicate your voting preferences, the persons named in the proxy card will vote the shares
represented by that proxy as recommended by the Board of Directors.

By Telephone or on the Internet
Our telephone and Internet voting procedures for stockholders are designed to authenticate your identity, to allow you to give
your voting instructions and to confirm that those instructions have been properly recorded.

You can vote by calling the toll-free telephone number on your proxy card. Please have your proxy card in hand when you call.

The Web site for Internet voting is www.cesvote.com. Please have your proxy card handy when you go online. As with
telephone voting, you can confirm that your instructions have been properly recorded.

Telephone and Internet voting facilities for stockholders will be available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. If you vote by
telephone or on the Internet, you do not have to return your proxy card.

In Person at the Annual Meeting

All stockholders may vote in person at the annual meeting. You may also be represented by another person at the annual
meeting by executing a proper proxy designating that person. “Street name” stockholders who wish to vote at the meeting will need to
obtain a proxy form from the institution that holds their shares.

Our Board of Directors has appointed National City Bank, our transfer agent and registrar, to serve as our Inspector of Election
and tabuiate and certify the votes at the annual meeting,

Can I change my vote after I return my proxy card?

Yes. Even after you have submitted your proxy, you may revoke or change your vote at any time before the proxy is exercised
by filing with our Corporate Secretary either a notice of revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing a later date or by voting another
proxy by telephone or on the Internet at a later date. The powers of the proxy holders will be suspended if you attend the meeting in
person and so request, although attendance at the meeting will not by itself revoke a previously granted proxy.

What are our Board of Directors’ recommendations?

Unless you give other instructions on your proxy card, or by telephone or on the Internet, the persons named as proxy holders on
the proxy card will vote in accordance with the recommendations of our Board of Directors. QOur Board of Directors’ recommendation
is set forth together with the description of each item in this proxy statement. In summary, our Board of Directors recommends a vote;

. Jor election of the nominated slate of directors (see Item [);

. Jfor approval of the Valassis Communications, Inc. 2008 Senior Executives Semi-Annual Bonus Plan (see Item 2);

’ Jfor approval of the Valassis Communications, Inc. 2008 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan (see Item 3); and

. Jfor ratification of the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent auditors for fiscal year ending
December 31, 2008 (see Item 4).

With respect to any other matter that properly comes before the annual meeting, the proxy holders will vote as recommended by
our Board of Directors or, if no recommendation is given, in their own discretion.

What vote is required to approve each item?

Election of Directors. For the 2008 annual meeting of stockholders, the affirmative vote of a plurality of the votes cast at the
meeting is required for the election of directors. This means that the director nominee with the most votes for a particular slot is
elected for that slot. A properly executed proxy indicating “WITHHOLD AUTHORITY™ with respect to the election of one or more
directors will not be voted with respect to the director or directors indicated, although it will be counted for purposes of determining
whether there is a quorum.

We have recently amended our by-laws and Corporate Governance Guidelines to provide that, effective after the 2008 annual
meeting of stockholders, in an uncontested election, each director must be elected by the majority of votes cast with respect to such
director (the number of shares voted “for” a director nominee must exceed the number of votes cast “against” that nominee). Ifa
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hominee does not receive a majority of votes cast, such nominee will submit a contingent, irrevocable resignation, which our Board of
Directors may or may not accept.

Other items. For each other item, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares represented in person or by
proxy and entitled to vote on the item will be required for approval. A properly executed proxy indicating “ABSTAIN" with respect to
pny such matter will not be voted, although it will be counted for purposes of determining whether there is a quorum. Accordingly, an
hbstention will have the effect of a negative vote.

If you hold your shares in “street name” through a broker or other nominee, your broker or nominee may not be permitted to
pxercise voting discretion with respect to some of the matters to be acted upon. Therefore, if you do not give your broker or nominee
specific instructions, your shares may not be voted on those matters and will not be counted in determining the number of shares
hecessary for approval. These “broker non-votes™ will not be counted as part of the total number of votes cast on such proposals.
Therefore, a “broker non-vote” will have no effect in determining whether any given proposal has been approved by the stockhoiders.
Shares represented by such “broker non-votes” will, however, be counted in determining whether there is a quorum.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Our Board of Directors presently is comprised of nine directors. All nine directors elected at the 2008 annual meeting will serve
until our next annual meeting or until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS (PROPOSAL 1)

Set forth below is certain information with respect to each of our nominees for the office of director and each of our other
executive officers, ‘

Shares represented by proxies returned duly executed will be voted, unless otherwise specified, in favor of the following nine
nominees: Joseph B. Anderson, Jr., Patrick F. Brennan, Kenneth V. Darish, Dr. Walter H. Ku, Robert L. Recchia, Marcella A.
Sampson, Alan F. Schultz, Wallace S. Snyder and Ambassador Faith Whittlesey. All of the nominees are currently serving as
directors. Since last year’s annual meeting, our Board of Directors elected Wallace S. Snyder as a director to fiil a vacancy on the
board caused by the retirement of Barry P. Hoffman, our former Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. effective
January 1, 2008. Each nominee for director has consented to serve on our Board of Directors and will be elected by a plurality of the
votes cast at the annual meeting. 1f any (or all) such persons should be unavailable or unable to serve, the persons named in the
enclosed proxy will vote the shares covered thereby for any substitute nominee (or nominees) as our Board of Directors may select.
Stockholders may withhold authority to vote for any nominee by indicating “WITHHOLD AUTHORITY" on the proxy and by
entering the name of such nominee in the space provided for such purpose on the proxy or specifying the name of such nominee by
telephone.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” THE ELECTION OF ALL OF THE NOMINEES
NAMED IN THIS PROXY STATEMENT.

| Directors

Joseph B. Anderson, Jr., 65, has served as our director since July 2006. Mr. Anderson serves as the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of TAG Holdings, LLC, the parent company of a diverse range of businesses in the United States, Korea and China,
including the manufacture of automotive parts, plumbing products and assembly and supply chain management services. Prior to
joining TAG Holdings, Mr. Anderson was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Chivas Industries, LLC, a manufacturer of
products for the automotive industry, from 1994 until 2002. Mr. Anderson began his business career with General Motors in 1979 and
in 1990 was appointed as General Director of a GM business. Mr. Anderson currently also serves on the boards of Rite Aid
Corporation, Quaker Chemical Corporation, ArvinMeritor, Inc. and Sierra Pacific Resources. Mr. Anderson’s professional and civic
affiliations include director of the Original Equipment Suppliers Association, director of the Society of Automotive Engineers
Foundation and executive committee member of the National Association of Black Automotive Suppliers.

Patrick F. Brennan, 76, has served as our director since August 1998, After serving for 33 years in the paper industry, he retired
in December 1996 as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Consolidated Papers, Inc. (“CPI”), where under his leadership CPI
was one of the nation’s leading paper companies. Until November 2001, Mr. Brennan served as a member of the Board of Directors of
Northland Cranberries, Inc., a juice manufacturing company.

Kenneth V. Darish, 49, has served as our director since June 2001. Since September 2001, he has been the Director of Business
Operations of BBDO Detroit, a subsidiary of Omnicom, providing operational consulting services to the Creative Director. Since
February 2005, he has also served as the Chief Financial Officer of BBDO Windsor, Ontario. From September 1984 until July 2001,
Mr. Darish served as the Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of FCB Advertising-Detroit, a subsidiary of Interpublic
Group of Companies. Mr. Darish is a certified public accountant.




Dr. Walter H. Ku, Ph.D., 72, has served as our director since February 2003, Dr. Ku is an internationally known scientist in the
field of electronic systems and systems controls. He is professor of electrical and computer engineering at the University of California
San Diego, and is the founding director of the National Science Foundation Industry/University Cooperative Research Center on Ultr.
High-Speed Integrated Circuits and Systems. His extensive consulting activities and internationally recognized expettise have assiste
businesses with developing high-level international relationships and opportunities. He was a full professor at Cornell University and
the first occupant of the Naval Electronic Systems Command Research Chair Professorship at the Naval Post-Graduate School. Dr. K
also consults and teaches in China and Taiwan.

Robert L. Recchia, 51, has been our Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and our director since October
1991. During his tenure, Mr. Recchia has managed various functions at the Company, including operations, purchasing and
information technology. His current responsibilities include the financial, accounting and purchasing areas of the Company.
Mr. Recchia has been with us since 1982. Mr. Recchia is a certified public accountant with audit experience with Deloitte & Touche
LLP.

Marcella A. Sumpson, 77, has served as our director since August 1998, She retired in 1999 from Central State University in
Wilberforce, Ohio. During her 35 years of service to Central State, she served as Dean of Students and directed the Central State
University Career Services Center since 1975. She has received awards and honors for her work in the field of education and is a
recognized expert in college student placement, particularly experiential opportunities.

Alan F. Schultz, 49, has served as our director since December 1995. He is Chairman of our Board of Directors, President and
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Schultz was elected Chief Executive Officer and President in June 1998 and appointed Chairman of the
Board of Directors in December 1998. He served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer from 1996 through
1998 and served as our Executive Vice President of Sales and Marketing from 1992 through 1996. Mr. Schultz has held positions as
our Director of Insert Operations and Vice President of the Central Sales Division beginning in 1984. Mr. Schultz is a certified public
accountant with audit experience with Deloitte & Touche LLP and currently serves on the Board of Directors for both the Advertising
Council, Inc. (“Ad Council”) and R.H. Donnelley Corporation. Mr. Schultz also currently serves on the Board of Directors for the
American Advertising Federation as Treasurer.

Wallace S. Snyder, 65, has served as our director since January 2008. Mr. Snyder currently serves as the President and Chief
Executive Officer of the American Advertising Federation (the “AAF”). Mr. Snyder joined the AAF in October 1985 as Senior Vice
President, Government Relations, was promoted to Executive Vice President, Government Relations in June 1990 and became
President and Chief Executive Officer on January 1, 1992. Representing nearly 50,000 members — including 130 corporate members,
210 local ad federations and 210 college chapters — Mr. Snyder often testifies before federal and state lawmakers on issues of
importance to the advertising industry. Mr. Snyder also serves the industry as a board member of several national organizations,
including the Ad Council, the Advertising Educational Foundation and the National Advertising Review Council, which oversees
advertising self-regulation. Prior to joining the AAF, Mr. Snyder was associate director for advertising practices at the Federal Trade
Commission’s (*FTC") Bureau of Consumer Protection, where he served as principal adviser to the FTC on advertising issues. Mr.
Snyder also served as the FTC’s liaison officer to the Food and Drug Administration and worked on a number of congressional
proceedings involving the FTC. Mr. Snyder is a graduate of the University of lowa, and received his Juris Doctor degree from the
University of lowa College of Law. He is a member of the bar of the District of Columbia.

Ambassador Faith Whittlesey, 69, has served as our director since January 1992, Ambassador Whittlesey has had a long career
in law, diplomacy and government at local, state, and national levels. She currently serves as Chairman Emeritus of the American
Swiss Foundation, headquartered in New York, and previously served 19 years as Chairman of the Board of the American Swiss
Foundation. She has also served as President of Maybrook Associates since 1998. She served two tours of duty as U.S. Ambassador
to Switzerland from 1981 to 1983 and from 1985 10 1988, From 1983 to 1985, Ambassador Whittlesey was a member of the senior
White House staft. Ambassador Whittlesey is also a member of the Board of the Institute of World Politics in Washington, DC, a
graduate school of statecraft and national security affairs, where she served as Chairman for six years. Ambassador Whittlesey served
as a member of the Board of Directors and the Compensation Committee of the Sunbeam Corporation from November 1996 until
December 2002.




Additional Executive Officers

In addition to our executive officers who are listed as being directors, we (including our subsidiaries) have the following
executive officers:

Richard Herpich, 55, has served as Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketing since August 2007 and prior to that served as
Executive Vice President of U.S. Sales from December 2003 to August 2007. From June 1998 through November 2003, he served as
our Executive Vice President of Manufacturer Services. He served as National Sales Manager from January 1996 through June 1998,
Vice President, Midwest Sales Division from June 1994 through December 1995 and Account Manager from 1978 through June 1994.

William F. Hogg, Jr., 61, has served as our Executive Vice President of Manufacturing and Client Services since October 2001
and has been with us for over 25 years. Mr. Hogg led the integration process in connection with the acquisition of ADVO, Inc.
(“ADVQ"), our wholly-owned subsidiary. He served as Vice President of our Durham Printing Division from June 1983 to September
2001.

Brian Husselbee, 56, has been the President and Chief Executive Officer of NCH Marketing Services, Inc. (“NCH”) since July
1997, and was General Manager of NCH from January 1997 to July 1997. We acquired NCH in February 2003. Mr. Husselbee served
as a director of Valassis from August 1998 until February 2003, the time that the NCH acquisition was consummated.

Other Officers

Suzanne C. Brown, 48, has served as Chief Marketing Officer since 2007. Ms. Brown has more than 20 years of industry and
leadership experience, and in her current role, she was responsible for the sales and marketing integration of Valassis and ADVO.
Prior to assuming the Chief Marketing Officer role at Valassis, Ms. Brown has held a wide variety of senior leadership roles within
Valassis, including Senior Vice President of Sales Development, President and CEO of Save.com, Vice President of Internet/E-
commerce Services Division, and Sales Vice President. Her career with Valassis began in sales, and she is a member of the Valassis
Sales Hall of Fame and a recipient of the Company’s prestigious James F. Rourke Award for outstanding performance and
collaboration . Prior to joining Valassis in 1984, Ms. Brown worked for Procter & Gamble.

Johi Lieblang, 50, has served as Chief Information Officer since 2005. His responsibilities include Business

Process Improvement and Information Technology Management across the company. Since joining Valassis, Mr. Lieblang has led
numerous system development and enhancement efforts and the integration of Information Technology for the Valassis and ADVO
merger. Mr. Lieblang served as Senior Vice President and Global Account Director of LogicaCMG from 2002 to 2005. Mr. Lieblang
brought over 25 years of Information Technology experience to Valassis, including serving as a partner at Emst & Young.

Robert A. Mason, 50, has served as Chief Sales Officer since October 2007. As Chief Sales Officer, Mr. Mason has led the
implementation of our new sales structure and strategies. He served as President of ADVO since the consummation of the ADVO
acquisition on March 2, 2007 until October 2007. Previously, he served as our Vice President, Retail and Services Sales from 2005
until 2007 and as our Vice President, Targeted, Print and Media Solutions from 2002 until 2005. Prior to these roles, Mr. Mason was a
successful Account Executive and Director of Sales for us, and has been recognized as Sales Person of the Year and Team Player of
the Year. Before joining us in 1995, he held a variety of positions within the newspaper and printing industries.

Todd L. Wiseley, 38, has served as our Vice President, Administration and Secretary since January 1, 2008. Previously, Mr.
Wiseley served as Director, Law and Administration from September 2005 until January 2008 and as Director of Integration from July
2003 until September 2005. Mr. Wiseley served as the Director of Finance and Administration at Valassis Relationship Marketing
Systems, LLC, one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries, from January 2001 until July 2003.

OUR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

Our Board of Directors has general oversight responsibilities for our business, property and affairs pursuant to the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware and our by-laws. In exercising its fiduciary duties, our Board of Directors represents and
acts on behalf of our stockholders. Although the Board of Directors does not have responsibility for the day-to-day management of our
Company, members of the Board of Directors stay informed about our business through discussions with Alan F. Schultz, our
President and Chief Executive Officer, and with key members of our management, by reviewing materials provided to them and by
participating in meetings of our Board of Directors and its committees. Our Board of Directors provides guidance to management
through periodic meetings, site visits and other interactions. Additional details concerning the role and structure of our Board of
Directors are in our Corporate Governance Guidelines, which can be found in the “Investors/Corporate Governance” section of our
Web site at www.valassis.com.




Policies and Procedures

We have a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for our directors, officers and employees as well as Corporate Governance
Guidelines to ensure that our business is conducted in a consistently legal and ethical manner. In addition, our Board of Directors
adopted a Policy on Related Person Transactions, which sets forth policies and procedures governing the review, and when required
pursuant to the policy, the approval or ratification of related person transactions by the disinterested directors of our Corporate
Governance/Nominating Committee. The policy defines a “related person transaction” as (i) a transaction between us and any of our
executive officers or directors, (ii) a transaction between us and any security holder who we know owns of record or beneficially more
than five percent of any class of our voting securities (each a “5% holder™), (iii) a transaction between us and any “immediate family
member” (as such term is defined in Regulation S-K, Item 404, as then in effect) of an executive officer, director or 5% holder of ours,
or (iv) any other transaction involving us that would be required to be disclosed pursuant to Regulation S-K, Item 404, as then in
effect. Furthermore, under the policy, a “related person transaction™ with us is defined as including transactions with any of our
subsidiaries or affiliates. We have spent a considerable amount of time and effort reviewing and improving our corporate governance
policies and practices. This includes comparing our current policies and practices to policies and practices suggested by various
groups or authorities active in corporate governance and practices of other public companies. Based upon this review, we periodically
adopt certain changes that our Board of Directors believes are the best corporate governance policies and practices for us. We also
adopt changes, as appropriate, to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act ¢f 2002 and any rule changes made by the SEC and the New
York Stock Exchange. We believe that our current policies and procedures form the foundation for an open relationship among
colleagues that contributes to good business conduct as well as the high integrity level of our employees.

Determination of Director Independence

Under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange, our Board of Directors is required to affirmatively determine the
independence of each director based on the absence of any material relationship between us and the director. These determinations are
required to be disclosed in this proxy statement. Our Board of Directors has established guidelines to assist it in making these
determinations. These guidelines, which are attached to this proxy statement as Exhibit A, include all elements of the Corporate
Governance Rules of the New York Stock Exchange on this subject. For relationships between us and a director not covered by the
guidelines, the determination of independence is made by the other members of our Board of Directors who are independent.
Members of the Audit, Compensation/Stock Option and Corporate Governance/Nominating Committees must meet ali applicable
independence tests of the New York Stock Exchange, SEC and the Internal Revenue Service, During our fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007, Messrs. Anderson, Brennan, Darish and Dr. Ku, Ms. Sampson and Ambassador Whittlesey served as our
independent directors. Based on these guidelines, our Board of Directors, at its meeting on February 11, 2008, determined that Messrs.
Anderson, Brennan, Darish and Snyder and Dr. Ku, Ms. Sampson and Ambassador Whittlesey are independent of the company and its
management.

Presiding Director

In September 2002, our Board of Directors determined that the directors who are deemed independent based on the New York
Stock Exchange rules will meet in executive session at each Board of Directors meeting and that one of such independent directors
will preside. The independent directors are also our non-management directors and, as such, these non-management directors meet in
regularly scheduled executive sessions without management present. Mr. Darish serves as the presiding director at all such executive
SEsSSI0NS.

Attendance

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, our Board of Directors held nine meetings (including regularly scheduled and
special meetings). Each director attended at least 75% of the meetings held by our Board of Directors during the period in which that
director served, including the meetings held by the committees on which that director served as a member. Pursuant to our Corporate
Governance Guidelines, the directors must attend our annual meeting of stockholders absent exceptional circumstances, All of the
directors nominated at the 2007 annual meeting of stockholders attended such annual meeting.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The standing committees of our Board of Directors include our Executive Committee, our Audit Committee, our
Compensation/Stock Option Committee and our Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee.

Our Executive Comunittee, whose members are Alan F. Schultz, Robert L. Recchia and Ambassador Faith Whittiesey, is
generally authorized to exercise the management powers of our Board of Directors; provided, however, that our Executive Committee
does not have the authority to declare cash dividends, amend our certificate of incorporation, adopt an agreement of merger or
consolidation, recommend the disposition of all or substantially all of our assets or recommend our dissolution. Our Executive
Committee did not meet during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.




Our Audit Committee’s members are Patrick F. Brennan, Kenneth V. Darish and Wallace S. Snyder. Our Audit Committee
recommends the selection of our independent auditors, discusses and reviews the scope and the fees of the prospective annual audit
and reviews the results of each audit with the independent auditors. Our Audit Committee also reviews compliance with our existing
major accounting and financial policies, reviews the adequacy of our financial organization and reviews management’s procedures
and policies relevant to the adequacy of our internal accounting controls and compliance with federal and state laws relating to
accounting practices. We have appointed an internal auditor that reports directly to our Audit Committee. Our Audit Committee held
four meetings during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. Our Board of Directors has determined that Kenneth V. Darish meets
the New York Stock Exchange standard of having accounting or related financial management expertise and the SEC’s definition of
an *“audit committee financial expert.” Each of the other members of our Audit Committee has financial management experience or is
financially literate. Our Board of Directors has determined that each committee member meets the additional independence
requirements for members of an audit committee in the New York Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Rules. Our Board of
Directors has adopted a written charter for this committee setting out the functions that this committee is to perform, which can be
found on our Web site at www.valassis.com.

Our Compensation/Stock Option Committee’s members are Ambassador Faith Whittlesey, Dr. Walter H. Ku and Marcella A.
Sampson. Our Compensation/Stock Option Committee administers our 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended, our Broad-
Based Incentive Plan, as amended, our Amended and Restated Senior Executives Annual Bonus Plan, our 2005 Executive Restricted
Stock Plan, our 2005 Employee and Director Restricted Stock Award Plan, our Employee Stock Purchase Plan, our Supplemental
Benefit Plan, as amended, and the ADVO, Inc. 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended, and, if approved, will administer our
2008 Senior Executives Semi-Annual Bonus Plan and 2008 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan. Our Compensation/Stock Option
Committee also reviews and approves the annual salary, bonus and other benefits, direct or indirect, of our executive officers,
excluding Mr. Schultz, whose salary, bonus and other benefits are reviewed and approved by our Board of Directors. The
Committee’s primary procedures for establishing and oversesing executive compensation can be found in the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis section under “Compensation-Setting Process.” Qur Compensation/Stock Option Committee has engaged
Tower Perrins Human Resources Services, a human resources consulting firm, to assist it in reviewing our executive compensation
programs and assist in negotiating the terms of our executive officers’ contracts when they come up for renewal. We believe that the
use of an independent consultant provides additional assurance that our executive compensation programs are reasonable and
consistent with our objectives and industry standards. Our Compensation/Stock Option Committee is comprised entirely of non-
employee directors as such term is defined under Rule 16b-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”) or any successor provision, and “outside directors,” as such term is defined under Section 162{m) of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986 or any successor provision. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee met
eight times. Our Board of Directors has adopted a written charter for this committee setting out the functions that this committee is to
perform, which can be found on our Web site at www.valassis.com.

Our Corporate Governance/Nominating Comtnittee’s members are Joseph B. Anderson, Jr., Dr. Walter H. Ku and Marcella A,
Sampson. Our Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee (i) assists our Board of Directors by identifying individuals qualified to
become Board members and recommends to our Board of Directors the director nominees for the next annual meeting of stockholders,
(i) recommends to our Board of Directors the corporate governance guidelines applicable to us and (iii) takes a feadership role in
shaping our corporate governance. Qur Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee held three meetings during the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007. Qur Board of Directors has adopted a written charter for this committee setting out the functions that this
committee is to perform, which can be found on our Web site at www.valassis.com.

Our Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee evaluates the current members of our Board of Directors at the time they are
considered for nomination. Qur Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee also considers whether any new members should be
added to our Board of Directors. In the past, candidates for independent director have been found through recommendations from
members of our Board of Directors and other employees at our Company, including the appointment of Wallace S. Snyder in January
2008. The Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee may also seek help from an executive search firm to assist in the selection
process.

Our Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee has not established any specific minimum qualifications for a director but
has adopted a set of criteria, which is attached to this proxy statement as Exhibit B, describing the qualities and characteristics that are
sought for our Board of Directors as a whole. Our Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee does not give these criteria any
particular weight and they are not equally applicable to all nominees. OQur Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee may also
from time to time identify particular characteristics to look for in a candidate in order to balance the skills and characteristics of our
Board of Directors. Our Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee may modify these criteria from time to time and adopt special
criteria to attract exceptional candidates to meet our specific needs.

Our Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee will consider recommendations from stockholders of potential candidates
for nomination as director. Recommendations should be made in writing, including the candidate’s written consent to be nominated
and to serve, and sufficient background information on the candidates to enable our Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee to
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properly assess the candidate’s quatifications. Recommendations should be addressed to our Corporate Secretary at our principal
office and must be received no later than October 1, 2008 in order to be considered for the next annual meeting. The process for
evaluating potential candidates recommended by stockholders and derived from other sources is substantially the same.

COMPENSATION/STOCK OPTION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, Ambassador Faith Whittlesey, Patrick F. Brennan and Marcella A. Sampson
served on our Compensation/Stock Option Committee. None of our Compensation/Stock Option Committee members (i) have ever
been an officer or employee of our Company, (ii) is or was a participant in a “related person” transaction in fiscal year 2007 (see the
section entitled “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions™ for a description of our Policy on Related Person Transactions) and
(iii) is an executive officer of another entity, at which one of our executive officers serves on the board of directors.
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

The table below summarizes the compensation paid by us to our non-employee directors for the fiscal year ended December 31,

007.
Fees
Earned
or Paid Stock Option
in Cash Awards Awards Total
ame £ " 2 $)
PALFICK FL BEEINAT oo ee e rrreee e $60,896  $21,536 $76,388 $158,820
KETINELR V. DATISH c.oooviiiivieesr et seie et er ettt te sttt s ebe st e st e st asatsaat s st satasseaasaes 58,954 21,536 76,388 156,878
Dr. Walter Ho Ku, PRD e 53,886 21,536 76,388 151,810
MArCella A, SAMPSON....ooiiicviieieeeee ettt sttt e et ee et e sae et s eae e ersseeanes 58,312 21,536 76,388 156,236
[\mbassador Faith WHItESEY c.oeeiiiie e ettt et e 60,896 21,336 76,388 158,820
0SEPh B, ANAErson, Jr. ..o eene e ee e e nreens 57,012 21,5336 76,388 154,936

" This column represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the 2007 fiscal

year for the fair value of restricted stock granted in 2007 as well as in prior fiscal years, determined in accordance with SFAS
123R. Pursuant to SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting
conditions. The stock awards reflected in this column (in the form of dollar amounts) were granted on one or more of the
following dates: January 10, 2007, April 10, 2007, July 10, 2007 and October 10, 2007 and had grant date fair values
determined in accordance with SFAS 123R of $13.48, $17.69, $17.21 and $10.09, respectively. For additional information,
refer to Note 9 of our financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, as filed
with the SEC. These amounts reflect our accounting expense for these awards, and do not correspond to the actual value that
will be realized by the directors. The following directors held outstanding shares of restricted stock as of December 31, 2007:
Mr. Anderson (1,484), Mr. Brennan (1,484), Mr. Darish (1,484), Dr. Ku (1,484), Ms. Sampson (1,484) and Ambassador
Whittlesey (1,484).

This column represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the 2007 fiscal
year for the fair value of stock options granted in 2007 as well as in prior fiscal years, determined in accordance with SFAS
123R. Pursuant to SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting
conditions. The stock options reflected in this column (in the form of dollar amounts) were granted on one or more of the
following dates: April 1, 2006, October 1, 2006, April 1, 2007 and October 1, 2007 and had grant date fair values estimated
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing method determined in accordance with SFAS 23R of $11.32, $6.80, $8.68 and $3.35,
respectively. For additional information on the valuation assumptions with respect to the 2007 grants, refer to Note 9 of our
financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, as filed with the SEC. These
amounts reflect the company’s accounting expense for these awards, and do not correspond to the actual value that will be
realized by the directors. The following directors held outstanding options as of December 31, 2007: Mr. Anderson (15,000),
Mr. Brennan (48,000}, Mr. Darish (49,000), Dr. Ku (40,000), Ms. Sampson (54,000) and Ambassador Whittlesey (73,000).

On June 22, 2007, our Board of Directors, upon recommendation by our Compensation/Stock Option Committee, approved the
foliowing compensation program, which remains in effect, to compensate non-employee directors for service on the Board and its
committees. The compensation program became effective July 1, 2007 and replaced the compensation program previously in effect.
[The program entitles our independent directors, or non-employee directors, to receive the following fees in connection with their
participation on our Board of Directors and related Board committees: (i) an annual independent director cash retainer fee of $42,500;
(ii) an annual award of 1,400 shares of restricted stock pursuant to our 2005 Employee and Director Restricted Stock Award Plan that
becomes fully vested one year from the date of grant; (iii) $2,500 per Board meeting attended in person and $1,300 per Board meeting
attended by telephone; and (iv) $1,300 per Board committee meeting attended in person and $650 per Board committee meeting
attended by telephone. The committee attendance fees are payable only if the committee meeting is not scheduled in conjunction with
(just before or after) a Board of Directors meeting and telephonic meeting fees are paid on a pro-rated basis if an independent director
does not participate via telephone for the entire meeting.

In addition, our independent directors are eligible to receive non-qualified options to purchase an aggregate of 10,000 shares of
our common stock annually pursuant to our 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan (or such other plan applicable to our independent
directors in effect from time to time). These options are granted in two semi-annual instaliments consisting of 5,000 stock options on
April 1 and October 1 of each vear, subject to the director being in service on such date, and have a strike price equal to the fair
market value (as defined in our applicable stock option plan) of our common stock on the date of grant. They become fully vested one
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year from the date of grant, and contain the terms and conditions as set forth in our form non-qualified stock option agreement for
independent directors.

Upon a change of control (as defined in our applicable stock option plan) all outstanding and unvested options become fully
vested and exercisable. In addition, if any payment provided to our independent directors on account of such acceleration of
exercisability of such options upon a change of control would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Interna)
Revenue Code of 1986 or any successor provision, our independent directors will be entitled to a gross-up payment to negate the
effect of any such tax.

Directors who are also our employees or employees of any of our affiliates do not receive any compensation for their services as
a director. Accordingly, Messrs. Recchia and Schultz are not compensated as such for their services as directors.

On February 11, 2008, our Corporate Governance Committee amended our Corporate Governance Guidelines to provide that all
of our independent directors are required to hold at ieast 2,800 shares of our common stock within two years of joining our Board of
Directors.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY

Our compensation philosophy is to develop and implement policies that will encourage and reward outstanding financial
performance, seek to increase our profitability, and thereby increase stockholder value. Accordingly, a high proportion of the
compensation of our executives is tied in some manner to both short-term and long-term corporate performance. Maintaining
competitive compensation levels in order to attract, retain and reward executives who bring valuable experience and skills to us is also
an important consideration. Our executive compensation programs are designed to attract, hire and retain talented individuals and
motivate them to achieve our business objectives and performance targets, including increasing long-term stockholder value. Most of
our compensation elements simultaneously fulfill one or more of our performance, alignment and retention objectives.

COMPENSATION-SETTING PROCESS

Our management is involved in the compensation-setting process, most significantly in:

. evaluating executive performance;
. establishing business performance targets and objectives; and
. recommending salary {evels and equity awards.

Warking with management, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee of our Board of Diréctors then develops and
implements the compensation plans for our senior management. It conducts an annual review of our goals and objectives as related to
the form and amount of executive compensation.

Each of our executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table for Fiscal Year 2007 (whom we refer to as our
named executive officers) is currently, or in the case of Mr. Hoffinan was, employed pursuant to a multi-year employment agreement.
These multi-year employment agreements retain the services of the executives for an extended period and bind former executives to
non-competition and non-solicitation obligations. We place great value on the long-term commitment that our named executive
officers have made to us. Each of our named executive officers has been (or in the case of Mr. Hoffman, was) employed by us for over
20 years. The employment agreements with such named executive officers were first entered into immediately prior to our initial
public offering consummated in 1992, As further discussed below, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee periodically reviews
the terms of these agreements.

Pursuant to these agreements, our Chief Executive Officer has historically received the highest level of compensation,
including salary, bonus opportunities and equity-based compensation. During the year ended December 31, 2007, he was followed by
our Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel by reason of their respective duties and responsibilities and then by other Executive
Vice Presidents. This internal pay relationship among our named executive officers was established at the time the Company
completed its initial public offering in 1992. Our Compensation/Stock Option Committee has never taken a formulaic approach to this
relattonship, but, as a general principle, has strived to maintain these relative levels of compensation among the named executive
officers. In September 1998, when Mr. Schultz was promoted to Chief Executive Officer of the Company from Chief Operating
Officer. his employment agreement was revised to reflect his increased responsibilities and to mirror certain components of the former
Chief Executive Officer’s employment contract. Since such time, we have not had a Chief Operating Officer position and this explains
certain disparities between Mr. Schultz’s salary and equity awards and the next highest paid named executive officer’s salary and
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equity awards. Our Compensation Stock/Option Committee believes that Mr. Schultz’s compensation level reflects the Committee’s
tonfidence in Mr. Schultz, Mr. Schultz’s performance throughout his tenure as Chief Executive Officer (and effectively, as Chief
Dperating Officer as well) and our desire to retain Mr. Schultz’s outstanding talents at the head of our Company,

The minimum compensation to which each named executive officer is entitled is specified in their respective employment
Egreemems. While our Compensation/Stock Option Committee’s primary opportunity to modify fixed terms of executive

ompensation to reflect policy changes is at the time the agreement is up for renewal, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee
nnually assesses whether any executive should receive an increase in annual base salary or whether any amendments to the
employment agreement are desirable.

Fhe length of time employment agreements are extended into the future is a result of a variety of factors, including the
ttaggering of expiration dates of other executive employment agreements, the roles and responsibilities of the executive and a risk
Tssessment of the executive being hired by one of our competitors,

[n establishing and administering the variable elements in the compensation of our named executive officers, our
Compensation/Stock Option Commitiee tries to recognize individual contributions, overall business results, our historical practices
inctuding our internal compensation levels) and the value of such executive’s experience in the promotion marketing industry (and
pvith us in particular). Compensation levels are also determined based upon the executive’s responsibilities, the efficiency and
pffectiveness with which he or she marshals resources and oversees the matters under his or her supervision, the degree to which he or
she has contributed to the accomplishments of major tasks that advance our goals, including sales growth, earnings and acquisitions,
nd our current competitive environment, employee retention and morale. Our financial performance measured against our goals is
hlso a key factor that affects the overall level of compensation for our named executive officers. We have historically paid higher
Fompensation when goals are exceeded and reduced compensation when goals are not met, taking into consideration each executive's
ndividual ability to influence results when ultimately approving particular elements of each named executive officer’s compensation
package.

Historically, management has also reviewed from time to time levels of compensation paid to officers at comparable companies
with similar responsibilities in order to make appropriate recommendations to our Compensation/Stock Option Committee for
hpproval. During 2006, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee retained Towers Perrin Human Resources Services 1o review our
Compensation program and recommend appropriate changes and used the findings and analysis of Towers Perrin during 2007 to assist
tin negotiating the terms of the executive officers’” employment agreements that came up for renewal or were amended during 2007.
We paid Towers Perrin approximately $55.600 for consulting fecs related to board and executive compensation with respect to fiscal
2007. Our commitment to ensuring that our Company is led by the right executives at the right time is a high priority, and we make
pur compensation decisions accordingly.

COMPENSATION ELEMENTS

Our compensation program for our named executive officers includes the following elemenis:

. base salary; :
. annual cash bonuses; ‘p\“ \\:\E\; QO?\\
. stock options and restricted stock awards; %"S\ F\\‘ g

. retirement and other benefits; and

. modest perquisites and other personal benefits.

Cash Compensation

The annual cash compensation of our named executive officers consists of annual salary and cash bonuses, The cash
compensation of each named executive officer {other than the Chief Executive Officer) may be increased based on an annual review
of such officer’s performance by the Chief Executive Officer and his recommendations to our Compensation/Stock Option
Committee. The cash compensation of the Chief Executive Officer may be increased based on an annual review of his perfaormance by
our Compensation/Stock Option Committee and the Board of Directors or in conjunction with an extension of his employment or
changes in his responsibilities,

(1) Salary

Base salary is the guarantced element of an executive’s annual cash compensation. The salary of cur named executive officers is
governed by their empioyment agreements. During the year ended December 31, 2007, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee
recommended that the annual base salaries for Messts. Hoffman and Recchia be increased to $403,650 and $500.000, respectively,
effective July 1, 2007. The determination to increase Messrs. Recchia’s and Hoffman’s respective salaries was based on the
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significant increases in Messrs. Recchia’s and Hoffman’s responsibilities following our acquisition of ADVQ and the Commitiee’s
review of an analysis report prepared by Towers Perrin. Although we did not formally benchmark during 2007, our goal was to target
annual base salary levels between the market 50th and 75th percentiles compared to other similar public companies, Based on Tower
Perrin’s report, the salary increases awarded to Messrs. Recchia and Hoffman place each of their respective annual base salaries
between the 30th and 75th percentile for similarly situated officers.

(2) Incentive Bonuses

Historically, we have established and structured our semi-annual cash bonus program to align executive goals with our earnings
growth objectives for the current year. Under the employment agreements with our named executive officers, each is entitled to an
annual incentive bonus of up to an aggregate of 100% of base salary if certain performance goals set by our Compensation/Stock
Option Committee, or, in the case of Messrs. Herpich and Hogg, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee and Chief Executive
Officer, are met. This reflects our objective of ensuring that a substantial amount of each named executive officer's compensation is
tied to the achievement of specific performance goals.

Pursuant to the named executive officer employment agreements, the 2007 incentive bonuses were paid two times during the
year and were contingent upon our meeting semi-annual earnings per share, or EPS, targets that were set by our Compensation/Stock
Option Comimittee in December 2006 for the six-month periods ending on each of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2007. Historically
our Compensation/Stock Option Committee set the semi-annual EPS targets at or near the mid-point of the range of the EPS guidance
to be provided to our stockholders in our earnings releases. No bonus attributable to EPS performance targets is payable to any named
executive officer unless actual EPS exceeds 70% of the EPS target for the period. In determining whether the performance targets
have been achieved, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee adjusts for certain items described below under “Adjustments for
Certain Items.” While we have never awarded compensation absent attainment of the performance targets, our Compensation/Stock
Option Committee has from time to time agreed with the named executive officers to reduce the size of their respective bonus
opportunities. Our Compensation/Stock Option Commitiee considered our expected decline in EPS for 2007 as compared to 2006
and. as a result, decided to limit for 2007, with each named executive officer’s consent, the aggregate annual amount of the bonus
opportunity that each named executive officer could earn up to 80% (or 40% with respect to each semi-annual bonus opportunity) as
opposed to 100% of the executive’s annual base salary even in the event that the performance targets were obtained. During the prior
year, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee had conducted the same analysis with respect to our declining EPS for 2006 and
similarly limited for 2006 the aggregate amount of bonus opportunity that each named executive officer could earn.

Consistent with our historical practice, our EPS performance targets for the 2007 fiscal year were determined by our
Compensation/Stock Option Committee in December 2006. From August 30, 2006 until December 18, 2006, we were involved in
litigation with ADVO in connection with the merger agreement we entered into with them. While we ultimately settled the litigation
with ADVO and consummated the acquisition of ADVO, at the time our Compensation/Stock Option Committee determined the 2007
EPS performance targets, it was unclear whether we would ultimately acquire ADVO. Accordingly, the 2007 EPS performance
targets were established based on our expected EPS 2007 performance as a stand-alone company, prior to our acquisition of ADVO.

The threshold and target award opportunities for the semi-annual cash incentive bonuses for 2007 are reported in the Grants of
Plan-Based Awards in 2007 Fiscal Year table below. After the conclusion of the relevant six-month performance period, our
Compensation/Stock Option Committee reviewed our applicable 2007 financial results and determined the actual payments to be
made and the resulting actual payments with respect to our 2007 fiscal year are reported in the Summary Compensation Table for
Fiscal Year 2007 in the column entitled “*Non-Equity Incentive Compensation.” The actual semi-annual incentive bonuses paid to
Messrs. Schultz, Hoffman and Recchia for 2007 represent the proportionate amounts of their respective target potential bonus
opportunities (i.e., 40% of annual base salary) that correlate to the percentage of the EPS target {between 70% and 100%) achieved for
the applicable six-month period during fiscal 2007. The actual semi-annual incentive bonuses paid to Messrs. Herpich and Hogg
represent the sum of (i) the proportionate amounts of their respective target potential bonus opportunities (i.e., 20% of annual base
salary) that correlate to the percentage of the EPS target (between 70% and 100%) achieved for the applicable six-month period during
fiscal 2007 and (ii) the proportionate amounts of their respective target bonus opportunities that correlate to the percentage of the
individual performance targets achieved for the applicable six-month period of fiscal 2007 set by our Chief Executive Officer;
provided that, in no event can the sum of the semi-annual bonuses for either Messrs. Herpich or Hogg exceed 80% of their respective
annual base salary. Our Compensation/Stock Option Committee has historically based awards on meeting EPS targets for the
following reasons:

. EPS is a meaningful measure of performance used by the marketplace to value stock.

. We believe that a target based upon EPS emphasizes our commitment to reach and maintain a competitive rate of return
on equity and achieve long-term growth in earnings, which are critical factors for assuring creation of value for our
stockholders.

. We believe that the use of EPS is an effective motivator because it is easy to track and clearly understood by employees,




Additionally, we believe that a shorter bonus period will provide our named executive officers with a greater sense of urgency
or them to meet the specified targets.

Over the past five years (which included 10 semi-annual bonus periods), we have achicved performance in excess of the
hreshold level 10 times and have achieved the maximum performance level seven times. Although the maximum performance level
pvas achieved 70% of the time during the past five years, on five of the seven occasions the executives voluntarily reduced the bonus
hmounts they were entitled to receive and only received 80% of each semi-annual bonus opportunity (as opposed to 100%). The
payout percentage over the past five years has been on average 73% of the participant’s target award opportunity. Generally, our
Compensation/Stock Option Committee sets the minimum, target and maximum levels such that the relative difficulty of achieving the
arget level is consistent [rom year to year.

Subject to our shareholders approving the 2008 Senior Executives Semi-Annual Bonus Plan as further described on page 38 of
his proxy statement, as a result of our acquisition of ADVO and the changes that brought to the size, capitalization and complexity of
pur Company, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee has decided to use adjusted EBITDA minus capital expenditures as the
performance target metric for awards granted for fiscal 2008, However, our board of directors has determined that this new
performance target metric and the related performance award opportunities do not materially affect a fair understanding of our named
pxecutive officers’ compensation for fiscal 2007,

Adjusunents for Certain [tems

Consistent with past practice and based on criteria established at the beginning of the performance period, our
Compensation/Stock Option Committee adjusted the earnings results on which 2007 bonuses and performance awards were
determined to eliminate the effect of certain items. The adjustments are intended to ensure that award payments represent the
Runderlying growth of our core business and are not artificially inflated or deflated due to extraordinary and/or non-recurring items

ither in the award year or the previous (comparator) year. For the 2007 awards calculation, our Compensation/Stock Option
Eommiltee adjusted EPS (which was based on Valassis as a stand-alone company) to eliminate costs related to our litigation with
ADVO, write-offs of certain assets and costs associated with the restructuring of certain of our European operations.

Equity Compensation

We believe that equity compensation fosters the long-term perspective on the part of our executives necessary for our success
and ensures that the executives properly focus on increasing sharcholder value. Non-cash compensation of named executive officers
currently consists of options granted under our 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan in discretionary amounts approved by our
Compensation/Stock Option Committee and restricted stock granted pursuant to our 2005 Executive Restricted Stock Plan or our 2005
Employee and Director Restricted Stock Award Plan.

(1) Performance-based options

Historically, the Compensation/Stock Option Committee has granted performance-based options to our named executive
officers. The exercise price of each stock option awarded to our named executive officers under our 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan
is the closing sales price of our commeon stock on the date of grant, The grant dates are determined without regard to anticipated
earnings or other major announcements by us.

To further strengthen the commonality of interest between named executive officers and our stockholders, these performance-
based stock options provide accelerated vesting in one-third increments as our common stock meets certain specified price per share
targets, which are typically increases of $5.00, $10.00 and $15.00 per share over the then-current fair market value at the time of grant.
Generally, if our common stock does not reach the price per share targets, these options vest in full afier five years from the date of
grant. Our Compensation/Stock Option Committee belicves that these performance-based options provide even greater motivation for
our named executive officers to achieve our performance targets.

Up until April 2006, the number of performance based stock options was fixed in the employment agreements of our named
executive officers. During 2007, our Compensation/Stock Optien Committee granted Mr. Schultz a discretionary option to purchase
45,000 shares of our common stock and each of the other named executive officers a discretionary option 1o purchase 25,000 shares of
our common stock. each pursuant to our 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan. This number of shares subject to each of these options was
significantiy lower than the amount previously provided to the named executive officers under the then applicable terms of their
employment agreements, reflecting our performance. On July . 2007 and August 1, 2007, respectively, our Compensation/Stock
Option Committee granted Mr. Recchia and Mr. Herpich a discretionary option to purchase 60.000 shares and 25,000 shares,
respectively, of our common stock pursuant to our 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan, based upon recommendations made by Towers
Perrin and their increased responsibilities following our acquisition of ADVO. For additional information regarding these grants, see
“Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2007 Fiscal Year.”
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(2) Restricted stock

[n order to further incentivize management, our named executive officers are entitled to a fixed number of shares of restricted
stock each fiscal year under the terms of their employment agreements, which are generally granted on the first day of the subsequent
fiscal year. They are entitled to earn an additional number of restricted shares if our Compensation/Stock Option Committee
determines that 80% of the performance targets have been met and an additional number of restricted shares if 115% of the
performance targets have been met. The amount of restricted stock is specified in the executive’s employment agreement and the
applicable performance target is set by the Committee each year, Our Compensation/Stock Option Committee used EPS as the
performance target metric for awards granted for fiscal 2007. Subject to our sharehoiders approving the 2008 Senior Executives
Semi-Annual Bonus Plan as further described on page 38 of this proxy statement, as a result of our acquisition of ADVO and the
changes that brought to the size, capitalization and complexity of our Company, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee has
decided to use adjusted EBITDA minus capital expenditures as the performance target metric for awards granted for fiscal 2008.
However, as discussed above, our board of directors has determined that this new performance target metric and the related
performance award opportunity do not materially affect a fair understanding of our named executive officers’ compensation for fiscal
2007. In order to enhance the awards” ability to incentivize longer term focus and retention, the shares of restricted stock referred to
above are subject to vesting in approximately equal portions over a three-year period, or one year, in the case of the performance-
based restricted stock awards granted to the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to his employment agreement. We believe that grants of
restricted stock further a sense of stock ownership by our named executive officers, further tie their compensation to our performance
and give us a significant advantage in retaining and motivating key executives.

Voluntary Stock Ownership Guidelines

To align the interests of executive officers with the interest of our stockholders, we have adopted the following voluntary
guidelines for executive officers to maintain a minimum number of shares in our common stock (excluding stock options):

Chief Executive Officer of Valassis: 3X annual base salary

Executive Vice Presidents of Valassis and President of
NCH: 2X annual base salary

Senior Vice Presidents and Vice Presidents of Valassis:  1X annual base salary

Executives have two years from a promotion to each level to be in compliance with these voluntary guidelines.

Retirement Plans

Executive officers (as well as all of our employees) also are eligible to participate in Valassis Employees’ Retirement Savings
Plan and certain named executive officers are eligible to participate in the Supplemental Benefit Plan, which provides for
supplemental benefits to those participants for a period of 10 years commencing upon death, retirement or other termination of
employment. In determining who is eligible to participate in the Supplemental Benefit Plan, our Compensation/Stock Option
Committee evaluates our overall compensation structure, the terms of the individual employment agreements and our need to provide
competitive compensation arrangements in order to attract, retain and motivate key executives. Messrs. Schultz, Hoffman, Recchia
and Herpich participate in the Supplemental Benefit Plan. Our Compensation/Stock Option Committee evaluated Mr. Hogg’s
compensation arrangements in 2007 and, due to his increased responsibilities at the company and our desire to retain and motivate Mr.
Hogg. we amended his employment agreement in 2007 to provide for additional supplemental benefits for a period of 10 years
commencing upon his death, retirement or other termination of employment similar to those provided under the Supplemental Benefit
Plan. The termination arrangements fit into our overall compensation objectives and reflect our historical pattern of providing our
Chief Executive Officer with the highest level of compensation, followed by our Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel, if
applicable, and then Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketing and Executive Vice President of Manufacturing and Client
Services.

For example, we place significant importance on protecting our interests by including meaningful noncompete provisions in the
executive employment agreements. As a general principle, the more we believe that the industry values the executive, the more
essential the non-compete is to us. Accordingly, Mr. Schultz’s employment agreement contains a mandatory seven-year non-compete
provision following termination. Mr. Recchia’s employment agreement contains a mandatory two-year non-compete restriction. The
mandatory non-compete provision for Mr. Recchia is coupled with a mandatory obligation by him to provide advisory and consulting
services during such two-year period. In the case of Mr. Herpich and Mr. Hogg, each of their employment agreements provide that the
non-competition provision may continue for up to two years following the termination of such executive’s employment, at our option,
provided that we pay such executive his then-existing annual base salary during the extended period. Mr. Hoffman, our former
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary, also is subject to a mandatory two-year non-compete provision and is
required to provide advisory and consulting services to us during such period.
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See the sections entitled “Pension Benefits™ and “Potential Payments and Benefits Upon Termination™ for additional
information,

Perquisites and Other Personal Benefits

Pursuant to the terms of their individual employment agreements, our named executive officers are entitled to limited
erquisites and personal benefits including, among other things, all or a combination of, a car allowance. tax and accounting advice
and country club membership. We do not feel that perquisites should play an important role in the compensation of our executives,
but also feel that the benefits described above are reasonable and in line with those provided to management level employees and align
with our overall compensation goal of providing competitive compensation to our executive officers that maximizes the interests of
our stockholders.

Change of Control

Our named executive officers are entitled to certain benefits upon a change of control (as defined in our applicable stock plan).
These change of control benefits are designed to promote stability and continuity of senior management in the face of the potential
uncertainty that a change of control may bring. Information regarding applicable payments upon a change of control for the named
executive officers is provided under the heading “Potential Payments and Benefits Upon Termination.”

INCOME TAX AND ACCOUNTING CONSIDERATIONS

In the event total compensation for any named executive officer exceeds the $1 million threshold at which tax deductions are
limited under Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m), our Compensation/Stock Option Committee intends to balance tax deductibility
of executive compensation with its responsibility to retain and motivate executives with competitive compensation programs. As a
result, our Compensation/Stock Option Commiltee may take such actions as it deems to be in the best interests of the stackholders,
including: (i} provide non-deductible compensation above the $1 million threshold; (i) require deferral of a portion of the bonus or
other compensation to a time when payment may be deductible by us; and/or (iii) modify existing programs to qualify bonuses and
other performance-based compensation to be exempt from the deduction limit.

As a result of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), Share Based Paymeni. or SFAS 123R, our
Compensation/Stock Option Committee has shifted its equity compensation mix for executive officers to a greater percentage of
restricted stock rather than stock options.

COMPENSATION/STOCK OPTION COMMITTEE REPORT

We, the Compensation/Stock Option Committee of the Board of Directors of Valassis Communications, Inc, have reviewed and
discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis set forth above with the management of the Company, and, based on such
review and discussion, have recommended to the Board of Directors inclusion of the Compensation Discussion and Analysis in this
Proxy Statement and. through incorporation by reference from this Proxy Statement, the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2007,

COMPENSATION/STOCK OPTION COMMITTEE

Ambassador Faith Whittlesey, Chairman
Dr. Walter H. Ku
Marcella A. Sampson
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2007

The following Summary Compensation Table sets forth the compensation of Alan F. Schultz. our Chief Executive Officer and

President, Robert L. Recchia, our Executive Vice President. Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, and our other three most highly
compensated executive officers who served in such capacities on December 31, 2007 and December 3 1. 2006.

Change in
Pension Value
and
Nen-Equity Nongualified
Stock Option Incentive Plan Deferred Al Other
Awards Awards Compensation  Compensation  Coempensation
Name and Principal Position Year  Salary ($) 7 " ™ Earnings ()" sy Total (5)
Alan F. Schultz 2007 780,000 319,641 919,260 624,000 143,109 25485 2,811,49
Chief Executive Officer, President and 2006 780,000 384525 1.459.940 193.050 151.861 54,398 3,023,77
Director
Robert [.. Recchia 2007 445,000 - 93,398 428 988 356,000 143,367 25,192  1,491,94
Executive Vice President, Chief 2006 390,000 80,246 547.648 96,525 77,475 52875  1.244.76
Financial Officer. Treasurer and
Director
Barry P. Hoffman™ 2007 396,825 80,246 389,988 317,460 106,612 20,645 1,311,777
Executive Vice President, General 2006 390,000 80,246 559,889 96,525 77.475 27,924  1,232,05¢
Counsel. Secretary and Director
Richard Herpich 2007 360,000 93,398 270,816 288,000 70,010 30,806  1,113,03
Executive Vice President, Sales and 2006 360,000 80,246 460,258 125,190 103,729 39562 1,168,98
Marketing
William F. Hogg. Jr. 2007 290,000 39,945 309,513 232,000  408.737 18,269  1,298,46

Executive Vice President of 2006 290,000 29,070 431,844 138,431 — 29433 918,778
Manufacturing and Client Services :

i

(&)

Mr, Hoffiman retired from his position with our Company effective January 1, 2008, See “Potential Payments and Benefits
Upon Termination™ for further discussion regarding the terms of Mr. Hoffman's retirement.

This column represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to each year for the
fair value of shares of restricted stock granted in such year as well as prior fiscal years, determined in accordance with SFAS
123R. Pursuant to SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting
conditions. For additional information, refer to Note 9 of the financial statements in the Form 10-K for the ycar ended
December 31, 2007, as filed with the SEC. See the “Grants of Plan-Based Awards™ Table for additional information on awards
made in 2007. These amounts reflect our accounting expense for these awards, as determined in accordance with SFAS 123R,
and do not correspond to the actual value that may be realized by the named executive officers.

This column represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to each year for the
fair value of stock options granted to each of the named executive officers, in such years as well as prior fiscal years, as
applicable. determined in accordance with SFAS 123R. Pursuant to SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of
estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions. For additional information on the valuation assumptions with
respect 1o the 2006 grants, refer to Note 9 of the financial statements in the Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007,
as filed with the SEC. For information on the valuation assumptions with respect to grants made prior to 2006, refer to Note 8 of|
the financial statements in the Form 10-K for the respective year-end. These amounts refiect our accounting expense for these
awards, as determined in accordance with SFAS 123R, and do not correspond to the actual value that may be realized by the
named executive officers. See the “Grants of Plan-Based Awards™ Table for additional information on options granted in 2007.

This column reflects amounts earned pursuant to bonus opportunitics established under the named executive officers’
employment agreements. and in the case of Mr. Schultz, in accordance with our Amended and Restated Senior Executive Bonus
Plan. The EPS performance targets were set by our Compensation/Stock Option Committee as described in the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis. [n addition, certain performance targets for Messrs, Herpich and Hogg were set by our Chief
Executive Officer.

This column represents the change during each year in the present value of the benefits payable under the Supplemental Benefit
Plan to each of Messrs. Schultz. Recchia, Hoffman and Herpich, the participants under the plan, and the present value of the
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benefits payable under Mr. Hogg’s employment agreement with respect to 2007. See the section entitled “Pension Benefits” for
additional information, including the present value assumptions used in this calculation. We do not maintain a nonqualified
deferred compensation plan,

The compensation represented by the amounts set forth in the All Other Compensation column for the named executive officers
are actual costs associated with each item of compensation and are detailed in the following table.

Common Stock

i)

2y

Match in Contribution to
Employee Employee Tax Car Country
Stock Purchase Profit Sharing Preparation Allowance Club Dues
fame Year Plan (3)"" Plan (5)'? Fees (8) (8) {$)
Man F. Schultz ..o 2007 — 8,580 2,535 3,162 11,208
2006 — 16,590 21,450 2,800 13,558
Robert L. ReCChi@l.........ovcveeevevee e 2007 1,115 8,580 1,195 8,002 6,300
2006 21,400 16,590 2915 6,510 5,460
Barry P. Hoffman ... 2007 558 8,580 3,054 8,453 —
2006 700 16,590 1,495 9139 —
Richard Herpich......oooooviiviiiiceciceeseee e 2007 1,673 8,580 — 9,645 10,908
2006 2,100 16,590 — 7,314 13,558
William F. HOZE, JF. ..o 2007 — 8,580 2,975 6,714 —
2006 — 16,590 3,750 9,093 —

This column represents matching contributions to the named executive officer’s employee stock purchase plan account under
our Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The matching contributions are equal to 25% of the executive’s contribution to the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan, pursuant to which all employees are eligible to participate, and are in the form of our common
stock. Effective January 1, 2008, we have terminated the matching contribution feature of the Employee Stock Purchase Plan for
all employees.

This column represents contributions we made on behalf of the named executive officers to our Employees’ Profit Sharing Plan,
pursuant to which all employees participate.
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GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS IN 2007 FISCAL YEAR

The following table shows the range of potential payments that could have been earned under the cash incentive awards granted

to our named executive officers in 2007, as well as the time-vested and performance-based stock awards granted to them for the year
ended December 31, 2007, '

Estimated Possible Stock Option Grant Date
Payouts Under Non- Awards: Awards: Exercise Fair Value
Grant Equity Incentive Plan Number Number or Base of Stock
Name Date' Awards of Shares of Shares Price of and
of Stock of Stock Option Options
Threshotd Target or Units or Units Awards Awards
(S) ) @ ) 515y i
Alan F. Schultz ............. 1/1/08 22,500 : 263,025
9,750® 312,0600¢
9,750® 312,000®
1/1/07 45,0007 14.50 230,650
Robert L. Recchia ........... 1/1/08 4,500® 52,605
4,875 156,000«
4,875% 200,000®
1/1/07 25,0007 14.50 139,250
707 60,000 17.19 390,000
Barry P. Hoffman"® ... 4 8759 156,000
4,875% 161,460
1/1/07 25,0007 14.50 139,250
Richard Herpich............. 1/1/08 4,500 52,605
225012 144,000 |
2,250 144,000
1/1/07 25,000 14.50 139,250
8/1/07 25,000 10.96 103,500
William F. Hogg, Jt. ....... 1/1/07 2,25009 32,625

(y

)

3

4)

t3)

1,813 116,000¢*
1,81302 116,000
1/1/07 25,0000 14.50 139,250

All awards included in this table were granted and/or earned with respect to fiscal year 2007 performance. As noted below, the
actual number of restricted shares that certain named executive officers could become entitled to during 2007 was dependent, in
part, on our 2007 performance. As a result and as noted below, certain of our restricted stock awards were not actually granted

until January 1, 2008 although they related to 2007 compensation and performance.

This exercise price represents the closing sales price of our common stock on the date of grant.

This column shows the full grant date fair value of equity awards granted in 2007 determined in accordance with SFAS 123R,
except that no assumptions as to forfeitures were made. A discussion of the assumptions used in calculating grant date fair value
is set forth in Note 9 of the financial statements in the Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, as filed with the SEC.

This amount reflects awards granted to Mr. Schultz for fiscal 2007 performance. Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr.
Schultz was entitled to receive a grant of 11,250 shares of restricted stock for fiscal 2007, which shares vest ratably over three
years, Mr. Schultz was also entitled to an additional grant of restricted stock if the Company achieved certain performance
goals with respect to 2007. Mr. Schultz was entitled to an additional 11,250 shares of restricted stock if the Company achieved
8% of the EPS performance target in 2007 and was entitled to an additional 11,250 shares of restricted stock if the Company
achieved 115% of the EPS performance target in 2007. In both cases, the restricted stock vests one year from the date of grant.
During 2007, the 80% performance target was satisfied; however, the 115% performance target was not satisfied. Therefore,
Mr. Schultz was entitled to an additional award of 11,250 restricted shares and a total restricted stock grant of 22,500 shares for
2007. Although in accordance with his employment agreement such grant was not awarded to Mr. Schuliz until January [,
2008, the award pertains to fiscal 2007 and we recognized a portion of the award for financial statement reporting purposes in
2007.

These amounts reflect the minimum value of the potential incentive cash bonus payout if our EPS exceeded 70% of the EPS
target for each applicable six-month performance period. The EPS target is set by our Compensation/Stock Option Committee,
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as more fully described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis. Actual bonus amounts earned in 2007 by our named
executive officers are included in the “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation™ column in the Summary Compensation Table.

These amounts reflect the value of the potential incentive cash bonus payout if 100% of the EPS target was satisfied for each
applicable six-month performance period. Even though the executive’s employment agreement provides for a potential bonus
opportunity of 100% of annual base salary, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee decided to limit the amount of bonus to
80% of the executive’s annual base salary as more fully described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis.

Reflects a discretionary grant of options that become exercisable in increments of 33.333%, 33.333% and 33.334% at such time
that the closing price per share of our common stock is equal to or exceeds $19.50, $24.50 and $29.50, respectively. In any
event, however, the options vest in fult on January 1, 2012 and will be exercisable until January 1, 2014,

This amount reflects awards granted to Mr. Recchia for fiscal 2007 performance. Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr.
Recchia was entitled to receive a grant of 4,500 shares of restricted stock for fiscal 2007. Mr. Recchia was also entitled to an
additional grant of restricted stock if the Company achieved certain performance goals with respect to 2007. Mr. Recchia was
entitled to an additional 2,250 shares of restricted stock if the Company achieved 80% of the EPS performance target in 2007
and was entitled to an additional 2,250 shares of restricted stock if the Company achieved 115% of the EPS performance target
in 2007. During 2007, the 80% performance target was satisfied; however, the 115% performance target was not satisiied.
Therefore, Mr. Recchia was entitled to an additional award of 2,250 restricted shares and a total restricted stock grant of 4,500
shares for 2007. Restricted shares awarded to Mr. Recchia vest ratably over three years. Although in accordance with his
employment agreement such grant was not awarded to Mr. Recchia until January 1, 2008, the award pertains to fiscal 2007 and
we recognized a portion of the award for financial statement reporting purposes in 2007.

Reflects a discretionary grant of options that become exercisable in increments of 33.333%, 33.333% and 33.334% at such time
that the closing price per share of our common stock is equal to or exceeds $22.19, $27.19 and $32.19, respectively. [n any
event, however, the options vest in full on July 1, 2012 and will be exercisable until July 1, 2014,

Mr. Hoffman retired from his position with our Company effective January 1, 2008. See “Potential Payments and Benefits
Upon Termination” for further discussion regarding the terms of Mr. Hoffman’s retirement.

This amount reflects awards granted to Mr, Herpich for fiscal 2007 performance. Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr.
Herpich was entitled to receive a grant of 4,500 shares of restricted stock for fiscal 2007. Mr. Herpich was also entitled to an
additional grant of restricted stock if the Company achieved certain performance goals with respect to 2007. Mr. Herpich was
entitled 1o an additional 2,250 shares of restricted stock if the Company achieved 80% of the EPS performance target in 2007
and was entitled to an additional 2,250 shares of restricted stock if the Company achieved 115% of the EPS performance target
in 2007. During 2007, the 80% performance target was satisfied; however, the 115% performance target was not satisfied.
Therefore, Mr. Herpich was entitled to an additional award of 2,250 restricted shares and a total restricted stock grant of 4,500
shares for 2007. Restricted shares awarded to Mr. Herpich vest ratably over three years, Although in accordance with his
employment agreement such grant was not awarded to Mr. Herpich until January 1, 2008, the award pertains to fiscal 2007 and
we recognized a portion of the award for financial statement reporting purposes in 2007.

These amounts reflect the minimum value of the potential incentive cash bonus payout for each applicable six-month
performance period if (i) our EPS exceeded 70% of the EPS target and (ii) the named executive officer did not achieve his
individual performance targets set by our Chief Executive Officer. The EPS target is set by our Compensation/Stock Option
Committee, as more fully described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis. Actual bonus amounts earned in 2007 by
our named executive officers are included in the “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation” column in the Summary
Compensation Table.

These amounts reflect the value of the potential incentive cash bonus payout for each applicable six-month performance period
if (i) 100% of the EPS target was satisfied and (ii) the named executive officer achieved his individual performance targets set
by our Chief Executive Officer. Even though the executive’s employment agreement provides for a potential bonus opportunity
of 100% of annual base salary, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee decided to limit the amount of bonus to 80% of the
executive’s annual base salary as more fully described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis. Actual bonus amounts
earned in 2007 by our named executive officers are included in the “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensatton™ column in the
Summary Compensation Table.

Reflects a discretionary grant of options that become exercisable in increrments of 33.333%, 33.333% and 33.334% at such time
that the closing price per share of our common stock is equal to or exceeds $16.36, $21.36 and $26.36, respectively. In any
event, however, the options vest in full on August 1, 2012 and will be exercisable until August 1, 2014.

Reflects a discretionary award of restricted stock granted to Mr. Hogg, which vests over three years.




Narrative to Summary Compensation Table and Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table
Employment Contracts

We have employment agreements with each of our named executive officers. The following summary of certain provisions of
these employment agreements does not purport to be complete and is subject to and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the
actual text of the employment agreements of the named executive officers, copies of which are exhibits to our SEC filings.

Mr. Schultz’s employment agreement expires December 31, 2008, Mr. Herpich’s employment agreement expires December 31,
2009, Mr. Recchia’s employment agreement expires December 31, 2012 and Mr. Hogg’s employment agreement expires January 1,
2010. Mr. Hoffman’s employment agreement terminated in connection with his retirement from our Company, effective January 1.
2008. See “Potential Payments and Benefits Upon Termination” for further discussion regarding the terms of Mr. Hoffman’s
retirement, Mr. Schultz’s employment agreement provides that he is entitled to an annual base salary equal to $860,000. Pursuant to
their respective employment agreements and modest salary increases in January 2008, Mr. Recchia is entitled to an annual base salary
equal to $515,000, Mr. Herpich is entitled to an annual base salary equal to $372,000, and Mr. Hogg is entitled to an annual base
salary of $295,000. For 2007, salaries paid to our named executive ofticers accounted for the following percentages of their total
compensation: Mr. Schultz (28%), Mr. Recchia (30%), Mr. Hoffiman (30%), Mr. Herpich (32%) and Mr. Hogg (22%).

Further, the employment agreements of each of Messrs. Herpich, Hoffman and Recchia provide that each of these executives is
entitled to receive 2,250 shares of restricted stock for each year during the term of his respective employment agreement and up to an
additional 4,500 shares of restricted stock for each year during the term of his employment agreement if we achieve certain
performance targets. Mr. Schultz’s employment agreement provides that he is entitled to receive 11,250 shares of restricted stock for
each year during the term of his employment agreement and up to an additional 22,500 shares of restricted stock for each year during
the term of his employment agreement if we achieve certain performance targets. In addition, pursuant to the terms of the employment
agreements with Messrs. Schultz, Recchia and Hoffman, all of these executives are entitled to semi-annual bonuses of up to 50% of
their annual salary if we achieve certain performance targets set by our Compensation/Stock Option Committee. Messrs. Herpich’s
and Hogg’s employment agreements provide that they are entitled to a semi-annual bonus of up to 25% of their annual salary if we
achieve certain performance targets set by our Compensation/Stock Option Committee and a semi-annual bonus of up to 25% of their
annual salary in accordance with certain performance targets (sales targets in the case of Mr. Herpich) set annually by our Chief
Executive Officer in conjunction with our Compensation/Stock Option Committee. However, for fiscal 2007, our Compensation/Stock
Option Committee considered the company’s expected decline in EPS and, as a result, decided to limit for 2007, with each executive
officer’s consent, the aggregate annual amount of the bonus opportunity that each named executive officer could earn to 80% (or 40%
with respect to each semi-annual bonus opportunity) as opposed to 100% of the executive’s annual base salary even in the event that
the performance targets were obtained. See the “Compensation Discussion and Analysis™ for additional information regarding the
vesting periods applicable to the restricted stock awards described in this paragraph, as well as the performance targets applicable to
certain of such awards and the amounts granted in fiscal 2007,

Provisions of the employment agreements that relate to severance pay and termination benefits are described below in the
section entitled “Potential Payments and Benefits Upon Termination.”

Non-equity Incentive Plan Compensation

The non-equity incentive plan compensation set forth in the Summary Compensation Table for Fiscal Year 2007 reflects annual
cash incentive compensation under the executives’ employment agreements and, in the case of Mr. Schultz, in accordance with our
Amended and Restated Senior Executive Bonus Plan. Annual cash incentive compensation is earned based upon the achievement of a
threshold EPS target and, in the cases of Messrs. Herpich and Hogg, additional individual performance targets, and is payable as a
percentage of salary as set forth in the executive’s employment agreement.

The threshold and target amounts set forth in the Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2007 Fiscal Year table represent the potential
amounts that could have been earned if our EPS (excluding, as discussed above, ADVO results) exceeded 70% or achieved 100%,
respectively. of the EPS target set by our Compensation/Stock Option Committee for each applicable six-month performance period.

Restricted Stock

We grant restricted stock to Messrs. Schultz, Recchia and Herpich, and granted restricted stock to Mr. Hoftman until his
retirement in January 2008, pursuant to our 2005 Executive Restricted Stock Plan and our 2005 Employee and Director Restricted
Stock Award Plan in amounts set forth in the executives” employment agreements. From time to time, we grant restricted stock to
Mr. Hogg pursuant to our 2005 Executive Restricted Stock Plan and our 2005 Employee and Director Restricted Stock Award Plan in
discretionary amounts that are approved by our Compensation/Stock Option Committee. Each year, one-third of the shares of
restricted stock provided for in the named executive officers’ employment agreements vest over a three-year period and are non-
performance based, The remaining two-thirds of the shares of restricted stock granted pursuant to the employment agreements are
granted based upon the achievement of specified financial performance targets and then generally vest over a three-year period (one
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year in the case of Mr. Schultz), beginning with the first anniversary of the grant date. For more information about these performance
targets and the vesting schedules, see “Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”

Shares of restricted stock granted under our 2005 Executive Restricted Stock Plan vest immediately upon the death, disability,
retirement or termination without cause (as defined in the applicable plan) of the executive or upon a change of control of the
company as well as upon termination for good reason (as defined in the plan). During the vesting period, the executives are the
beneficial owners of the shares of restricted stock and possess all voting and dividend rights provided the executives remain employed.
Currently, we have no plans to pay cash dividends.

Stock Options .

We grant stock options to our named executive officers pursuant to our 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan. The option exercise
price is equal to the closing sales price of our common stock on the date of grant. One-third of the stock options will vest upon
achieving each of three common stock market price thresholds, provided that in any event the options will vest in full five years from
the date of grant and have a term of two years thereafter. Stock options are not transferable other than by will or the laws of descent
and distribution. Stock options will become immediately exercisable in the event of a change of control of the Company (as defined in
the plan}, in certain instances in the discretion of our Compensation/Stock Option Committee and in the event the holder is no longer
employed by reason of retirement, disability, death or otherwise.

Additional Information

We have provided additional information regarding the compensation we pay to our named executives in the “Compensation
Discussion and Analysis” section of this proxy statement.




OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2007 FISCAL YEAR-END

The following table provides information on the holdings of stock option and stock awards by the named executive officers on
December 31, 2007. This table includes options that are exercisable, uneamed optiens (with performance conditions that had not been
satisfied), unvested restricted stock and uneamned stock (with performance conditions that had not been satisfied). The vesting
schedule for each grant that has not vet vested is shown following this table, based on the option or stock award grant date. The market
value of the stock awards 1s based on the closing market price of our stock as of December 31, 2007, which was $11.69. For additional
information about the option awards and stock awards, see the description of equity incentive compensation-in the “Compensation
Discussion and Analysis” section of this proxy statement.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Equity Incentive
Number of Plan Awards: - Market
Securities Number of Number of Value of
Underlying Securities Shares or Shares or .
Unexercised Underlying Units of Units of
Option Options Unexercised Option Option Stock Stock That Stock That
Grant # Unearned Options Exercise Expiration . Grant Have Not Have Not
Name Date Exercisable (#) Price (%) Date Date Vested (1) Vested ($)
Alan F. Schultz ......... 12/4/2001 93,125 35.51 12/472008
10/1/2002 135,000 35.20 10/1/2009
~ 47172003 90,000 45,000 25.71 4/1/2010
10/1/2003 90,000 45,000 26.90 10/1/2010
4/1/2004 135,000 30.76 4/1/201 1
10/1/2004 135,000 30.10 10/1/2011
4/1/2005 135,000 35.26 4/1/2012
4/1/2006 G 135,000 29.37 4172013
1/172007 15,000 30,000 14.50 1/1/2014
171/2005 3,750 43 838
1/1/2006 7,500 87,675
17172007 11,250 131,513
Robert L. Recchia ... 12/4/2001 16,875 3551 12/4/2008
10/1/2002 28,125 35.20 16/1/2009
4/1/2003 18,750 9,375 2571 4/1/2010
10/1/2003 18,750 9.375 26.90 10/1/2010
47172004 56,250 30.76 4/1/2011
10/1/2004 56,250 30.10 10/1/2011
4/1/2005 56,250 3526 4/1/2012
4/1/2006 0 56,250 2937 4/1/2013
1/1/2007 8,334 16,666 14,50 1/1/2014
7/1/2007 0 60,000 17.19 7/1/2014
1/1/2005 750 8,768
1/1/2005 750 8,768
17172006 1,500 17,535
1/1/2006 1,500 17,535
17172007 2,250 26,303
Barry P. Hoffman®™ ... 12/4/2001 21,300 35.51 12/4/2008
10/1/2002 56,250 35.20 107172609
4/1/2003 0 18,750 25.71 4/1/2010
10/1/2003 37,500 18,750 26.90 10/1/2010
4/1/2004 56,250 30.76 4/1/2011
10/1/2004 56,250 30.10 10/1/2011
4/172005 56,250 35.26 4/1/2012
4/1/2006 0 56,250 29.37 4/1/2013
1/1/2007 8,334 16,666 14.50 1/1/2014
1/1/2005 750 8,768
17172005 750 8,768

1/1/2006 1,500 17,535




Option Awards

Stock Awards

Equity Incentive

Number of Plan Awards: Market
Securities Number of Number of Value of
Underlying Securities Shares or Shares or
Unexercised Underlying Units of Units of
Option Options Unexercised Option Option Stock Stock That Stock That
Grant # Unearned Options Exercise Expiration Grant Have Not Have Not
Name Date Exercisable (#) Price (3) Date Date Vested (#) Vested (5)
1/1/2006 1,500 17,535
1/1/2007 2,250 26,303
Richard Herpich........ 12/4/2001 20,090 35.51 12/4/2008
10/1/2002 56,143 35.20 10/1/2009
4/1/2003 0 18,714 2571 4/1/2010
10/1/2003 0 18,715 26,90 10/1/2010
4/1/2004 56,143 30.76 4/1/2011
10/1/2004 56,143 30.10 10/1/2011
4/1/2005 56,143 35.26 4/1/2012
1/1/2007 8,334 16,666 14.50 1/1/2014
8/1/2007 0 25,000 [0.96 8/1/2014
17172005 750 8,768
1/1/2005 750 8,768
1/1/2006 1,500 17,535
1/1/2006 1,500 17,535
1/1/2007 2,250 26,303
William F. Hogg,
| S 7/1/2001 100,000 35.80 7/172011
12/4/2001 15,256 35.51 12/4/2008
12/4/2001 8,000 35.51 12/4/2(111
10/1/2002 43,750 35.20 10/1/2009
4/1/2003 29,167 14,583 2571 4/1/2010
10/1/2003 29,166 14,584 26.90 10/1/2010
4/1/2004 43,750 30.76 4/1/2011
10/1/2004 43,750 30.10 10/1/2011
4/1/2005 43,750 35.26 4/1/2012
4/1/2006 0 43,750 2937 4/01/2013
1/1/2007 8,334 16,666 1450 17172014
1/1/2006 2,000 23,380
1/1/2007 2,250 26,303

(o

Mr. Hoffman retired from his position with our Company effective January 1, 2008. All of Mr. Hoffman’s options vested

upon his retirement; however such options will expire if they are not exercised by July 2, 2008. See “Potential Payments and Benefits
Upon Tetmination” for further discussion regarding the terms of Mr. Hoffman’s retirement.
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Grant Date

Outstanding Option Awards Vesting Schedule

Vesting Schedule

4/1/2003

10/1/2003

4/1/2006

17172007

7/1/2007

8/1/2007

Grant Date

Vests in increments of 33.333%, 33.333% and 33.334% at such time that the closing sales price per share of our
common stock is equal to or exceeds $30.71, $35.71 and $40.71, respectively. [n any event, however, the options vest
in full on the fifth anniversary of the grant date.

Vests in increments of 33.333%, 33.333% and 33.334% at such time that the closing sales price per share of our
common stock is equal to or exceeds $31.90, $36.90 and $41.90, respectively. In any event, however, the options vest
in full on the fifth anniversary of the grant date.

Vests in increments of 33.333%, 33.333% and 33.334% at such time that the closing sales price per share of our
commen stock is equal to or exceeds $34.37, $39.37 and $44.37, respectively. [n any event, however, the options vest
in full on the fifth anniversary of the grant date.

Vests in increments of 33.333%, 33.333% and 33.334% at such time that the closing sales price per share of our
common stock is equal to or exceeds $19.50, $24.50 and $29.50, respectively. In any event, however, the options vest
in full on the fifth anniversary of the grant date.

Vests in increments of 33.333%, 33.333% and 33.334% at such time that the closing sales price per share of our
common stock is equal to or exceeds $22.19, $27.19 and $32.19. respectively. In any event, however, the options vest
in full on the fifth anniversary of the grant date.

Vests in increments of 33.333%, 33.333% and 33.334% at such time that the closing sales price per share of our

common stock is equal 1o or exceeds $16.36, $21.36 and 326.36, respectively. In any event, however, the options vest
in full on the fifth anniversary of the grant date.

Outstanding Stock Awards Vesting Schedule

Vesting Schedule

1/1/2004
1/1/2005
1/1/2006
1/2006A

1172007

Vests in increments of 33.333%, 33.333% and 33.334% on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date.
Vests in increments of 33.333%, 33.333% and 33.334% on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date.
Vests in increments of 33.333%, 33.333% and 33.334% on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date.
Vests in full on the first anniversary of the grant date.

Vests in increments of 33.333%, 33.333% and 33.334% on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date.




OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED IN FISCAL YEAR 2007

The following table provides information on the number of shares acquired and the value realized upon the vesting of restricted
stock by the named executive officers during the year ended December 31, 2007 (and before payment of any applicable withholding
tax). None of the named executive officers exercised stock options during 2007.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Shares Value Number of Shares
Acquired on Realized on Acquired on Value Realized on
Name Exercisc (#) Exercise ($) Vesting (#} Vesting (5}
Alan F. Schultz ..o, — -— 22,500 326,250
Robert L. Recchia ..., — — 4,500 65,250
Barry P, Hoffman ..o oo, — — 4,500 65,250
Richard Herpich..........coooooiiiis e, — — 4,500 65,250
William F. Hogg, Jr o, — — 1,000 14,500

" Amounts reflect the closing market value of the common stock on the day that the stock vested.

PENSION BENEFITS

We established a Supplemental Benefit Plan in 1998 and amended the Plan in 2002 and in 2008. Our Supplemental Benefit Plan
covers management employees who are designated by our Compensation/Stock Option Committee. Participating employees earn
credited service for each year of continuous service with us. The annual amount of supplemental benefit is calculated by multiplying a
participant’s years of credited service by 2% of the participant’s average annual base compensation while employed by us for the 36
months immediately preceding retirement or other termination of employment. The normal retirement age is 63 or such earlier time as
the participant is disabled, dies, is terminated without cause or there is a change of control of the company. The amount of
supplemental benefit provided by our Supplemental Benefit Plan was payable semi-annually and, as a result of an amendment to the
Plan in March 2008, is now payable annualiy for a period of 10 years, commencing upon retirement, death or other termination of
employment {or six months and a day thereafter with respect to certain amounts that were not earned and vested on December 31,
2004). The Supplemental Benefit Plan also provides that each participant is entitled to continued medical, prescription and dental
benefits on terms similar to those provided under company-sponsored plans for a period of 10 years following retirement or other
termination of employment. The benefits under the Supplemental Benefit Plan are provided subject to the participating employee’s
compliance with the non-competition and non-solicitation provision in the plan. Any participant who violates the non-competition and
non-solicitation restrictions forfeits participation under the plan and any further benefits thereunder. Participants do not contribute to
the plan. The plan is unfunded and not qualified for tax purposes.

Base compensation under the plan excludes bonuses, commissions or other compensation of any kind. Three-year average base
compensation for each of Mr. Schultz, Mr. Hoffman, Mr. Recchia and Mr. Herpich, who were participants under the plan as of the end
of 2007 is: Mr. Schultz $780,000, Mr. Hoffman $392,275, Mr. Recchia $408,333 and Mr. Herpich $360,000. The benefits under the
Supplemental Benefit Plan are not subject to any reduction for Social Security or any other offset amounts. Following his retirement
etfective January [, 2008, Mr. Hoffman will commence receiving certain benefits under the Supplemental Benefit Plan on or about
July 1, 2008.

[n May 2007, in connection with an amendment to his employment agreement, Mr. Hogg was granted the right pursuant to the
agreement to receive a supplemental retirement benefit commencing upon retirement, death, disability, change of control or other
termination of employment without “Cause” (as defined in Mr. Hogg’s employinent agreement) based an Mr. Hogg’s credited service
for each year of continuous service with the company, subject to certain vesting requirements. The annual amount of the supplemental
benefit is calculated by multiplying Mr. Hogg’s years of credited service by 2% of his average annual base compensation while
employed by Valassis for the 36 months immediately preceding retirement or other termination of employment. The normal
retirement age is 65 or such earlier time as he is disabled, dies, is terminated without cause or there is a change of control of the
company. The amount of supplemental benefit is payable semi-annually for a period of 10 years, commencing six months and a day
after his retirement, death or other termination of employment. The employment agreement also provides that Mr. Hogg is entitled to
continued medical, prescription and dental benefits on terms similar to those provided under company-sponsored plans for a period of
10 years following retirement or other termination of employment. The benefits under the agreement are provided subject to Mr.
Hogg’s compliance with the non-competition and non-solicitation provisions in his employment agreement. If Mr. Hogg violates the
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non-competition and non-solicitation restrictions he also forfeits the severance amounts and other benefits provided for by the
agreement.

The table below shows the present value of accumulated benefits at December 31, 2007 payable to each of the covered named
executive officers, including the number of years of service credited to such named executive officers, under our Supplemental Benefit
Plan using a discount rate of 5%. The table also shows the present value of accumulated benefits at December 31, 2007 payable to
Mr. Hogg pursuant to his employment agreement using a discount rate of 5%.

Name Pian Name Creaited Sepvve () Accumatated Benefit™ 5

Alan F. Schultz ... Supplemental Benefit Plan 23 2,847 975
Robert L. Recchia......oocoooveiiiiiinininiicieee, Supplemental Benefit Plan 25 1,653,938
Barry P. Hoffman™ ... Supplemental Benefit Plan 26 1,617,183
Richard Herpich ... Supplemental Benefit Plan 29 1,689,715
William F.HOEZE .o, Supplemental Benefit 29 408,737

" Mr. Hoffman retired effective January 1, 2008. As noted above, he will commence receiving certain benefits under the

Supplemental Benefit Plan on or about July 1, 2008.

)

Also includes the estimated incremental lump-sum present value of the payment obligations of our Company with respect to
continued medical, prescription and retirement benefits for each of the officers named in the table, calculated in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles for financial reporting purposes assuming (a) termination occurred on December 31,
2007, (b) a 5% discount rate, and (c) increases in the cost of coverage trending from 11% to 5% over the 10-year coverage term.

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS AND BENEFITS UPON TERMINATION

Estimated Payments Upon Death or Disability

In the event of a termination by reason of death or disability of an executive officer (as defined in the respective employment
agreements), we are required to pay to such executive or his estate in a lump-sum his annual base salary through the date of
termination and any deferred compensation and any accrued vacation pay to the date of termination. If this occurs, Messrs. Schultz
and Recchia are also entitled to receive an amount equal to the executive’s pro rata share of his semi-annual bonus for the six-month
period in which his employment terminates (based on the achievement of certain performance targets at the end of the six-month
period).

Estimated Payments Upcn Termination For Other Reasons

Under the terms of the employment agreements with Messrs. Schultz and Recchia, if we terminate the executive’s employment
other than for Cause (as defined in the respective employment agreements), or if the executive terminates his employment for Good
Reason (as defined in the respective employment agreements), then the executive is entitled to receive his base salary for the duration
of the term of his employment agreement, a lump-sum cash bonus in an amount equal to two times his maximum semi-annual cash
bonus for the current six-month period (whether or not earned), and any deferred compensation and any accrued vacation pay to the
date of termination. The executive is also entitled to receive the pro rata share of his semi-annual bonus for the six-month period in
which his employment terminates (based on the achievement of certain performance targets at the end of the six-month period). Under
the terms of the employment agreements with Messrs, Herpich and Hogg, if we terminate the executive’s employment other than for
Cause (as defined in the respective employment agreements), we are obligated 1o continue to pay such executive a base salary for the
duration of the term of his employment agreement, a lump-sum cash bonus in an amount equal to two times his maximum semi-annual
cash bonus for the current six-month period (whether or not earned), and any deferred compensation and any accrued vacation pay to
the date of termination. All of the employment agreements with the named executive officers provide that, under certain
circumstances, we are also required to maintain our executive’s participation in all empioyee welfare and medical benefit plans in
which the executive was eligible to participate at the time of his termination.

If we terminate the employment of Messrs. Schultz or Recchia for Cause, or any of them terminates his employment with us
without Good Reason, such executive officer is entitled to receive any compensation earned through the date of termination and any
previously deferred compensation. Following this payment, except as provided below, we will then have no further obligations to the
terminated executive officer under his employment agreement. Under the terms of the employment agreements for Messrs. Herpich
and Hogg, if we terminate the employment of such executive officer for Cause, we will pay such executive officer any compensation
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fl eamned through the date of termination and any previously deferred compensation. Following this payment, we will then have no
further obligations to the terminated executive officer under his employment agreement.

The employment agreements with our named executive officers prohibit the executives from competing with us during the
periods of their scheduled employment with us. In the case of Mr. Herpich and Mr. Hogg, this non-competition provision may
continue for up to two years following the termination of his employment, at our option, provided that we pay Mr. Herpich and
§ Mr. Hogg his then-existing annual base salary during the extended period. In the cases of Messrs. Hoffman and Recchia, this non-
competition provision continues for up to two years following the termination of their respective employment with us, provided that
d during the extended period the executives furnish advisory and consulting services to us and we pay such executives, as applicable,
their annual base salaries. Mr. Schultz’s employment agreement provides that this non-competition provision extends for seven years
§ after the later of the expiration date of his employment period or severance period, as the case may be, so long as we pay Mr. Schultz
3 his annual base salary during each of the first three years of such seven-year period as well as an amount equal to one-half of such
I annual base salary during each of the last four years of such period.

Estimated Payments Upon a Change of Control

Upon a change of control (as defined in our applicable stock option plan) all options granted to the named executive officers
become fully exercisable. In addition, the employment agreements provide that if any payment provided to these named executive
) officers on account of such acceleration of exercisability of such options upon a change of control would be subject to the excise tax
imposed by Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 or any successor provision, these named executive officers will be
entitled to a gross-up payment, Upon a change of control {as defined in our applicable restricted stock plan), shares of restricted stock
vest immediately. In addition, a change of contro! of our Company could result in one or more of the executives being terminated
other than for Cause, or one or more of Messrs. Schultz and Recchia terminating his respective employment for Good Reason. In
either of these events, the severance arrangements described above would apply.

The tables below describe and quantify certain compensation that would become payable under existing plans and arrangements
| if the named executive officer’s, other than Mr. Hoffman’s, employment had terminated on December 31, 2007, or if a change of
control occurred on that date, given the named executive officer’s compensation and service levels as of such date and, if applicable,
based on our closing stock price on that date. Mr. Hoffman retired from our Company effective January 1, 2008. Our payment
] obligations to Mr. Hoffman in connection with his retirement are described under the heading “—Retirement of Barry P. Hoffman”
below. These benefits are in addition to benefits available generally to salaried employees. In addition, the tables below do not
include amounts that the participating named executive officers are entitled to under our Supplemental Benefit Plan, which are
discussed above under “‘Pension Benefits.” Due to the number of factors that affect the nature and amount of any benefits provided
upon the events discussed below, any actual amounts paid or distributed may be different. Factors that could affect these amounts
include the timing during the year of any such event and our stock price.

BEST AVALABLE COPY

27




ALAN F. SCHULTZ

The following table shows the potential payments upon termination or a change of control of the company for Mr. Schultz, our
President and Chief Executive Officer.

Voluntary Normal Involuntary Good Involuntary Change ol
Termination  Retirement  not for Cause Resson for Cause Control Disability Death
(3) ($) (5 ($) (%) (5) ($) (3)

, n
Severance - — 1872000 1.872.000 —  1.872.000 — .
Accelerated Options' — 0 0 0 — 0 0 0
Accelerated Restricted

Stock™ — 263.025 263.025 263,025 — 263,025 263,025 263,025
Continuation of

Healthcare Benefits'™ — — — — — — — —_
Non-compete‘s' 3.900,000 3,500,000 3,900,000 3.900,000 3,900,000 3,900,000 3,900,000 —
Estimated Tax Gross-up®® — — — — — 0 — —
Total 3,900,000 4,163,025 6,035,025 6,035,025  3900,000 6035025 4,163,025 263025

o Reflects (i) annual base salary paid bi-weekly for the remainder of the term of the executive’s employment agreement following

termination, plus (ii) a lump-sum bonus equal to two times the executive’s maximum semi-annual cash bonus for the current
six-month period plus a pro rata share of the execulive's semi-annual bonus for the six-month period in which termination
occurs (whether earned or not).

= Reflects the value of options that become fully exercisable following the date of termination. Mr. Schultz has options

exercisable for 255,000 shares of our common stock which vest upon termination. However, the intrinsic value of the
unexercisable options as of December 31, 2007 was $0 because the exercise price of each option was higher than our stock price
on December 31, 2007, '

@ Reflects the shares of restricted stock that would become vested based on a fair market value per share of $11.69.

“ For information regarding the value of all future payments which the executive would be entitled to receive under our health
plans, see the section entitled “Pension Benefits.”

“ Reflects the estimated value of all future payments (paid bi-weekly) which the executive would be entitled to receive pursuant to

the non-competition provision contained in his employment agreement.

“ Under the executive’s employment agreement, we have agreed to reimburse the executive for all excise taxes that are imposed

on the executive by Section 280G and Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code and any income and excise taxes that are
payable by the executive as a result of any reimbursements for Section 280G and Section 4999 excise taxes. Based on our
estimates. we would not be required to pay an excise tax on any employment termination described above in connection with, or
upon, a change of control.




ROBERT L. RECCHIA

The following table shows the potential payments upon termination or a change of control of the company for Mr. Recchia, our

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer.

2}

3

{4

(6)

Voluntary Normal Involuntary Good Involuntary Change of
Termination  Retirement  not for Cause Reason for Cause Control Disability Death
% % (%) %) (%) (%) (3) (03]
Severance! —_— — 3,200,000 3,200,000 — 3,200,000 — —
Accelerated Options® -— 0 0 0 -— 0 0 0

Accelerated Restricted
Stock® — 78,908 78,908 78,908 — 78,908 78,908 78,908

Continuation of
Healthcare Benefits™

Non-compete® 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 —
Estimated Tax Gross-

“ptﬂl - - —_ P —_ 0 R —_
Total 1,000,000 1,078,908 4278908 4,278,908 1,000,000 4,278,908 1078908 78,908

Reflects (i) annual base salary paid bi-weekly for the remainder of the term of the executive’s employment agreement following
termination, plus (i} a lump-sum bonus equal to two times the executive’s maximum semi-annual cash bonus for the current
six-month period plus a pro rata share of the executive’s semi-annual bonus for the six-month period in which termination
occurs {(whether earned or not).

Reflects the value of options that become fully exercisable following the date of termination, Mr. Recchia has options
exercisable for 151,666 shares of our common stock which vest upon termination. However, the intrinsic value of the
unexercisable options as of December 31, 2007 was $0 because the exercise price of each option was higher than our stock price
on December 31, 2007.

Reflects the shares of restricted stock that would become vested based on a fair market value per share of $11.69.

For information regarding the value of all future payments which the executive would be entitled to receive under our health
plans, see the section entitled “Pension Benefits.”

Reflects the estimated value of all future payments (paid bi-weekly) which the executive would be entitled to receive pursuant to
the non-competition provision contained in his employment agreement,

Under the executive’s employment agreement, we have agreed to reimburse the executive for all excise taxes that are imposed
on the executive by Section 280G and Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code and any income and excise taxes that are
payable by the executive as a result of any reimbursements for Section 280G and Section 4999 excise taxes. Based on our
estimates, we would not be required to pay an excise tax on any employment termination described above in connection with, or
upon, a change of control.
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RICHARD HERPICH

The following table shows the potential payments upon termination or a change of control of the company for Mr. Herpich, our

Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketing.

W

*

)
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Yoluntary Normal Involuntary Good Inveluntary  Change of
Termination Retirement  not for Cause Reason for Cause Control Disability Dieath
(%) (%) () () (%) (3) (%) $)

Severance'" — — 1,296,000 1,296,000 — 1,296,000 — —
Accelerated Options® —_ 18,250 18,250 18,250 — 18,250 18,250 18,250
Accelerated Restricted

Stock™ — 78908 78,908 78,908 — 78,908 78,908 78,908
Continuation of Healthcare

Benefits® — — — — — — — —
Non-compete® 720,000 720,000 720,000 720,000 — 720,000 720,000 —
Estimated Tax Gross-up® — — — — — 0 — —
Total 720,000  B17,158 2,113,158 2,113,158 0 2,113,158 817,158 97,158

Reflects (i) annual base salary paid bi-weekly for the remainder of the term of the executive’s employment agreement following
termination, plus (if) a lump-sum bonus equal to two times the executive’s maximum semi-annual cash bonus for the current
six-month period.

Reflects the intrinsic value of the exercisable options that are in-the-money as of December 31, 2007, Mr, Herpich has options
exercisable for 54,095 shares of our common stock which vest upon termination. However, the intrinsic value of 29,095 of the
exercisable options as of December 31, 2007 was $0 because the exercise price of each option was higher than our stock price
on December 31, 2007.

Reflects the shares of restricted stock that would become vested based on a fair market value per share of $11.69,

For information regarding the value of all future payments which the executive would be entitled to receive under our health
plans, see the section entitled “Pension Benefits.”

Reflects the estimated value of all future potential payments (paid bi-weekly) which the executive may be entitled to receive
pursuant to the non-competition provision contained in his employment agreement assuming that we decide to enforce the non-
competition provision and pay this additional amount.

Under the executive’s employment agreement, we have agreed to reimburse the executive for all excise taxes that are imposed
on the executive by Section 280G and Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code and any income and excise taxes that are
payable by the executive as a result of any reimbursements for Section 280G and Section 4999 excise taxes. Based on our
estimates, we would not be required to pay an excise tax on any employment termination described above in connection with, or
upon, a change of control.
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WILLIAM F. HOGG, JR.

The following table shows the potential payments upon termination or a change of control of the company for Mr. Hogg, our

Executive Vice President of Manufacturing and Client Services.

Lm

2
13)

&)

{5)

6}

Voluntary Normal Involuntary Good Involuntary Change of
Termination Retirement not for Cause Reason for Cause Control Disahilicy Death
(3) (8} (3) ($) (6] () (3} (%)
Severance' — — 1,044,000 1,044,000 — 1,044,000 — —
Accelerated Options® — 0 0 0 — 0 0 0
Accelerated Restricted
Stock™ — 49,683 49,683 49,683 — 49,683 49,683 49,683
Continuation of Healthcare
Benefits™ — — 9,616 9,616 — 9,616 — —
Non-compete™® 580,000 580,000 580,000 580,000 — 580,000 580,000 —
Estimated Tax Gross-up® — — — — — 0 — —
Total 580,000 629,683 1,683,296 1,683,299 0 1,683,299 629,683 49,683

Reflects (i) annual base salary paid bi-weekly for the remainder of the term of the executive’s employment agreement following
termination, plus (ii) a lump-sum bonus equal to two times the executive’s maximum semi-annual cash bonus for the current
six-month period.

Reflects the value of options that become fully exercisable following the date of termination. Mr. Hogg has options exercisable
for 89,583 shares of our common stock which vest upon termination. However, the intrinsic value of the unexercisable options
as of December 31, 2007 was 30 because the exercise price of each option was higher than our stock price on December 31,
2007.

Reflects the shares of restricted stock that would become vested based on a fair market value per share of $11.69.

Reflects the estimated lump-sum present value of our payment obligations with respect to continued medical and welfare
benefits for the executive, calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for financial reporting
purposes assuming (a) termination occurred on December 31, 2007, (b} a 5% discount rate, and (¢) increases in the cost of
coverage trending from 11% to 9% over the coverage term. The executive is entitled to continued benefits following termination
until the date of termination of his employment agreement; provided that if the executive becomes employed with another
employer and is eligible to receive medical or other welfare benefits under another employer-provided plan, our payment
obligations shall be reduced.

Reflects the estimated value of all future potential payments (paid bi-weekly) which the executive may be entitled to receive
pursuant to the non-competition provision contained in his employment agreement assuming that we decide to enforce the non-
competition provision and pay this additional amount.

Under the executive’s employment agreement, we have agreed to reimburse the executive for all excise taxes that are imposed
on the executive by Section 280G and Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code and any income and excise taxes that are
payable by the executive as a result of any reimbursements for Section 280G and Section 4999 excise taxes, Based on our
estimates, we would not be required to pay an excise tax on any employment termination described above in connection with, or
upon, a change of control.




RETIREMENT OF BARRY P. HOFFMAN

Upon his retirement, which was effective January 1, 2008, Mr. Hoffman became entitled to receive the following payments
and benefits.

Accelerated Contribution to
Accelerated  Restricted  Supplemental Employee Profit
Options Stock Benefit Plan Bonus Sharing Plan Non- Yacation
#) # (%) Payment (§) (%) Compete ($) (%)
110,416 31,0009 1,994,070 161,460 13,500 807 3001 31,050

W Reflects the total amount of Mr. Hoffman’s options that automatically vested upon his retirement, however such options will

expire if they are not exercised by July 2, 2008. This total amount represents the following accelerated grants, together with
their applicable exercise prices: 18,750 options granted on April 1, 2003 ($25.71), 18,750 options granted on October 1,
2003 ($26.90), 56,250 options granted on April 1, 2006 ($29.37) and 16,666 options granted on January 1, 2007 ($14.50).
The closing market price of our stock as of March 5, 2008 was $11.34.
@ Reflects the shares of restricted stock that automatically vested upon Mr. Hoffman’s retirement. Based on the closing market
price of our stock as of December 31, 2007, which was $11.69, the fair market value of the accelerated restricted stock was
$35,070.
& Reflects the total supplemental benefit that Mr. Hoffman is entitled to receive under our Supplemental Benefit Plan, which is
payable for 10 years commencing upon his retirement.
@ Reflects a lump-sum bonus equal to 80% of Mr. Hoffman’s maximum semi-annual cash bonus for the six-month period
ended December 31, 2007.

@ Reflects contributions to be made on behalf of Mr. Hoffiman to our Employees’ Profit Sharing Plan.

® Reflects the total amount Mr. Hoffman is entitled to receive pursuant to the consulting and non-competition provision

contained in his employment agreement.
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2007 with respect to shares of our common stock that may be
issued under our existing equity compensation plans, including our Broad-Based Incentive Plan, our Amended and Restated 1992
Long-Term Incentive Plan, our 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan, our Executive Restricted Stock Award Plan, our Employee and
Director Restricted Stock Award Plan, our 2005 Executive Restricted Stock Plan, our 2005 Employee and Director Restricted Stock
Award Plan, and our ADVO Inc. 2006 Encentive Compensation Plan, as amended.

A B C

Number of Securitics
Remaining Available

Number of Securities for Future Issuance
to be Issued upon Weighted Average Under Equity
Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plans
Outstanding Quistanding (Excluding Securities
Plan Category Option(s) Options Reflected in Column A)
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Stockholders® ......................... 5,266,832 $29.03 512,236
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Stockholders™ .................. 1,842,671 $23.06 7.814,329

“ " Consists of our 2002 Long-Term Incentive Pian, our Amended and Restated 1992 Long-Term Incentive Plan, our Executive

Restricted Stock Award Plan, our Employee and Director Restricted Stock Award Plan, our 2005 Executive Restricted Stock
Plan and our 2005 Employee and Director Restricted Stock Award Plan.

Consists of our Broad-Based Incentive Plan and our ADVQ, Inc. 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan, which we assumed in
connection with our acquisition of ADVQ.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth information concerning the beneficial ownership of our conimon stock by our directors, our
named executive officers as well as all of our directors and executive officers as a group, as of March 5, 2008. Beneficial ownership is
determined in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC. For purposes of calculating the percentage beneficially owned,
the number of shares of our common stock includes 48,041,472 shares of our common stock outstanding as of March 5, 2008 and the
shares of our common stock subject to options held by the person or group that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days
from March 5, 2008. The address of all persons listed below is c/o Valassis Communications, Inc., 19975 Victor Parkway, Livonia,
Michigan 48152.

1

Name Shares Beneficiaily Owned Percent
JOSEPh B. ANETSOM....o.ovi vt et a e ara s 12,494 *
Patrick F.Brennan ... ..ot 57.686% *
Kenneth V. DarisSh ......c.oovvieiioi et e sttt ee et eeee s 49,7539 *
Richard HErpich ....ovev oottt ss et em s 269,052 *
Barry P. HOffMan ..ottt e e e emee e 439,043 *
William F. HOE, Jr..cveriiiiiiiieeeee e es s ar e 383,050 *
Dr. Walter Ho KUt 40,033® *
ROBErt L. RECCNIA ..ottt isisbe e crn et saeemee e oo aneee e 309,585 *
Marcella A, SAMPSOM .o.vvvviieireee ettt et et e st s e st eeranteeree et ereeseeeneaess 55,186 *
Alan F. Schultz.......oooiiiiiii e reenais 1,019,331 2.1%
Wallace S. Snyder ..o 350

Faith WHItHESEY .vovveeriieecre et 81,9942 *




Name : Shares Beneficially Owned"! Percent

All executive officers and directors as a group {12 Persons).......cccovvevvevevnenns : 2,436,931 5.1%
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Less than 1.0%.

Unless otherwise noted, cach director and executive officer has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares
shown as beneficially owned by him or her.

Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock granted to independent directors pursuant to
our executive jong-term incentive plans.

Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 49,000 shares of common stock granted to independent directors pursuant to
our executive long-term incentive plans.

Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 44,000 shares of common stock granted to independent directors pursuant to
our executive long-term incentive plans.

Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 244,662 shares of common stock granted pursuant to our executive long-term
incentive plans.

Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 402,550 shares of common stock pursuant to our executive long-term
incentive plans. Mr. Hoffiman retired from his position with our Company effective January 1, 2008. See “Potential Payments
and Benefits Upon Termination” for further discussion regarding the terms of Mr. Hoffiman’s retirement,

Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 364,923 shares of common stock pursuant to our executive long-term
incentive plans.

[ncludes currently exercisable options to purchase 35,000 shares of common stock granted pursuant to our executive long-term
incentive plans.

Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 259,584 shares of our common stock granted pursuant to our executive long-
term incentive plans.

Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 49,000 shares of our common stock granted to independent directors pursuant
to our executive long-term incentive plans.

Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 828,125 shares of our common stock purSuant 10 our executive long-term
incentive plans.

Includes currently exercisable options to purchase 68,000 shares of our common stock granted to independent directors pursuant
1o our executive long-term incentive plans.

This number includes currently exercisable options to purchase 2,099,628 shares of our common stock pursuant to our executive
long-term incentive plans.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL
OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our executive officers and directors, and persons who own more than 10% of a

registered class of our equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC and the New York Stock
Exchange. Executive officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholders are required by SEC regulation to furnish us with copies of
all Section 16(a} forms they file.

Based solely on review of the copies of such forms furnished to us, or written representations that no Forms § were required, we

believe that during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable (o our officers and
directors were complied with.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

The following table presents information concerning the ownership of our common stock by all holders who beneficially owned

more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock as of March 5, 2008.

Beneficial Percent of
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Ownership Class

Barrow, Hanley, Mewhinney & Strauss, INC.0.........oooiiiieiceeeec et 5,057,500 10.55%
22000 ROSS AVENUE, 31 FLOOI ..o ettt ee e eae e emeeamn e
Dallas, TX T5201-2761 oottt ettt e e e s te e st ea et en et e sa e te e
Citadel Investment Group, L.L.C.2. e revess e st 3,128,766 6.50%
131 S. Dearborm Streel, 320 FlOOT ..ottt ettt eee et e st e st eeeeeeeeeeeeeeensons
Chicago, IL 60603 ...ttt e ettt
Della Partners LLC™ ..ottt et ee e te st st s eeeeee e e e e ee e asseeeseessessmsearssens o 4,337,300 9.10%
One International Place, SUIte 2401 ..o seeeer et s eeeese e eeete oo s esstsestesesannanns
BOStOn, MA 02110 ettt et a et et st se e st et e et s eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeeae e
FIMR L™ ittt et v et s sae e sb e et e e smtebs st sas st e sre st i 3,195,063 6.66%

Boston, MA Q2109 .ottt e e st ettt et ee e e ne et aes
LeGrange Capital Partners, L.P5 ..ottt 2,507,679 5.20%
570 Lexington Avenue, 27th FIOOT ..ot et et
New York, NY 10022 ..ottt e e e e e e e nnn
NOEEh RUN CaPItal LP™ oottt ettt et eemeeeeemeeeessseseenaeeensneneeeesssas 3,894,100 8.12%
One International Place, SUIte 2401 .ot s v e vt vreeene s oas
BOSLON, MA Q2110 .o e esace e ssteres s st e e s e e se e ee et et ereetesmesreeaesesneesmsans
Hotchkis and Wiley Capital Management, LLC? ..o seesve s 5,518,200 11.50%
725 South Figueroa Street, 39Uh FIOOT (..o seesee e eeteeet e tavesavesste st eartesstaeseas
Los Angeles, California 9001 7-5439 ..ot
Prides Capital Partners, L. G e ee s e st e e ee et e e e esresesee st s st seessesn 3,552,200 7.40%
200 High Street, Suite 700 .......oovvviecrveiec et s ettt ee e
BOSIOn, MA Q2110 oottt sttt et ee et eee e et ee e aaeeneeseensensesereessessee
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According to information contained in a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 13, 2008, Barrow, Hanley,
Mewhinney & Strauss, Inc. has sole voting power with respect to 2,804,500 shares of our common stock and sole dispositive
power with respect to 5,057,500 shares of our common stock.

According to information contained in a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 28, 2008, Citadel Investment Group,
L.L.C. (*Citadel") has shared voting and dispositive power with respect to 3,128,766 shares of olir commen stock. In addition,
the tiling reports that Citadel shares this voting power with the following reporting persons: Citadel Investment Group 11,
L.L.C., Citadel Limited Partnership, Kenneth Griffin, Citadel Holdings 1 LP, Citade! Holdings 11 L.P, Citadel Advisors LLC,
Citadel Equity Fund Lud., Citadel Derivatives Group LLC and Citadel Derivatives Trading Ltd.

According to information contained in a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 11, 2008, Delta Partners LLC
(*Delta”) has shared voting and dispositive power with respect to 4,337,300 shares of our common stock. In addition, the filing
reports that Delta shares this voting power with the following reporting persons: Charles Jobson and Prism Offshore Fund, Ltd.
In addition. the filing reports that shares reported for Delta Partners LLC and Charles Jobson include shares beneficially owned
by Prism Partners.L.P., Prism Offshore Fund Limited, Prism Partners QP, LP and one separate unnamed account.

According to information contained in a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 14, 2008, FMR LLC has sole dispositive
power with respect to 3,195,065 shares of our common stock.

According to information contained in a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 14, 2008, L.aGrange Capital Partners,
L.P., LaGrange Capital Partners Offshore Fund, Ltd., LaGrange Capital Administration, L.L.C. and Frank LaGrange Johnson
beneficially own 2,507,679 shares of our common stock.

According to information contained in a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 14, 2008, North Run Capital, LP,
North Run GP, LP, North Run Advisors, LLC, Todd B. Hammer and Thomas B. Ellis have sole voting and dispositive power
with respect to 3,894,100 shares of our common stock. In addition, the filing contained a Joint Filing Agreement, dated
February 14, 2008, between the aforementioned parties authorizing the joint filing of the Schedule 13G/A.

According to information contained in a Schedule 13G/A filed with the SEC on February 14, 2008, Hotchkis and Wiley Capital
Management, LLC. in its capacity as investment advisor, has sole voting power with respect to 4,026,700 shares of our common
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stock and sole dispositive power with respect to 5,518,200 shares of our common stock, which includes shares held by Hotchkis
and Wiley Mid-Cap Value Fund.

According to information contained in a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on January 22, 2008, Prides Capital Partners, L.L.C.
(“Prides”) has shared voting and dispositive power with respect to 3,552,200 shares of our common stock. In addition, the filing
reports that Prides shares this voting power with the following reporting persons: Kevin A. Richardson, [1, Henry J. Lawlor, Jr.,
Murray A. Indick and Charles E. McCarthy.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors is comprised of the three directors named below. It operates pursuant to a
written charter adopied by our Board of Directors which can be viewed in the “Investors/Corporate Governance” section of the
Company’s Web site at wiww. valassis.com.

The role of the Audit Committee is to assist our Board of Directors in its oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
process. Our Board of Directors, in its business judgment, has determined that all members of the Audit Committee are “independent,”
as required by applicable listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange and the rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC. As
set forth in the Audit Committee Charter, the management of the Company is responsible for the preparation, presentation and
integrity of the Company’s financial statements, the Company’s accounting and financial reporting principles and internal controls and
procedures designed to assure compliance with accounting standards and applicable laws and regulations. The Company’s
independent auditors are responsible for auditing the Company’s financial statements and expressing an opinion as to their conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles,

In the performance of its oversight function, the Audit Committee has considered and discussed with management and the
Company’s independent auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007 and
management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. Our Audit
Committee has also discussed with Deloitte & Touche LLP the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards
No. 61, Communication with Audit Committees, as amended by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 90. Finally, the Audit
Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from Deloitte & Touche LLP required by Independence Standards Board
Standard No. 1, Independence Discussions with Audit Committees, as currently in effect and discussed with Deloitte & Touche LLP
that firm’s independence. The Audit Committee also considered whether Deloitte & Touche LLP’s non-audit services, including tax
consulting and benefit plan services are compatible with maintaining Deloitte & Touche LLP’s independence.

The members of the Audit Committee are not professionally engaged in the practice of auditing or accounting and are not
experts in the fields of accounting or auditing, including in respect of auditor independence. Members of the Audit Committee rely
without independent verification on the information provided to them on the representations made by management and the
independent accountants. Accordingly, the Audit Committee’s oversight does not provide an independent basis to determine that
management has maintained appropriate accounting and financial reporting principles or appropriate internal control and procedures
designed to assure compliance with accounting standards and applicable laws and regulations. Furthermore, the Audit Committee’s
considerations and discussions referred to above do not assure that the audit of the Company’s financial statements has been carried
out in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, that the financial statements are presented in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles or that the Company’s auditors are in fact “independent.”

Based upon the reviews and discussions referred to above, in reliance on management and the independent registered accounting
firm, and subject to the limitations on the role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee referred to above and in the Audit
Committee Charter, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be included in
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 filed with the SEC.

This Audit Committee Report shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by
reference this proxy statement into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under such Acts.

SUBMITTED BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Patrick F. Brennan, Chairman
Kenneth V. Darish

Wallace S, Snyder
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APPROVAL OF THE VALASSIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 2008 SENIOR EXECUTIVES SEMI-ANNUAL BONUS
PLAN (PROPOSAL 2)

On February 28, 2008, our Board of Directors approved, subject to stockholder approval, the Valassis Communications, [ne. 2008
Senior Executives Semi-Annual Bonus Plan (the “Bonus Plan™). The Bonus Plan is designed to provide “performance-based
compensation” under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code™). Section 162(m) generally denies corporate
tax deductions for annual compensation exceeding $1 million paid to certain employees, generally the chief executive officer and the
four other most highly compensated executive officers of a public company, excluding the chief financial officer. Certain types of
compensation, including performance-based compensation, arc excluded from this deduction limit. In order for compensation to
qualify as “performance-based,” the compensation may be paid only when the performance goals associated with such compensation
are attained. In addition, among other requirements, the performance goals must be approved by our stockholders.

We currently maintain an executive bonus plan, the Valassis Communications, Inc. Amended and Restated Senior Executives
Annual Bonus Plan (the “Prior Plan™), that is intended to comply with the requirements of Section 162(m) of the Code. Under the
Prior Plan, our Compensation/Stock Option Committee may only award bonuses that are based on the achievement of performance
goals relating to earnings per share. With our acquisition of ADVO and the changes that this has brought to the size and complexity
of our Company, our Board of Directors has determined that it is in the best interest of our Company and our stockholders to provide
for the flexibility to grant bonus awards that are subject to the achievement of a wide variety of objective performance goals. as further
described below. Other than in this respect, the Bonus Plan provides for awards that are similar to those under the Prior Plan. If our
stockholders approve the Bonus Plan, no further bonuses will be awarded under the Prior Plan.

Our Board of Directors seeks stockholder approval of the Bonus Plan in order to qualify payments thereunder as “performance-
based compensation” that is exempt from the $1 million deduction limit. [f stockholders do not approve the Bonus Plan, the
conditional award granted to our Chief Executive Officer under the Bonus Plan described below will be void and he will instead
receive awards under the Prior Plan. The Internal Revenue Service has recently issued new guidance on what constitutes
“performance-based compensation™ for purposes of Section 162(m). We intend to evaluate this guidance in light of the Bonus Plan
and the provisions of individual employment agreements. This guidance may effect the deductibility of compensation paid by our
Company in future years.

Description of the Bonus Plan

The following is a summary of the material features of the Bonus Plan. The Bonus Plan provides for awards that are similar to
those under the Prior Plan. The following summary does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the
terms of the Bonus Plan, which is attached to this proxy statement as Exhibit C.

Purpose. The purpose of the Bonus Plan is to provide an incentive for selected officers of our Company to improve corporate
performance by providing each participating officer with an opportunity to receive a cash bonus payment based upon the attainment of
certain performance goals, thus motivating such officers to stimulate our Company’s overall growth and success.

Eligible Participants. Our Chicef Executive Ofiicer and any other executive officer of our Company who has been designated by
our Compensation/Stock Option Committee as likely to have the deductibility of his or her compensation limited by Section 162(m} of
the Code are eligible to participate in the Bonus Plan.

Award Types. The Bonus Plan provides for the award and payment of cash bonuses that are intended to qualify as “performance-
based compensation.” Bonuses are expressed as a percentage of a participant’s annual base salary. Bonuses under the Bonus Plan
will be paid if certain performance goals are met over a six-month performance period,

Performance Goals; Terms of Awards. Our Compensation/Stock Option Committee will determine the terms and conditions of
each award under the Bonus Plan. Our Compensation/Stock Option Committee will establish objective performance-based goals for
bonuses awarded under the Bonus Plan. Permissible performance goals include any one of the following or combination thereof
which may be applicable on a company-wide basis and/or with respect to operating units, divisions, subsidiaries, acquired businesses,
minerity investments, partnerships, or joint ventures:

(a) General Financial Objectives:
. Increasing our Company’s net sales;
. Achieving a target level of earnings (including gross carnings: earnings before certain deductions, such as
interest, taxes, depreciation, or amortization: earnings per share: or adjusted cash earnings per share);
. Achieving a target level of income (including net income or income before consideration of certain factors,

such as overhead) or a rarget level of gross profits for our Company, an affiliate, or a business unit;
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. Achieving a target return on our Company’s (or an affiliate’s) capital, assets, or stockholders’ equity;

. Maintaining or achieving a target level of appreciation in the price of the shares;

. Increasing our Company’s (or an affiliate’s) market share to a specified target level;

o Achieving or maintaining a share price that meets or exceeds the performance of specified stock market
indices or other benchmarks over a specified period;

. Achieving a level of share price, earnings, or income performance that meets or exceeds performance in
comparable areas of peer companies over a specifted period;

. Achieving specified reductions in costs; and

. Achieving a target level of cash flow.

{b) Operational Objectives:

. Introducing one or more products into one or more new markets;
. Acquiring a prescribed number of new clients in a line of business;
. Achieving a prescribed level of productivity within a business unit;
» Completing specified projects within or below the applicable budget;
. Completing acquisitions of other businesses or integrating acquired businesses; and
. Expanding into other markets.
() And any other criteria established by our Compensation/Stock Option Committee (but only if such other criteria are

approved by our stockholders).

Performance goals may be absolute in their terms or measured against or in relationship to other companies comparably,
similarly or otherwise situated or other external or internal measures and may include or exciude extraordinary charges, capital
B expenditures, losses from discontinued operations, restatements and accounting changes and other unplanned special charges such as
restructuring expenses, acquisitions, acquisition expenses (including without limitation expenses related to goodwill and other
intangible assets), stock offerings, stock repurchases and strategic loan loss provisions.

For each six-month performance period, awards shall meet the following requirements:

. The performance geals will be established by our Compensation/Stock Option Committee no later than the
45th day of the performance period.

. Our Compensation/Stock Option Committee will determine whether the performance goals have been
satisfied and the amount of bonuses paid under the Bonus Plan.

. No bonus will be payable under the Bonus Plan until our Compensation/Stock Option Committee certifies
in writing that the performance goals associated with the honus have been satisfied.

. Our Compensation/Stock Option Committee has the ability to reduce or eliminate (but not increase) a

bonus payable to a plan participant (subject to the terms of any individual employment agreements).

Maximum Payment. The maximum bonus that a participant in the Bonus Plan may earn with respect to any six-month
performance period is $1,500,000.

Payment Date. Payment will be made in a lump sum no later than sixty (60) days after the end of the applicable six-month
performance period.

Termination of Employment. Subject to the terms of any individual employment agreements, if a Bonus Plan participant’s
employment is terminated by our Company due to death, disability, or without cause or if the participant resigns for good reason, the
participant (or his beneficiary, in the event of death) shall receive a pro rata share of the bonus award for the six-month measurement
period in which he terminates employment, based on actual performance. Any such pro-rata bonus will be paid at the same time as
bonuses are paid to other participants in the Bonus Plan.

Term of the Plan. The Bonus Plan will continue for 10 years from the date of approval by our stockholders, unless it is terminated
earlier by our Beard of Directors. The regulations under Section 162(m) of the Code require that stockholders re-approve the
performance goals under the Bonus Plan no later than the first stockholders meeting that occurs in 2013, To the extent necessary to
comply with the requirements of Section 162(m) of the Code, the payment of bonuses under the Bonus Plan will be subject to
approval of the performance goals under the Bonus Plan by our stockholders.
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Administration. The Bonus Plan shall be administered by our Compensation/Stock Option Committee. Our Compensation/Stock
Option Committee will have autherity to interpret and administer the Bonus Plan, and any such determinations shall be final and
binding on all participants in the Bonus Plan.

Wiihholding. All bonus payments will be subject to withholding of applicable federal, state, local, or other taxes.

Amendment and Termination. Our Board of Directors may amend, suspend, or terminate the Bonus Plan, provided that no such
action will apply to any bonus award made prior to the date of such action, unless such change is necessary to satisfy applicable law,
meet the requirements of an accounting standard or avoid any adverse accounting treatrnent.

Impact on the Prior Plan. No further awards will be granted under the Prior Plan if stockholders approve the Bonus Plan.

New Plan Benefits. Our Compensation/Stock Option Committee has granted the following target bonus award under the Bonus
Plan to Mr. Schultz, our Chief Executive Officer, for 2008, subject to stockholder approval of the Bonus Plan. [f stockholders do not
approve the Bonus Plan, the award to Mr. Schultz under this plan will become void and he will instead receive awards under our
existing Amended and Restated Senior Executives Annual Bonus Plan. If the Bonus Plan is approved by our stockholders, any future
grants of awards thereunder that will be made to other eligible participants are subject to the discretion of our Compensation/Stock
Option Committee and, therefore, are not determinable at this time.

Bonus Plan
Name and Position % of Base
Salary
Alan F. Schultz, Chief Executive Officer and President 100

Robert L. Recchia, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer .-

Barry P. Hoffman, Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary -

Richard Herpich, Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketing --
William F. Hogg, Jr., Executive Vice President of Manufacturing and Client Services --

Executive officers as a group -
Non-employee directors as a group -
Non-executive employees as a group --
©  This percentage is based on the target bonus award for the six-month period ended June 30, 2008.

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of our common stock present in person or represented by proxy at
the annual meeting is required for approval of the Valassis Communications, Inc. 2008 Senior Executives Semi-Annual Bonus Plan.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” APPROVAL OF THE BONUS
PLAN.
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APPROVAL OF THE VALASSIS COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 2008 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN
(PROPOSAL 3)

On February 28, 2008, our Board of Directors approved, subject to stockholder approval, the Valassis Communications, Inc.
2008 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Omnibus Plan™), We are submitting the Omnibus Plan to our stockholders for
approval, which is required under the terms of the Omnibus Plan for awards under the Omnibus Plan to be valid and effective. We are
also seeking stockholder approval in accordance with the requirements of the New York Stock Exchange and in order for certain
awards under the Omnibus Plan to qualify as “performance-based compensation” that is exempt from the $1 million deduction limit
imposed by Section 162(m) of the Code.

We believe that appropriate equity incentives are important to attract and retain the highest caliber of employees, to link
incentive reward to company performance, to encourage employee ownership in our Company, and to align the interests of
employees, consultants and directors to those of our stockholders. The approval of the Omnibus Plan will enable us to continue to
provide such incentives.

In connection with our acquisition of ADVQ, Inc. in 2007, we assumed the ADVO, Inc. 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan
(the “ADVO Plan”). As of February 29, 2008 there were 7,086,981 shares of our common stock available for issuance under the
ADVO Plan. Under applicable New York Stock Exchange rules, these available shares can only be used for equity awards to be
granted to individuals who at the time of the ADVO acquisition were not employed by Valassis. The Omnibus Plan provides for |
awards that are similar to those under the ADVO Plan. If our stockholders approve the Omnibus Plan, we will decrease the number of
shares available for grant under the ADVO Plan so that the aggregate number of shares of our common stock available for grant under
both the Omnibus Plan and the ADVO Plan is the same as the number of shares available for grant under the ADVO Plan as of
February 29, 2008, subject to certain further adjustments relating to the Prior Plans as described immediately below. As a result,
approval of the Omnibus Plan will niot result in any additional dilution to our outstanding shares. If our stockholders do not approve
the Omnibus Plan, the ADVO Plan will continue in existence and we will continue to grant awards under it.

The Omnibus Plan is also intended to be a successor to the Company’s 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan, Broad-Based
Incentive Plan, 2005 Executive Restricted Stock Plan and 2005 Employee and Director Restricted Stock Award Plan (collectively, the
“Prior Plans”). As of February 29, 2008, there were 329,870 shares of common stock available for issuance under the Prior Plans, If
our stockholders approve the Omnibus Plan, any shares that then remain available for grant under the Prior Plans will be transferred to
the Omnibus Plan and no further awards will be granted under the Prior Plans.

[f the Omnibus Plan is not approved by our stockholders, any awards that have previously been granted under the Omnibus
Plan will be void and no future awards will be granted thereunder. However, our Compensation/Stock Option Commitiee may grant
awards under our existing equity plans, including the ADVO Plan, if our stockholders do not approve the Omnibus Plan.

Description of the Omnibus Plan

The following is a summary of the material features of the Omnibus Plan. The following summary does not purport to be
complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the terms of the Omnibus Plan, which is attached to this proxy statement as
Exhibit D.

Purposes of the Omnibus Pian. The purposes of the Omnibus Plan are to assist us in attracting, retaining and rewarding high-
quality executives, employees and other persons who provide services to us or our subsidiaries, enabling such persons to acquire a
proprietary interest in our Company and providing them with annual and long-term performance incentives to expend their maximum
efforts in the creation of stockholder value,

Administration, The Omnibus Plan will be administered by the Compensation/Stock Option Committee of our board
(referred to as the “committee™). The committee {or a subcommittee thereof, to the extent necessary) will be composed of two or
more members of our board who are not our employees or consultants. The Omnibus Plan gives the committee discretion to make
awards under the Omnibus Plan, to set the terms of award agreements (including the type and amount of any award), to establish rules
for the interpretation and administration of the Omnibus Plan, and to make other determinations and take other actions consistent with
the terms and purposes of the Omnibus Plan.

The committee may, to the extent permitted by applicable law, delegate to one or more of our executive officers the authority
to select individuals (other than executive officers and directors) to receive awards under the Omnibus Plan and to determine the

amount and types of awards granted to individuals who are selected.,
BEST AVAILABLE COPY
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Lligibility. Executive officers, officers, other employees, directors and consultants of our Company and our subsidiaries and
affiliates are eligible to participate in the Omnibus Plan. This group currently includes ¢ directors and approximately 7,500 executive
officers, officers, other employees and consultants.

Shares Available for Awards. If the Omnibus Plan is approved, 7,000,000 shares of our common stock will be reserved for
awards under this plan. In addition, the shares of common stock available for issuance under the Prior Plans will be transferred to the
Omnibus Plan. Shares delivered under the Omnibus Plan may consist, in whole or in part, of authorized and unissued shares of
common stock, treasury shares or shares of stock acquired by us. On February 29, 2008, the closing price of a share of our common
stock was $11.22.

Shares reserved for awards that lapse or are canceled, together with shares withheld or surrendered in payment of any
exercise price or 1ax obligation with respect to an award, will be available for future grant under the Omnibus Plan. Substitute awards
may be granted under the Omnibus Plan in substitution for stock and stock-based awards held by employees, directors, consultants or
advisors of an acquired company in a merger or consolidation. Substitute awards will not count against the share limit under the
Omnibus Plan. Awards other than stock options and restricted stock may be settled in media other than common stock, such as cash.

Individual Limits. In any year, an eligible employee, consultant, or director may receive under the Omnibus Plan stock
options or stock appreciation rights with respect to no more than 1,000,000 shares and restricted stock, restricted stock units,
performance awards or other awards with respect to no.more than 1,000,000 shares. The maximum cash amount that may be earned
under the Omnibus Plan as an annual cash award by any participant is $3,000,000 and the maximum cash amount that may be earned
in respect of an award having a performance period other than an annual period is $7,000,000.

Adjustments. The aggregate number of shares under the Omnibus Pian, the class of shares as to which awards may be
granted and the exercise price of and number of shares covered by each outstanding award are subject to adjustment in the event of a
stock dividend, recapitalization or certain other corporate transactions.

Tvpes of Awards. The Omnibus Plan allows any of the following types of awards, to be granted alone or in tandem with
other awards:

Stock Options. Stock options granted under the Omnibus Plan may be either incentive stock options, which are intended to
satisfy the requirements of Section 422 of the Code, or nonstatutory stock options, which are not intended to meet those requirements.
The exercise price of a stock option may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant and
the term may not be longer than 10 years, subject to certain rules applicable to incentive stock options. The Qmnibus Plan prohibits
the repricing of outstanding stock options. Award agreements for stock options may include rules for the effect of a termination of
service on the option and the term for exercising stock options after any termination of service. No option may be exercised afier the
end of the term set forth in the award agreement.

Stock Appreciation Rights. A stock appreciation right entitles the grantee to receive, with respect to a specified number of
shares of common stock, any increase in the value of the shares from the date the award is granted to the date the right is exercised.
Stock appreciation rights may be settled in cash, common stock or a combination of the two, as determined by the committee. Award
agreements for stock appreciation rights may include rules for the effect of a termination of service on the stock appreciation right and
the term for exercising stock appreciation rights after any termination of service. No stock appreciation right may be exercised after
the end of the term set forth in the award agreement.

Restricted Stock. Restricted stock is common stock that is subject to restrictions, including a prohibition against transfer and
a substantial risk of forfeiture, until the end of a “restricted period” during which the grantee must satisfy certain vesting conditions
(which may include attaining certain performance goals). If the grantee does not satisfy the vesting conditions by the end of the
resiricted period, the restricted stock will be forfeited.

During the restricted period, the holder of restricted stock has the rights and privileges of a regular stockholder, except that
the restrictions set forth in the applicable award agreement apply.

Restricted Stock Units. A restricted stock unit entitles the grantee to receive common stock, cash or a combination thereof
based on the value of common stock, after a “restricted period” during which the grantee must satisfy certain vesting conditions
(which may include attaining certain performance goals). If the grantee does not satisfy the vesting conditions by the end of the
restricted period, the restricted stock unit is forfeited. The committee is authorized (but not required) to grant holders of restricted
stock units the right to receive dividends on the underlying common stock.
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Other Equity-Based Awards. The Omnibus Plan also authorizes the committee to grant other types of equity-based
compensation, including dividend equivalents, stock in lieu of a bonus, awards that may be settled in cash and other awards that are
denominated or payable in, valued in whole or in part by reference to, or otherwise based on our common stock. For example, the
committee may grant awards that are based on the achievement of performance goals {described below).

Vesting and Performance Objectives. Awards under the Omnibus Plan are forfeitable until they become vested. An award
will become vested only if the vesting conditions set forth in the award agreement (as determined by the committee) are satisfied. The
vesting conditions may include performance of services for a specified period, achievement of performance goals (as described
below), or a combination of both. The committee also has authority to provide for accelerated vesting upon occurrence of certain
events.

Performance goals selected by the committee as vesting conditions must be based on any one of the following performance
goals or combination thereof which may be applicable on a company-wide basis and/or with respect to operating units, divisions,
subsidiaries, acquired businesses, minority investments, partnerships, or joint ventures:

(a} General Financial Objectives:
. Increasing our Company’s net sales;
. Achieving a target level of earnings (including gross earnings; earnings before certain deductions, such as
interest, taxes, depreciation, or amortization; earnings per share; or adjusted cash earnings per share);
. Achieving a target leve! of income (including net income or income before consideration of certain factors,

such as overhead) or a target level of gross profits for our Company, an affiliate, or a business unit;

Achieving a target return on our Company’s (or an affiliate’s) capital, assets, or stockholders’ equity;

Maintaining or achieving a target level of appreciation in the price of the shares;

Increasing our Company’s {or an affiliate’s) market share to a specified target level;

Achieving or maintaining a share price that meets or exceeds the performance of specified stock market

indices or other benchmarks over a specified period;

. Achieving a level of share price, camings, or income performance that meets or exceeds performance in
comparable areas of peer companies over a specitied period;

. Achieving specified reductions in costs; and

. Achieving a target leve! of cash flow.

(b) Operational Objectives:

Introducing one or more products into one or more new markets;

Acquiring a prescribed number of new clients in a line of business;

Achieving a prescribed level of productivity within a business unit;

Completing specified projects within or below the applicable budget;

Completing acquisitions of other businesses or integrating acquired businesses; and
Expanding into other markets.

(c) And any other criteria established by the committee (but only if such other criteria are approved by our
stockholders).

Performance goals may be absolute in their terms or measured against or in relationship to other companies comparably,
similarly or otherwise situated or other external or internal measures and may include or exclude extraordinary charges, capital
expenditures, losses from discontinued operations, restatements and accounting changes and other unplanned special charges such as
restructuring expenses, acquisitions, acquisition expenses (including without limitation expenses related to goodwill and other
intangible assets), stock offerings, stock repurchases and strategic loan loss provisions.

Nontransferability. In general, awards under the Omnibus Plan may not be assigned or transferred except by will or the laws
of descent and distribution. However, the committee may allow the transfer of awards (other than incentive stock options and stock
appreciation rights granted in tandem with such options) to persons or to a trust or partnership designated by a participant.

Change in Control. Unless otherwise provided for in an individual award agreement, upon a change in control {(as defined in
the Omnibus Plan), all outstanding and unexercised options and stock appreciation rights will become fully vested and exercisable and
will remain exercisable for the balance of their terms and all restrictions applicabie to other awards will lapse and such awards will
become fully vested. The treatment of any performance-based award will be provided for in individual award agreements.
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Withholding. We are authorized to withhold from any award granted and any payment relating to any award under the
Omnibus Plan any applicable taxes. In the discretion of the committee, a participant may satisfy his or her withholding obligations
through our withholding shares of commeon stock that would otherwise be delivered upon settlement of the award.

Amendment and Termination. Our board or the committee may amend, alter, suspend, or terminate the Omnibus Plan at any
time. If necessary to comply with any applicable law (including stock exchange rules), any such amendment will be subject to
stockholder approval. Without the consent of an affected participant, no action may materially and adversely affect the rights of such
participant under any previously granted award, without his or her consent.

Effective Date and Duration. The Omnibus Plan’s effective date is February 28, 2008. However, the Omnibus Plan and any
awards will be null and void if the Omnibus Plan is not approved by the our stockholders before any compensation under the Omnibus
Plan is paid. Unless it is terminated sooner, the Omnibus Plan will terminate upon the earlier of the 10th anniversary of the effective
date or the date all shares available for issuance under the Omnibus Plan have been issued and vested.

Federal Income Tax Consequences

The material federal income tax consequences of the issuance and exercise of stock options and other awards under the
Omnibus Plan, based on the current provisions of the Code and regulations, are as follows, Changes to these laws could alter the tax
consequences described below. This summary assumes that all awards granted under the Omnibus Plan are exempt from or comply
with the rules under Section 409A of the Code related to nonqualified deferred compensation.

Stock Options. The grant of a stock option will have no tax consequences to grantee or to our Company. In general, upon the
exercise of an incentive stock option, the grantee will not recognize income and we will not be entitled to a tax deduction. However,
the excess of the acquired shares” fair market value on the exercise date over the exercise price is included in the employee’s income
for purposes of the alternative minimum tax.

Upon the exercise of a non-qualified stock option, the grantee will generally recognize ordinary income equal to the excess of
the acquired shares’ fair market value on the exercise date over the exercise price, and we will generally be entitled to a tax deduction
in the same amount.

Stock Appreciation Rights. The grant of a stock appreciation right will have no tax consequences to the grantee or to our
Company. Upon the exercise of a stock appreciation right, the grantee will recognize ordinary income equal to the received shares’
fair market value on the exercise date, and we will generaily be entitled to a tax deduction in the same amount.

Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, and Other Equity Awards. In general, the grant of restricted stock, a restricted stock
unit, or other equity awards that are subject to restrictions will have no tax consequences to the grantee or to our Company. When the
award is settled (or, in the case of restricted stock, when the restrictions applicable to such award lapse), the grantee will recognize
ordinary income equal to the excess of the applicable shares’ fair market value on the date the award is settled or the restrictions lapse,
as applicable, over the amount, if any, paid for the shares by the grantee. We will generally be entitled to a tax deduction in the same
amount. If the award is settled in cash or other property, the grantee will recognize ordinary income equal to the net amount or value
received, and we will generally be entitled to a tax deduction in the same amount.

Sale of Shares. When a grantee sells shares received under any award other than an incentive stock option, the grantee will
recognize capital gain or loss equal to the difference between the sale proceeds and the grantee’s basis in the shares. In general, the
basis in the shares is the amount of ordinary income recognized upon receipt of the shares (or upon the lapsing of restrictions, in the
case of restricted stock) plus any amount paid for the shares.

When a grantee disposes of shares acquired upen the exercise of an incentive stock option, the difference between the amount
realized by the grantee and the exercise price will generally constitute a capital gain or loss, as the case may be. However, if the
grantee does not hold these shares for more than one year after exercising the incentive stock option and for more than two years after
the grant of the incentive stock option, then: (1) the excess of the fair market value of the shares acquired upon exercise on the
exercise date over the exercise price will generally be treated as ordinary income for the grantee; {2) the difference between the sale
proceeds and the shares’ fair market value on the exercise date will be treated as a capital gain or loss for the grantee; and (3} we will
generally be entitled to a tax deduction equal to the amount of ordinary income recognized by the grantee.

Deduction Limits. In general, a corporation is denied a tax deduction for any compensation paid to its chief executive officer
or to any of its four other most highly compensated officers (other than the chief financial officer) to the extent that the compensation
paid to the officer exceeds $1,000,000 in any year. “Performance-based compensation™ is not subject to this deduction limit. The
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Omnibus Plan permits the grant of awards that qualify as performance-based compensation (such as restricted stock and restricted
stock units that are conditioned on achievement of one or more performance goals, and stock options and stock appreciation rights)
and of awards that do not so qualify (such as restricted stock and restricted stock units that are not conditioned on achievement of
performance goals). If awards that are intended to qualify as performance-based compensation are granted in accordance with the
requirements of Section 162(my}, they will be fully deductible by us. The Internal Revenue Service, however, has recently issued new
guidance on what constitutes "performance-based compensation” for purposes of Section 162(m). We intend to evaluate this guidance
in light of the performance-based awards granted under the Omnibus Plan and the provisions of individual employment agreements.
This guidance may effect the deductibility of compensation paid by us in future years.

New Plan Benefits. The committee has granted the following options to purchase common stock under the Omnibus Plan,
subject to stockholder approval of the Omnibus Plan. If the Omnibus Plan is approved by our stockholders, any future grants of
awards thereunder that will be made to other eligible executive officers, employees and directors to are subject to the discretion of the
committee and, therefore, are not determinable at this time.

Omnibus Plan

Name and Position

Alan F. Schultz, Chief Executive Officer and President 450,000
Robert L. Recchia, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer 100,000
Barry P. Hoffman, Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary --
Richard Herpich, Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketing 100,000
William F. Hogg. Jr., Executive Vice President of Manufacturing and Client Services 40,000
Executive officers as a group 20,000
Non-employee directors as a group --
Non-executive employees as a group 233,000

The atfirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of our common stock present in person or represented by proxy at
the annual meeting is required for approval of the Valassis Communications, Inc. 2008 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” APPROVAL OF THE OMNIBUS
PLAN.

BEST AVALABLE COPY
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RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
(PROPOSAL 4)

The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors has appointed the firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent certified public
accountants, as our auditors for the 2008 fiscal year, subject to the ratification of such appointment by the stockholders at the annual
meeting. Deloitte & Touche LLP has audited our financial statements since the year ended December 31, 1997,

If the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP for the 2008 fiscal year is not ratified by the stockholders, the Audit Committee of
our Board of Directors will appoint other independent accountants whose appointment for any period subsequent to the next annual
meeting of stockholders will be subject to the approval of stockholders at that meeting. A representative of Deloitte & Touche LLP is
expected to be present at the annual meeting and will have an opportunity to make a statement should he or she so desire. The
representative will also be available to respond to appropriate questions from stockholders during the meeting.

Ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as independent public accountants will require the affirmative vote of
holders of a majority of the shares of our common stock present in person or represented by proxy at the annual meeting.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF
DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP AS QUR INDEPENDENT AUDITORS FOR THE 2008 FISCAL YEAR.

Independent Auditors Fees
Deloitte & Touche LLP Fees

The following table sets forth approximate aggregate fees billed to us for fiscal years ending December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2007 by Deloitte & Touche LLP:

2006 (3) 2007 (3)
AUt Fees'! et 541,045 1,330,693
Audit-Related Fees™ ...ttt 146,116 217,201
TaX FEES™ Lt e bttt et ettt e ettt 359,070 425,802
All Other Fees™ ... b et e _ 21219
TOLALL ... ettt et ee e e n et ereras 1.046.231 1,994.915

o Audit fees consisted of: audit work performed in the preparation of our financial statements included in our Form 10-K and a

review of our financtal statements included in our Form 10-Qs; for the audit of our internal control over financial reporting with
the objective of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects; for the attestation of management’s report on the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting (for 2006 only); and for services that are normally provided by the auditor in connection with statutory and regulatory
filings or engagements.

Audit-related fees consisted principally of services with respect to merger and acquisition due diligence and audit services and
other attestation services.

Tax fees consisted of fees for tax services such as tax compliance, tax planning and tax advice.

All Other Fees consists of work performed by Deloitte & Touche LLP that is not within the above categories, including
consulting services provided in connection with the reorganization or certain of our foreign operations .

Our Audit Committee Charter provides that all audit and non-audit services to be performed by our independent public auditors
must be approved in advance by the Audit Committee. As permitted by the Exchange Act, the Audit Committee may delegate to one

or more of its members pre-approval authority with respect to permitted services. All such approvals are presented to the Audit
Cominittee at its next scheduled meeting.

As permitted by the Exchange Act, our Audit Committee Charter permits the waiver of the pre-approval requirements for
services other than audit services if certain conditions are met. All audit-related services, tax services and other services were pre-
approved by the Audit Committee which considered that the provision of such services was compatible with maintaining the
independence of Deloitte & Touche LLP in the conduct of its auditing functions.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with our Policy on Related Person Transactions, we review all relationships and transactions in which our
ompany and our directors and executive officers, or their immediate family members, are participants to determine whether such
ersons have a direct or indirect material interest.

Our Ethics Officer is responsible for reviewing all related person transactions and taking all reasonable steps to ensure that all
aterial related person transactions be presented to our Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee. As required under the SEC
les, transactions that are determined to be directly or indirectly material to our Company or a related person are disclosed in our
roxy statement. In addition, our Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee reviews and approves or ratifies any related person
ransaction that is required to be disclosed. In the course of its review, the Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee considers
he nature of the related person’s interest in the transaction, the material terms of the transaction, including the amount of such
ransaction, the importance of the transaction to the related person, the importance of the transaction to our Company, the potential for
he transaction to lead to an actual or apparent conflict of interest and any safeguards imposed to prevent such actual or apparent
onflicts, whether the transaction is on terms comparable to those avaitable to third parties, ot in the case of employment relationships,
o employees generally and any other matter that our Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee deems appropriate.

We do not have any related person transactions.
GENERAL

Other Matters

Our Board of Directors does not know of any matters that are to be presented at the annual meeting other than those stated in the
otice of annual meeting and referred to in this proxy statement. If any other matters should properly come before the annual meeting,
tis intended that the proxies in the accompanying form will be voted as the persons named therein may determine in their discretion.

Our Annual Report to Stockholders for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 which includes our Annual Report on Form 10-
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 is being mailed to stockholders together with this proxy statement.

Any shareholder can access our Corporate Governance Guidelines and Policy on Related Person Transactions and the Charters
f the Audit Committee, Compensation/Stock Option Committee and Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee in the
‘Investors/Corporate Governance” section of our Web site at www.valassis.com. In addition, our Code of Business Conduct and
thics can also be accessed in the “Investors/Corporate Governance™ section of our Web site at www. valassis.com. We will disclose
ny future amendments to, or waivers from, certain provisions of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics on our Web site following
uch amendment or waiver. Any shareholder may also obtain a print copy of these documents by writing to Todd Wiseley, Vice
resident, Administration and Secretary, Valassis Communications, Inc., 19975 Victor Parkway, Livonia, M1 48152.

Our policy is that our directors must attend our annual meeting of stockholders absent exceptional circumstances. All of the
embers of our Board of Directors attended the 2007 annual meeting of Stockholders, except for Wallace S. Snyder who was not a
ember of our Board of Directors at such time.

Stockholder Communications

Any shareholder or interested party wishing to communicate with any of our directors regarding us may write to the director in
care of Todd Wiseley, Vice President, Administration and Secretary, Valassis Communications, Inc., 19975 Victor Parkway, Livonia,
MI 48152. The Corporate Secretary will forward any such communications to the directors in accordance with the shareholder
communications policy approved by the independent directors.

Solicitation of Proxies

The cost of solicitation of proxies in the accompanying form will be borne by us, including expenses in connection with
preparing and mailing this proxy statement. In addition to solicitation of proxies by mail, our directors, officers and employees (who
wiil receive no additional compensation therefore) may solicit the return of proxies by telephone, telegram or personal interview.
Arrangements have also been made with brokerage houses and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for the forwarding of
solicitation material to the beneficial owners of stock held of record by such persons, and we will reimburse them for reasonable out-
of-pocket expenses incurred by them in connection therewith.

Each holder of our common stock who does not expect to be present at the annual meeting or who plans to attend but who does
not wish to vote in person is urged to fill in, date and sign the proxy and return it promptly in the enclosed return envelope or vote by
telephone or on the Internet.
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Stockholder Proposals

If any of our stockholders intends to present a proposal for consideration at the next annual meeting of stockholders and desires
to have such proposal included in the proxy statement and form of proxy distributed by our Board of Directors with respect to such
meeting pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act, such proposal must be received in writing at our principal executive offices,
19975 Victor Parkway, Livonia, Michigan 48152, Attention: Todd Wiseley, Vice President, Administration and Secretary not later
than November 20, 2008, [n addition, SEC rules permit management to vote proxies in its discretion if we: (i) receive notice of the
proposal prior to the close of business on February 4, 2009, and advisc stockholders in the 2009 proxy statemnent about the nature of
the matter and how management intends to vote on such matter; or (i) do not receive notice of the proposal prior to the close of
business on February 4, 2009,

By Order of the Board of Directors,

TODD WISELEY
Secretary

48




Exhibit A
Director Independence Criteria

Valassis Communications, Inc.
Guidelines for Determining Independence of Board Members

Under the New York Stock Exchange rules, our Board of Directors is required to determine whether or not each Director is
independent. To find that a Director is independent, the Board of Directors must determine that the Director has no material
relationship with us. To assist the Board in this analysis, the Board of Directors has adopted the following guidelines as to what
constitutes a material relationship. These guidelines apply to a Director and to members of the Director’s immediate family. Each of
the guidelines applies to conditions that exist now or within the preceding three years.

1. Employment by the Company; Compensation.

A.  Employment as an Executive Officer.

B.  Receipt from the Company of $100,000 per year in direct compensation other than Director and Committee fees
and pension or other forms of deferred compensation for prior service. Compensation received by an immediate
family member for service as a non-executive employee need not be considered.

2, Relationship with Internal or External Auditor. Affiliation with or employment by a current or former internal or external
auditor. In the case of an immediate family member, employment means employment in a professional capacity.

3. Interlocks. Employment as an executive officer of another company where any of our present executives serve on the
other company’s compensation committee,

4. Relationships with Vendors and Suppliers. Employment by a company that makes payment to or receives payment from
us for property or services in an amount which in any single fiscal year exceeds the greater of $1,000,000 or 2% of our
consolidated gross revenues.

5. Relationship with Charitable Organizations. Service as an executive officer of any charitable organization, if contributions
by us to the charitable organization exceed the greater of $1,000,000 or 2% of such charitable organization’s consolidated
gross revenues in any fiscal year.

6. Definitions.

A.  The term “immediate family member” includes a person’s spouse, parents, children, siblings, mothers-and fathers-
in-law, sons-and daughters-in-law, brothers-and sisters-in-law and anyone (other than domestic employees)
sharing a person’s home.

B.  The term “affiliates” means any corporation or other entity that is controlled by or is under common control with
another entity.

7. General. The independence determination for a Director with a relationship not within the preceding guidelines shall be
made after considering all relevant facts and circumstances, the overriding concern being independence from
management. Any determination that a Director who has a material relationship with the Company under these guidelines
is independent must be specifically explained in the proxy statement,
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Exhibit B
Criteria for Considering Potential Nominees to the Board of Directors

Our Corporate Governance/Nominating Committee has adopted the following set of preferred characteristics for candidates for
members to our Board of Directors: (i) demonstrated personal integrity and ethics in business, professional and personal life;
(1i) commitment to serve the best interests of all of our stockholders; (iii) willingness to be an active participant in all Board of
Directors and committée activities; (iv} contribution to the overall diversity of our Board of Directors; (v) collegial in cutlook and the
ability to advance constructive discussion of Board of Directors issues; and (vi) business, financial, professional, academic or public
policy expertise which will contribute to the overall mix of skills and perspectives represented on our Board of Directors.




Exhibit C

Valassis Communications, Inc, 2008 Senior Executives Semi-Annual Bonus Plan

Objectives. Valassis Communications, [nc. (the “Company™) hereby establishes the Valassis Communications, Inc. 2008
Senior Executives Semi-Annual Bonus Plan (the “Plan’) as an incentive for selected officers of the Company to improve
corporate performance by providing each participating officer with an opportunity to receive a cash bonus payment based
upon the attainment of certain performance criteria, and thus motivating such officers to stimulate the Company’s overall
growth and success, while also maximizing the deductibility of such compensation for the Company’s income tax purposes.

Definitions. The following terms shall have the meanings indicated when used in the Plan:

(a) “Affiliate” means any entity that, directly or indirectly, is in control of| is controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Company. For purposes of this definition, the terms “control”, “controlled by™ and “under common
control with” mean the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management and policies of an entity, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

(b) *Award” means a cash bonus award granted hereunder.
() “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.
(d) “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time or any successor thereto.

Reference to any specific Code Section shall include any successor Section, as well as any guidance thereunder.

(e) “Committee” means the Compensation/Stock Option Committee of the Board.

il
(f) “Company” means Valassis Communications, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries.
{g) “Executive” means the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and any other executive officer of the Company

who has been designated by the Committee as likely to have the deductibility of his or her compensation limited by
Section 162(m) of the Code.

(h) “Participant” means an Executive designated by the Commitiee to participate in the Plan.
(1) “Performance Period” means the period beginning on January Ist and ending on June 30th or the period beginning

on July 1st and ending on December 3 1st, as applicable.

() “Plan” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 1 above.

(k) “Regulations™ means the rules and regulations promulgated by the Internal Revenue Service under Section 162(m)
of the Code.

n “Share” means a share of common stock of the Company.

Eligible Executives. Present and future Executives shall be eligible to participate in the Plan. The Committee from time to
time shall select those Executives who shall be designated as Participants and shall designate in accordance with the terms of
the Plan the amount of any Award to be made to each Participant.

Awards.

(a) Awards under this Plan shall be granted on a semi-annual basis, and each Award shall be based cn the
accomplishment of one or more performance goals over the applicable Performance Period.

(b) Awards shall be expressed as a percentage of a Participant’s annual base salary.
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{(c) The Committee shail establish the performance goals for each Performance Period no later than 45 days after the
first day of the Performance Period, or, if sooner, within the first 25% of the Performance Period, provided,
however, that the Committee must determine that, as of the date the performance goals are established, it is
substantially uncertain whether such performance goals will be achieved.

Performance Criteria. Subject to the terms of the Plan, the Committee shall make the grant or vesting of an Award to a
Participant subject to performance criteria as set forth below. Performance goals may be absolute in their terms or measured
against or in relationship to other companies comparably, similarly or otherwise situated or other external or internal
measures and may include or exclude extraordinary charges, capital expenditures, losses from discontinued operations,
restatements and accounting changes and other unplanned special charges such as restructuring expenses, acquisitions,
acquisition expenses (including without limitation expenses related to goodwiil and other intangible assets), stock offerings,
stock repurchases and strategic loan loss provisions. Permissible performance goals include any one of the following or
combination thereof which may be applicable on a Company-wide basis and/or with respect to operating units, divisions,
subsidiaries, acquired businesses, minority investments, partnerships, or joint ventures:

(a) General Financial Objectives:
(1) Increasing the Company’s net sales;
(ii} Achieving a target level of earnings (including gross earnings; earnings before certain deductions, such as

interest, taxes, depreciation, or amortization; earnings per share; or adjusted cash earnings per share);

{1i1) Achieving a target level of income (including net income or income before consideration of certain factors,
such as overhead) or a target level of gross profits for the Company, an Affiliate, or a business unit;

(iv) Achieving a target return on the Company’s (or an Affiliate’s) capital, assets, or stockholders’ equity;
(v) Maintaining or achieving a target level of appreciation in the price of the Shares;
(vi) Increasing the Company’s (or an Affiliate’s) market share to a specified target level;

{vii) Achieving or maintaining a Share price that meets or exceeds the performance of specified stock market
indices or other benchmarks over a specified period;

{(viii}  Achieving a level of Share price, earnings, or income performance that meets or exceeds performance in
comparable areas of peer companies over a specified period;

(ix) Achieving specified reductions in costs; and
(x) Achieving a target level of cash flow.

(b) Operational Objectives:

(1) Introducing one or more products into one or more new markets;
(ii) Acquiring a prescribed number of new customers in a line of business;
(iii) Achieving a prescribed level of productivity within a business unit;

{iv) Completing specified projects within or below the applicable budget;

) Completing acquisitions of other businesses or integrating acquired businesses; and
(vi} Expanding into other markets.
{c) And any other criteria established by the Committee (but only if such other criteria are approved by the Company’s

stockholders).
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10.

Limitations on Award Payments. The maximum Award that may be earned and paid under the Plan to any Participant with

respect to any Performance Period shall be $1,500,000.

Payment. Award payments shall be made in cash as soon as practicable after the Committee makes the certifications
described in Section 10(d} herein, but in no event later than sixty (60) days after the end of the applicable Performance

Period.

Termination of Employment.

(a)

(b)

Except as otherwise expressly provided for in an employment agreement between the Company and a Participant, if
the Company terminates the employment of a Participant other than for cause, death, or disability (as such terms are
defined in the Participant’s employment agreement) or if the Participant terminates his or her employment for good
reason (as such term is defined in the Participant’s employment agreement, but only if the Participant’s employment
agreement allows for a good reason termination), then the Participant (or in the case of the Participant’s death, his
designated beneficiary or estate, as provided under Section 9 herein) shall receive an Award payment for the
Performance Pertod during which such termination occurs, multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be
the number of days from the beginning of Performance Period to and including the date of termination and the
denominator of which shall be 182, Such payment shall only be made if the Committee certifies that the applicable
performance goals with respect to such Performance Period have been met and shali be paid on the payment
schedule specified in Section 7 above.

Except as otherwise expressly provided for in an employment agreement between the Company and a Participant, if
a Participant’s employment is terminated for any reason other than specified in Section 8(a) above, the Participant
shall forfeit any Award for the Performance Period during which his or her termination occurs,

Beneficiaries. A Participant may designate a beneficiary (or beneficiaries) to receive any payments remaining under this Plan
in the event of his or her death. The Participant shall also have the right to revoke any such designation and to designate a
new beneficiary {or beneficiaries) of his or her choosing. Any such designation or revocation shall only be effective if made
in writing and received by the Company’s Corporate Secretary prior to the Participant’s death. 1f the Participant dies without
having an effective beneficiary designation or if all named beneficiaries predecease the Participant, then any amounts
remaining to be paid under the Plan shall be paid to the Participant’s estate.

Administration.

(a)

(b)

{c)

The Plan shall be administered by the Committee when composed of two or more outside directors, as prescribed by
Section 162(m) of the Code and the Regulations, none of whom shall be eligible to participate in the Plan. The
Board may from time to time appoint members to the Committee in substitution for or in addition to members
previously appointed and may fill vacancies in the Committee,

Subject to the express provisions of the Plan and the requirements of Section 162(m) of the Code and the
Regulations, the Committee shall have complete authority and discretion to interpret the Plan, to prescribe, amend,
and rescind rules and regulations relating to it and to make all other determinations deemed necessary or advisable
for the administration of the Plan. Determinations made by the Committee in good faith shall be binding and
conclusive on all persons. Benefits under this Plan will be paid only if the Committee decides in its discretion that
the claimant is entitled to them.

In addition to any other powers set forth in this Plan, the Committee has the following powers:

(i) to establish, amend and rescind appropriate rules and regulations relating to the Plan;

(i1) subject to the terms of the Plan, to select the Executives who will receive Awards, the times when they will
receive them, the form of agreements which evidence such Awards, the amount of such Award, the
performance goals to be achieved to receive payment of the Award, the expiration date applicable to each

Award and other terms, provisions and restrictions of the Awards (which need not be identical) and subject
to Section 11 hereof, to amend or modify any of the terms of outstanding Awards;
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12.

(iit) to contest on behalf of the Company or Participants, at the expense of the Company, any ruling or decision
on any matter relating to the Plan or to any Awards; and

(iv) generally, to administer the Plan, and to take all such steps and make all such determinations in connection
with the Plan and the Awards granted thereunder as it may deem necessary or advisable.

{d) The Committee shall certify in writing that the performance goals and other material terms have been satisfied
before payment of an Award is made. All Awards shall be paid solely on account of the attainment of one or more
pre-established, objective performance goals, which goals shall be established in conformity with the timing
requirements of Section 162{m) of the Code and the Regulations.

(e) Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to the contrary, the Committee shall not have discretion to waive or
amend such performance goals or to increase the amount payable pursuant to an Award after the performance goals
have been established; provided, however, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, reduce the amount that would
otherwise be payable with respect to any Award,

(H) The material terms of the Award shall be disclosed to and approved by the Company’s stockholders prior 1o
payment in conformity with the requirements under Section 162(m) of the Code and the Regulations; it being
understood that performance goals established under the Plan shall be disclosed to and reapproved by the
Company’s stockholders no later than the first meeting of stockholders that occurs in the fifth year following the
year in which the Company’s stockholders previously approved the performance goals (or such other time period as
prescribed by Section 162(m) of the Code and the Regulations). The rights of a Participant to receive payment
under the Plan shall be expressly conditioned on obtaining any such approval referred to in this subsection (f) to the
extent required by Section 162(m) of the Code and the Regulations.

(g) The Committee shall hold its meetings at such times and places as it shall deem advisable. A majority of members
shall constitute a quorum and all determinations shall be made by a majority of such quorum. Any determination
reduced to writing and signed by all of the members of the Committee shall be fully effective as if it had been made
by a majority vote at a meeting duly called and held.

(h) The Commitiee and each member thereof shall be entitled to, in good faith, rely or act upon any report or other
information furnished to him or her by any executive officer of the Company, other officer or employee of the ,
Company or of one of its subsidiaries, the Company’s independent auditors, consultants or any other agents assisting [
in the administration of the Plan. Members of the Committee and any officer or employee of the Company or one of
its subsidiaries acting at the direction or on behalf of the Committee shall not be personally liable for any action or
determination taken or made in good faith with respect to the Plan, and shall, to the extent permitted by law, be fully
indemnified and protected by the Company with respect to any such action or determination,

Amendment of the Plan. The Board may from time to time amend or revise the terms of this Plan in whole or in part, subject
to the following limitations. No amendment may, in the absence of written consent to the change by the affected Participant
(or, if the Participant is not then living, the affected beneficiary), adversely affect the rights of any Participant or beneficiary
under any Award granted under the Plan prior to the date such amendment is adopted by the Board; provided, however, no
such consent shall be required if the Board determines in its sole and absolute discretion that the amendment or revision is
required or advisable in order for the Company, the Plan or the Award to satisfy applicable law, to meet the requirements of
any accounting standard, or to avoid any adverse accounting treatment. The Committee may, but need not, take the tax
consequences to affected Participants into consideration in acting under the preceding sentence.

Termination of Plan. The Plan will terminate ten (10) years after the date it is approved by the Board; previded, however,
that the Board of Directors may terminate the Plan at any time prior thereto and provided, further, however that during the
term of the Plan the performance goals under the Plan shall be reapproved by the Company’s stockholders as provided for in
Section 10(f) above. Termination of the Plan will not affect the rights and obligations of any Participant with respect to
Awards granted before termination.

Effective Date. This Plan is effective as of the date of its approval by the stockholders of the Company. Awards may be
made under this Plan prior to stockholder approval, but such Awards shall be conditioned on the approval of this Plan by
stockholders of the Company.




15.

16.

17.

19.

Withholding Taxes. The obligations of the Company to make Award payments under the Plan shall be subject to applicable
Federal, state, and cther taxes and withholding obligations.

Non-Exclusivity of Plan. The adoption of the Plan shail not be construed as creating any limitations on the power of the
Board to adopt such other compensation arrangements as it may deem desirable, including, without limitation, the granting of
stock options or the awarding of stock or cash or other benefits otherwise than under the Plan, and such arrangements may be
either generally applicable or applicable only to specific individuals.

Non-Alienation. Except as expressly provided herein, no Participant or beneficiary shail have the power or right to transfer
(other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution), alienate, or otherwise encumber the Participant’s interest under

‘the Plan,

No Right to Employment. Participation in the Plan will not give any Participant a right to be retained as an employee or
director of the Company, its subsidiaries, or an affiliate, or any right or claim to any benefit under the Plan, unless the right or
claim has specifically accrued under the Plan. An individual’s status as an Executive shall not give him or her the right to
participate in the Plan. '

Unfunded Status of Awards. The Plan is intended to constitute an “unfunded” plan for certain incentive awards. With respect
to any payments not yet made to a Participant or his or her beneficiary, as applicable, nothing contained in the Plan or any
Award shall give any such Participant or such beneficiary, as applicable, any rights that are greater than those of a general
creditor of the Company.

Rules of Construction.

(a) Govemning Law and Venue. The construction and operation of this Plan are governed by the laws of the State of
Michigan without regard to any conflicts or choice of law rules or principles that might otherwise refer construction
or interpretation of this Plan to the substantive law of another jurisdiction, and any litigation arising out of this Plan
shall be brought in Michigan.

(b} Severability. Ifany provision of this Plan is determined to be illegal or invalid for any reason, the remaining
provisions are to continue in full force and effect and to be construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid
provision did not exist, unless the continuance of the Plan in such circumstances is not consistent with its purposes.

{c) Undefined Terms. Unless the context requires another meaning, any term not specifically defined in this Plan is
used in the sense given to it by the Code.

(d) Headings. All headings in this Plan are for reference only and are not to be utilized in construing the Plan.
(e) Conformity with Section 162(m) of the Code. Any awards issued to specified employees (as defined in Section

162(m) of the Code) with any of the performance criteria listed in Section 5 are intended to qualify as performance-
based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code to which the applicable remuneration limits of Section
162(m)(1) do not apply.

() Conformity with Section 409A of the Code. The Plan is intended to be exempt from coverage from Section 409A of
the Code and shall be interpreted and construed in a manner consistent with such intention. There shall be no
acceleration or subsequent deferral of the time or schedule of any payment under the Plan except as permitted under
Section 409A and the express terms of the Plan.

(g) Gender. Unless clearly inappropriate, all nouns of whatever gender refer indifferently to persons of any gender.

(h) Singular and Plural. Unless clearly inappropriate, singuiar terms refer also to the plural and vice versa.
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Exhibit D

Valassis Communications, Inc. 2008 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan

1. Purpose

The purpose of this 2008 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Plan”) is to assist Valassis Communications, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (the “Company™), and its Subsidiaries and Affiliates in attracting, retaining, and rewarding high-quality
executives, employees, directors and other persons who provide services to the Company or its Subsidiaries or Affiliates, enabling
such persons to acquire or increase a proprietary interest in the Company in order to strengthen the mutuality of interests between such
persons and the Company’s stockholders, and providing such persons with annual and long-term performance incentives to expend
their maximum efforts in the creation of shareholder value. The Plan is also intended to qualify certain compensation awarded under
the Plan for tax deductibility under Section 162(m) of the Code to the extent deemed appropriate by the Committee (or any successor
committee) of the Board of Directors of the Company.

2. Definitions

For purposes of the Plan, the following terms shall be defined as set forth below, in addition to such terms defined in Section
1 hereof:

(a) “Affiliate” means any entity that, directly or indirectly, is in control of, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Company. For purposes of this definition, the terms “control”, “controlled by” and “under
common control with” mean the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction
of the management and policies of an entity, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or
otherwise,

(b) “Award” means any Option, SAR, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Unit, Stock granted as a bonus or in lieu
of another award, Dividend Equivalent, Other Stock-Based Award or Performance Award, together with any
other right or interest granted to a Participant under the Plan.

(c) “Beneficiary” means the person, persons, trust or trusts which have been designated by a Participant in his or
her most recent written beneficiary designation filed with the Committee to receive the benefits specified under
the Plan upon such Participant’s death or to which Awards or other rights are transferred if and to the extent
permitted under Section 10(b) hereof. If, upon a Participant’s death, there is no designated Beneficiary or
surviving designated Beneficiary, then the term Beneficiary means the person, persons, trust or trusts entitled by
will or the laws of descent and distribution to receive such benefits.

(d) “Beneficial Owner” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act and
any successor to such Rule.

(e) “Board” means the Company’s Board of Directors.

() “Change in Control” means Change in Control as defined with related terms in Section 9 of the Plan.
(g) *“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.

{h) “Committee” means the Compensation/Stock Option Committee of the Board or such other committee

designated by the Board to administer the Plan; provided, however, that, unless otherwise determined by the
Board, the Committee shall consist solely of two or more directors, each of whom shall be (i) a “non-employee
director” within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act, and {ii) an “outside director” as defined
under Section 162(m) of the Code.

(i) “Covered Employee” means an Eligible Person who is a (i) a “covered employee” within the meaning of
Section 162(m)(3) of the Code, or any successor provision thereto or (ii) expected by the Committee to be the

recipient of compensation (other than “qualified performance based compensation” as defined in Section
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162(m) of the Code) in excess of $1,000,000 for the tax year of the Company with regard to which a deduction
in respect of such individual’s Award would not be allowed.

“Dividend Equivalent” means a right, granted to a Participant under Section 6(g), to receive cash, Stock, other
Awards or other property equal in value to dividends paid with respect to a specified number of shares of Stock,
or other periodic payments.

“Effective Date” means February 28, 2008.

“Eligible Person” means each Executive Officer and other officers and employees of the Company or of any
Subsidiary or Affiliate, and other persons who provide services to the Company or any Subsidiary or Affiliate
including members of the Board and independent contractors of, and consuitants to, Company.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time to time.

“Executive Officer” means an executive officer of the Company as defined in Rule 3b-7 of under the Exchange
Act,

“Fair Market Value™ means the fair market value of Stock, Awards or other property as determined by the
Committee or under procedures established by the Committee. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee,
the Fair Market Value of Stock shall be the closing price of a share of Stock, as quoted on the composite
transactions table on the New York Stock Exchange, on the date on which the determination of fair market
value is being made, or if no shares of Stock were traded on such date, then the last trading date prior thereto.

“Incentive Stock Option™ or “ISO” means any Option intended to be and designated as an incentive stock
option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code or any successor provision thereto.

“Option” means a right, granted to a Participant under Section 6(b} hereof, to purchase Stock ar a specified price
during specified time periods.

“Other Stock-Based Awards” means Awards granted to a Participant under Section 6{h) hereof.

“Participant” means a person who has been granted an Award under the Plan which remains outstanding,
including a person who is no longer an Eligible Person.

“Performance Award” means a right, granted to a Participant under Section 8 hereof, to receive Awards based
upon performance criteria specified by the Committee.

“Person” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 3(a)(9) of the Exchange Act and used in
Sections 13(d} and 14{d) thereof, and shall include a “group™ as defined in Section 13(d) thereof.

“Preexisting Plans” mean the Valassis Communications, Inc. 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as amended,
Valassis Communications, [nec. Broad-Based Incentive Plan, as amended, Valassis Communications, Inc. 2003
Executive Restricted Stock Plan, and Valassis Communications, Inc. 2005 Employee and Director Restricted
Stock Award Plan.

*Qualified Member™ means a member of the Committee who is a “Non-Employee Director” within the meaning
of Rule 16b-3(b)(3) and an “outside director” within the meaning of Regulation 1.162-27 under Section 162(m)
of the Code.

“Restricted Stock™ means Stock, granted to a Participant under Section 6(d) hereof, that is subject to certain
restrictions and to a risk of forfeiture.

“Restricted Stock Unit” means a right, granted to a Participant under Section 6(e) hereof, to receive Stock, cash
or a combination thereof at the end of a specified restricted period.

“Rule 16b-3" means Rule 16b-3, as from time to time in effect, promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission under Section 16 of the Exchange Act.
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3.

(aa)
(bb)

(cc)

*“Stock” means the Company’s common stock,
“Stock Appreciation Rights” or “SAR” means a right granted to a Participant under Section 6(c) hereof.

“Subsidiary” means, with respect to the Company, any “subsidiary corporation™ within the meaning of Section
424(f) of the Code.

Administration.

(@)

(b)

{c)

(d}

Authority of the Committee. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee except to the extent the Board
elects to administer the Plan, and in either such case references herein to the “Committee” shall be deemed to
include or be references to the “Board,” as the case may be. The Committee shall have full and final authority,
in each case subject to and consistent with the provisions of the Plan, to (i) select Eligible Persons to become
Participants, (i1) grant Awards, (iii} determine the type, number and other terms and conditions of, and all other
matters relating to, Awards, (iv) prescribe Award agreements (which need not be identical for each Participant)
and rules and regulations for the administration of the Plan, (v) construe and interpret the Plan and Award
agreements and correct defects, supply omissions or reconcile inconsistencies therein, and (vi) make all other
decistons and determinations as the Committee may deemn necessary or advisable for the administration of the
Plan.

Manner of Exercise of Committee Authority.

{i) At any time that a member of the Committee is not a Qualified Member, any action of the Committee
relating to an Award granted or to be granted to a Participant who is then subject to Section 16 of the
Exchange Act in respect of the Company, or relating to an Award intended by the Committee to
qualify as “performance-based compensation” within the eaming of Section 162(m) of the Code and
regulations thereunder, may be taken by a subcommittee, designated by the Committee, composed
solely of two or more Qualified Members. Such action, authorized by such a subcommittee, shall be
the action of the Committee for purposes of the Plan.

(i) Any action of the Committee shall be final, conclusive and binding on all persons, including the
Company, its subsidiaries, Participants, Beneficiaries, transferees under Section 10(b) hereof or other
persons claiming rights from or through a Participant, and stockholders. The express grant of any
specific power to the Committee, and the taking of any action by the Committee, shall not be construe
as limiting any power or authority of the Committee. To the extent permitted by applicable iaw, the
Committee may delegate to one or more Executive Officers the powers: (A) to designate Eligible
Persons who are not Executive Officers or directors of the Company as eligible to receive awards
under the Plan and (B) to determine the amount and type of Awards that may be granted to Eligible
Persons who are not Executive Officers or directors of the Company. Any such delegation by the
Committee shall include a limitation as to the amount and type of Awards that may be granted during
the period of the delegation and shall contain guidelines as to permissible grant dates for awards, the
determination of the exercise price of any Option or SAR and the vesting criteria. The Committee may|
revoke or amend the terms of a delegation at any time but such action shall not invalidate any prior
actions of the Committee delegatee or delegatees that were consistent with the terms of the Plan. The
Committee may appoint agents to assist it in administering the Plan. The Committee may revoke any
delegation or allocation of authority at any time, in accordance with applicable law.

Limitation of Liability. The Committee and each member thereof shall be entitled to, in good faith, rely or act
upon any report or other information furnished to him or her by any Executive Officer, other officer or
employee of the Company or a Subsidiary, the Company’s independent auditors, consultants or any other agentsh
assisting in the administration of the Plan. Members of the Committee and any officer or employee of the
Company or a Subsidiary acting at the direction or on behalf of the Committee shall not be personally liable for
any action or determination taken or made in good faith with respect to the Plan, and shall, to the extent
permitted by law, be fully indemnified and protected by the Company with respect to any such action or
determination.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. The Committee shall administer, construe, interpret and exercise discretion
under the Plan and each Award agreement in a manner that is consistent and in compliance with a reasonable,
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good faith interpretation of all applicable laws and that avoids (to the extent practicable) the classification of
any Award as “deferred compensation” for purposes of Section 409A of the Code, as determined by the
Committee, or, if an Award is subject to Section 409A of the Code, in a manner that complies with Section
409A.

Stock Subject to Plan

{a) Overall Number of Shares Available for Delivery. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 10(c) hereof,
the total number of shares of Stock reserved and available for delivery in connection with Awards under the
Plan shall be (i)7,000,000, plus (i) the number of shares of Stock remaining available under Preexisting Plans
immediately prior to the date on which stockholders of the Company approve the adoption of the Plan, plus (iii)
the number of shares of Stock subject to awards under Preexisting Plans which become available in accordance
with Section 4(c) hereof after the date on which stockholders of the Company approve the adoption of the Plan.

Any shares of Stock delivered under the Plan may consist, in whole or in part, of authorized and unissued shares
of Stock, treasury shares or shares of Stock acquired by the Company.

(b) Application of Limitation to Grants of Awards. No Award may be granted if the number of shares of Stock to
be delivered in connection with such Award or, in the case of an Award relating to shares of Stock but settleable
only in cash (such as cash-only SARs), the number of shares to which such Award relates, exceeds the number
of shares of Stock remaining available under the Plan minus the number of shares of Stock issuable in
settlement of or relating to then-outstanding Awards. The Committee may adopt reasonable counting
procedures to ensure appropriate counting, avoid double counting (as, for example, in the case of tandem or
substitute awards) and make adjustments if the number of shares of Stock actually delivered differs from the
number of shares previously counted in connection with an Award.

(c) Availability of Shares Not Delivered under Awards. Shares of Stock subject to an Award under the Plan or
award under a Preexisting Plan that is canceled, expired, forfeited, settled in cash or otherwise terminated
without a delivery of shares to the Participant, including (i} the number of shares withheld in payment of any
exercise or purchase price of an Award or award or taxes relating to Awards or awards, and (ii) the number of
shares surrendered in payment of any exercise or purchase price of an Award or award or taxes relating to any
Award or award, will again be available for Awards under the Plan, except that if any such shares could not
again be available for Awards to a particular Participant under any applicable law or regulation, such shares
shall be available exclusively for Awards to Participants who are not subject to such limitation.

5. Eligibility; Per-Person Award Limitations

Awards may be granted under the Plan only to Eligible Persons. In each fiscal year, during any part of which the Plan is in
effect, an Eligible Person may not be granted Options and SARs with respect to more than 1,000,000 shares of Stock and Restricted
Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Performance Awards or other Awards under the Plan with respect to more than 1,000,000 shares of
Stock, in each case, subject to adjustment as provided in Section 10(c). In addition, the maximum cash amount that may be earned
under the Plan as a cash annual Award in respect of any fiscal year by any one Participant shall be $3 million, and the maximum cash
amount that may be earned under the Plan as a final Performance Award or other cash Award in respect of a performance period other
than an annual period by any onie Participant on an annualized basis shall be $7 million. The foregoing limits shall be construed and
applied consistently with Section 162(m) of the Code.

0. Specific Terms of Awards

(a) General. Awards may be granted on the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 6. In addition, the
Committee may impose on any Award or the exercise thereof, at the date of grant or thereafter (subject to
Section 10(e)), such additional terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan, as the
Committee shall determine, including terms requiring forfeiture of Awards in the event of termination of
empioyment by the Participant or violation of restrictive covenants, such as non-competition and non-
solicitation covenants. The Committee shall retain full power and discretion to accelerate, waive or modify, at
any time, any term or condition of an Award that is not mandatory under the Plan; provided, however, that the
Committee shall not have any discretion to accelerate, waive or modify any term or condition of an Award that
is intended to qualify as “performance-based compensation” for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Code if such
discretion would cause the Award not to so qualify. Except in cases in which the Committee is autherized to
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(b)

()

(d}

require other forms of consideration under the Plan, or to the extent other forms of consideration must be paid t
satisfy the requirements of the Delaware General Corporation Law, no consideration other than services may be
required for the grant (but not the exercise) of any Award.

Options. The Committee is authorized to grant Options to Participants on the following terms and conditions:

(i) Exercise Price. The exercise price per share of Stock purchasable under an Option shall be
determined by the Committee; provided that such exercise price shall be not less than the Fair Market
Value of a share of Stock on the date of grant of such Option except as provided under Section 7(a) hereof.

(ii) Time and Method of Exercise. The Commitiee shall determine the time or times at which or the
circumstances under which an Option may be exercised in whole or in part (including based on
achievement of performance goals and/or future service requirements), the methods by which such exercise
price may be paid or deemed to be paid, the form of such payment, including, without limitation, cash,
Steck or a combination thereof and the methods by or forms in which Stock will be delivered or deemed to
be delivered to Participants. In no event may an Option remain exercisable more than ten (10) years
following the date of grant. To the extent that the Committee permits the use of a “cashless exercise” to
exercise any Option, the Committee may designate a securities brokerage firm or firms through which all
such exercises must be effected. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, in no event
will the Plan permit a “refoad feature,” in which replacement stock options are issued to any Participant in
exchange for stock held by that Participant upon exercise of an Option.

(iii) 150s. The terms of any 1SO granted under the Plan shall comply in all respects with the
provisions of Section 422 of the Code. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, no term of the Plan
relating to [SOs (including any SAR in tandem therewith) shall be interpreted, amended or altered, nor
shall any discretion or authority granted under the Plan be exercised, so as to disqualify either the Plan or
any ISO under Section 422 of the Code.

Stock Appreciation Rights. The Committee is authorized to grant SARs to Participants on the following terms

and conditions:

(i}

(ii)

Right to Payment. A SAR shall confer on the Participant to whom it is granted a right to receive, upon
exercise thereof, the excess of

(1) the Fair Market Value of one share of Stock on the date of exercise over

(2) the grant price of the SAR as determined by the Committee; provided that such grant price shall be
not less than the Fair Market value of a share of stock on the date of grant of such SAR except as
provided under Section 7(a) hereof.

Other Terms. The Committee shall determine at the date of grant or thereafter, the time or times at
which and the circumstances under which a SAR may be exercised in whole or in part (including based
on achievement of performance goals and/or future service requirements), the method of exercise,
method of settlement, form of consideration payable in settiement, method by or forms in which Stock
will be delivered or deemed to be delivered to Participants, whether or not a SAR shall be in tandem or
in combination with any other Award, and any other terms and conditions of any SAR. SARs may be
either freestanding or in tandem with other Awards.

Restricted Stock. The Committee is authorized to grant Restricted Stock to Participants on the following terms
and conditions:

(1)

Grant and Restrictions. Restricted Stock shall be subject to such restrictions on twransferability, risk of
forfeiture and other restrictions, if any, as the Committee may impose, which restrictions may lapse
separately or in combination at such times, under such circumstances (including based on achievement
of performance goals and/or future service requirements}, in such installments or otherwise, as the
Committee may determine at the date of grant or thereafter. Except to the extent otherwise provided in
any Award agreement relating to the Restricted Stock, a Participant granted Restricted Stock shall have
all of the rights of a shareholder, including the right to vote the Restricted Stock and the right to receive
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(e}

(0

()

dividends thereon (subject to any mandatory reinvestment or other requirement imposed by the
Committee). During the restricted period applicable to the Restricted Stock, subject to Section 10(b)
below, the Restricted Stock may not be sold, transferred, pledged, hypothecated, margined or otherwise
encumbered by the Participant.

(i)  Forfeiture. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee, upon termination of employment during
the applicable restriction period, Restricted Stock that is at that time subject to restrictions shall be
forfeited and reacquired by the Company; provided that the Committee may provide, by rule or
regulation or in any Award agreement, or may determine in any individual case, that restrictions or
forfeiture conditions relating to Restricted Stock shall be waived in whole or in part in the event of
terminations resulting from specified causes, and the Committee may in other cases waive in whole or in
part the forfeiture of Restricted Stock.

(iii)  Certificates for Stock. Restricted Stock granted under the Plan may be evidenced in such manner as the
Committee shall determine. If certificates representing Restricted Stock are registered in the name of
the Participant, the Committee may require that such certificates bear an appropriate legend referring to
the terms, conditions and restrictions applicable to such Restricted Stock, that the Company retain
physical possession of the certificates, and that the Participant deliver a stock power to the Company,
endorsed in blank, relating to the Restricted Stock.

Restricted Stock Units. The Committee is authorized to grant Restricted Stock Units to Participants, which are
rights to receive Stock, cash, or a combination thereof at the end of a specified restricted period, subject to the
following terms and conditions:

(i) Award and Restrictions. Settlement of an Award of Restricted Stock Units shall occur upon expiration
of the restricted period specified for such Restricted Stock Units by the Committee (or, if permitted by
the Committee, at a later date selected by the Participant in accordance with rules and regulations
established by the Committee). In addition, Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to such restrictions
(which may include a risk of forfeiture) as the Committee may impose, which restrictions may lapse at
the expiration of the restricted period or at earlier specified times (including based on achievement of
performance goals and/or future service requirements), separately or in combination, in installments or
otherwise, as the Committee may determine. Restricted Stock Units may be satisfied by delivery of
Stock, cash equal to the Fair Market Value of the specified number of shares of Stock covered by the
Restricted Stock Units, or a combination thereof, as determined by the Committee at the date of grant or
thereafter.

(i) Forfeiture. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee, upon termination of employment during
the applicable restricted period or portion thereof to which forfeiture conditions apply (as provided in
the Award agreement evidencing the Restricted Stock Units), all Restricted Stock Units that are at that
time unvested or otherwise subject to restrictions shall be forfeited; provided that the Committee may
provide, by rule or regulation or in any Award agreement, or may determine in any individual case, that
restrictions or forfeiture conditions relating to Restricted Stock Units shall be waived in whole or in part
in the event of terminations resulting from specified causes, and the Committee may in other cases
waive in whole or in part the forfeiture of Restricted Stock Units.

(ii))  Dividend Equivalents. The Committee may grant Dividend Equivalents on the specified number of
shares of Stock covered by an Award of Restricted Stock Units.

Bonus Stock and Awards in Lieu of Obligations. The Committee is authorized to grant Stock as a bonus, or to
grant Stock or other Awards in lieu of obligations to pay cash or deliver other property under the Plan or under
other plans or compensatory arrangements, provided that, in the case of Participants subject to Section 16 of the
Exchange Act, the amount of such grants remains within the discretion of the Commitiee to the extent necessary
to ensure that acquisitions of Stock or other Awards are exempt from liability under Section 16(b) of the
Exchange Act. Stock or Awards granted hereunder shall be subject to such other terms as shall be determined
by the Committee,

Dividend Equivalents. The Committee is authorized to grant Dividend Equivalents to a Participant, entitling the
Participant to receive cash, Stock, other Awards, or other property equal in value to dividends paid with respect
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(h)

to a specified number of shares of Stock, or other periodic payments. Dividend Equivalents may be awarded on
a free-standing basis or in connection with another Award (other than an Option or SAR). The Committee may
provide that Dividend Equivalents shall be paid or distributed when accrued or shall be deemed to have been
reinvested in additional Stock, Awards, or other investment vehicles, and subject to such restrictions on
transferability and risks of forfeiture, as the Committee may specify. Any Award ol Dividend Equivalents shall
be structured in a manner that complies with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code.

Other Stock-Based Awards. The Committee is authorized, subject to limitations under applicable law, to grant
to Participants such other Awards that may be denominated or payable in, valued in whole or in part by
reference to, or otherwise based on, or related to. Stock, as deemed by the Commitiee to be consistent with the
purposes of the Plan, including, without limitation, rights convertible or exchangeable into Stock, purchase
rights for Stock, Awards with value and payment and/or settlement contingent upon performance of the
Company or any other factors designated by the Committee, and Awards valued by reference to the value of
Stock or the value of securities of or the performance of specified Subsidiaries. The Committee shall determine
the terms and conditions of such Awards. Stock delivered pursuant to an Award in the nature of a purchase right
granted under this Section 6(h) shall be purchased for such consideration, paid for at such times, by such
methods, and in such forms, including, without limitation, cash, Stock or a combination thereof, as the
Committee shall determine. Cash awards, as an element of or supplement to any other Award under the Plan,
may also be granted pursuant to this Section 6(h).

Certain Provisions Applicable to Awards

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d

()

Substitute Awards. The Committee may grant Awards under the Plan in substitution for stock and stock-based
awards held by employees, directors, consultants or advisors of another company (an “Acquired Company™) in
connection with a merger, consolidation or similar transaction involving such Acquired Company and the
Company or an Affiliate or the acquisition by the Company or an Affiliate of property or stock of the Acquired
Company. The Committee may direct that the substitute Awards be granted on such terms and conditions as the
Committee considers appropriate in the circumstances, including provisions that preserve the aggregate exercise
price and the aggregate option spread as of the closing date of any such transaction. Any substitute Awards
granted under the Plan shall not count against the share limitations set forth in Section 4(a) of the Plan.

Term of Awards. The term of each Award shall be for such period as may be determined by the Committee;
provided that in no event shall the term of any Option or SAR exceed a period of ten (10) years {or such shorter
term as may be required in respect of an 18O under Section 422 of the Code).

Form and Timing of Payment under Awards. Subject to the terms of the Plan and any applicable Award
agreement, payments to be made by the Company or a subsidiary upon the exercise of an Award (other than an
Option) or settlement of an Award (other than Restricted Stock) may be made in such forms as the Committee
shall determine, including, without limitation, cash, Stock. other Awards or other property.

Exemptions from Section 16(b) Liability. 1t is the intent of the Company that the grant of any Awards to a
Participant who is subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act shall be exempt from Section 16 pursuant to an
applicable exemption. Accordingly, if any provision of this Plan or any Award agreement does not comply
with the requirements of Rule 16b-3 as then applicable to any such transaction, such provision shall be
construed or deemed amended to the extent necessary to conform to the applicable requirements of Rule 16b-3
so that such Participant shall avoid liability under Section 16(b).

Non-Competition Agreement. Each Participant to whom an Award is granted under the Plan, who has not
already done so at the time of such grant, may be required to agree in writing as a condition to the granting of
such Award not to engage in conduct in direct competition with the Company or any of its subsidiaries for one
year (or such other time period provided for in such agreement) after the termination of such Participants
employment with the Company and its subsidiaries.

Limitation on Vesting of Certain Awards and Repricing.

(i) Vesting Limitations. Restricted Stock. Restricted Stock Units, and Other Stock-Based Awards. as
described in Section 6(d), 6(e) and 6(h) of the Plan, respectively. generally will vest over a minimum
period of three years or shall be subject to a performance-based vesting schedule, except in the event of
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(it)

a Participant’s death or disability, or in the event of a Change in Control or other special circumstances.
The foregoing notwithstanding,

(1) Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, and Other-Stock-Based Awards as to which either the
grant or vesting is based on the achievement of one or more performance conditions generally
will vest over a minimum period of one year except in the event of a Participant’s death or
disability, or in the event of a Change in Contrel, and

(2)  up to 5% of the shares of Stock authorized under the Plan may be granted as Restricted Stock,
Restricted Stock Units, or Other Stock-Based Awards without any minimum vesting
requirements. For purposes of this Section 7(f), vesting over a three-vear period or one-year
period will include periodic vesting over such period if the rate of such vesting is proportional
throughout such period.

Repricing. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Plan, the Committee will not,
without prior approval of the Company’s stockholders, permit any Option or SAR under the Plan to be
cancelled, substituted for, repriced or terminated and re-granted at an exercise price lower than its initial
exercise price at the date of grant.

Performance Awards

(a)

(&)

Performance Conditions. The right of a Participant to exercise or receive a grant or settlement of any Award,

and the timing thereof, may be subject to such performance conditions as may be specified by the Committee.
The Committee may use such business criteria and other measures of performance as it may deem appropriate
in establishing any performance conditions, and may exercise its discretion to reduce or increase the amounts
payabie under any Award subject to performance conditions, except as limited under Section 8(b) hereof in the
case of a Performance Award intended to qualify under Code Section 162(m).

()

Performance Goalis.

Possible Performance Goals. The Committee may make the grant or vesting of an Award subject to
performance criteria as set forth below. Performance goals may be absolute in their terms or measured
against or in relationship to other companies comparably, similarly or otherwise situated or other
external or internal measures and may include or exclude extraordinary charges, capital expenditures,
losses from discontinued operations, restatements and accounting changes and other unplanned special
charges such as restructuring expenses, acquisitions, acquisition expenses (including without limitation
expenses related to goodwill and other intangible assets), stock offerings, stock repurchases and strategic
loan loss provisions. Permissible performance goals include any one of the following or combination
thereof which may be applicable on a Company-wide basis and/or with respect to operating units,
divisions, Subsidiaries, acquired businesses, minority investments, partnerships, or joint ventures:

(1) General Financial Goals:

. Increasing the Company’s net sales;

. Achieving a target level of earnings (including gross earnings; earnings before certain
deductions, such as interest, taxes, depreciation, or amortization; earnings per share; or
adjusted cash earnings per share};

. Achteving a target level of income (including net income or income before consideration

of certain factors, such as overhead) or a target level of gross profits for the Company, an
Affiliate, or a business unit;

. Achieving a target return on the Company’s (or an Affiliate’s) capital, assets, or
stockholders’ equity;

. Maintaining or achieving a target level of appreciation in the price of shares of Stock;

. Increasing the Company’s {or an Affiliate’s) market share to a specified target level,

. Achieving or maintaining a Stock price that meets or excceds the performance of

specified stock market indices or other benchmarks over a specified period;
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f}

()

. Achieving a level of Stock price, earnings, or income performance that meets or exceeds
performance in comparable areas of peer companies over a specified period;

. Achieving specified reductions in costs; and
) Achieving a target level of cash flow.

(2) Operational Goals:

. Introducing one or more products into one or more new markets;

. Acquiring a prescribed number of new customers in a line of business;

. Achieving a prescribed level of productivity within a business unit;

. Completing specified projects within or below the applicable budget;

. Completing acquisitions of other businesses or integrating acquired businesses: and
. Expanding into other markets.

(3)  And any other criteria established by the Committee (but only if such other criteria are approved
by the Company’s stockholders).

Stockholder Approval of Performance Goals. The material terms of Performance Awards or other Awards that
are intended to qualify as “performance-based compensation™ under Section 162(m) of the Code shall be
disclosed to and approved by the Company’s stockholders prior to payment in conformity with the requiremen
under Section 162(m} of the Code; it being understood that performance goals set forth in Section 8(b) above
shall be disclosed to and reapproved by the Company’s stockholders no later than the first meeting of
stockholders that occurs in the fifth year following the year in which the Company’s stockholders previously
approved the performance goals (or such other time period as prescribed by Section 162(m) of the Code). The
rights of a Participant to receive payment under any Performance Award or other Award that is intended to
qualify as “performance-based compensation™ under Section 162(m) of the Code shali be expressly conditioned
on obtaining any such approval referred to in this subsection {c) to the extent required by Section 162(m) of the
Code.

Documentation of Performance Objectives. With respect to any Award, the applicable performance goals shall
be set forth in writing no later than ninety (90} days after commencement of the period to which the
performance goal(s) relate{s} {or, if sooner, before 25% of such period has elapsed) and at a time when
achievement of such performance goals is substantially uncertain. Such writing shall also include the period fo
measuring achievement of the performance goals, which shall be no greater than five consecutive years, as
established by the Committee. Once established by the Committee, the performance goals(s) may not be
changed to accelerate the settlement of an Award or to accelerate the lapse or removal of restrictions with
respect to an Award that otherwise would be due upon the attainment of the performance goals(s).

Committee Certification. Prior to settlement of any Award that is contingent on achievement of one or more
performance goals, the Committee shall certify in writing that the applicable performance goals(s) and any othe
material terms of the Award were in fact satisfied. For purposes of this Section 8(e), approved minutes of the
Committee shall be adequate written certification.

Negative Discretion. Except as expressly provided for in an employment agreement between the Company and
a Participant, the Committee may reduce, but may not increase, the number of Shares deliverable or the amount
payable under any Award after the applicable performance goals are satisfied.

Status of Section 8(b) Awards under Section 162(m) of the Code. It is the intent of the Company that
Performance Awards under Sections 8({b) hereof granted to persons who are designated by the Committee as
likely to be Covered Employees within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code and regulations thereunder
(including Regulation 1.162-27 and successor regulations thereto) shall, if so designated by the Committee,
constitute “‘performance-based compensation™ within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code and
regulations thereunder. Accordingly, the terms of Sections 8(b), {c}, {(d), (¢) and (). including the definiticns of
Covered Employee and other terms used therein, shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with Section
162(m} of the Code and regulations thereunder. The foregoing notwithstanding, because the Committee cannot
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determine with certainty whether a given Participant will be a Covered Employee with respect to a fiscal year
that has not yet been completed, the term Covered Employee as used herein shall mean only a person
designated by the Committee, at the time of grant of Performance Awards, as likely to be a Covered Employee
with respect to that fiscal year. If any provision of the Plan as in effect on the date of adoption or any
agreements relating to Performance Awards that are designated as intended 1o comply with Section 162(m) of
the Code does not comply or is inconsistent with the requirements of Section 162(m) of the Code or regulations
thereunder, such provision shall be construed or deemed amended to the extent necessary to conform to such
requirements.

Change in Control

(a)

(b)

Effect of “Change in Control”. In the event of a “Change in Control,” the following provisions shall apply
unless otherwise provided in an individual Award agreement:

(1) Any Award carrying a right to exercise that was not previously exercisable and vested shall become
fully exercisable and vested as of the time of the Change in Control and shall remain exercisable and
vested for the balance of the stated term of such Award without regard to any termination of
employment by the Participant, subject only to applicable restrictions set forth in Section 10(a) hereof’

(iiy  The restrictions, deferral of settlement, and forfeiture conditions applicable to any other Award granted
under the Plan shall lapse and such Awards shall be deemed fully vested as of the time of the Change in
Control, except to the extent of any waiver by the Participant and subject to applicable restrictions set
forth in Section 10(a) hereof; and

(iii)  With respect to any outstanding Award subject to achievement of performance goals and conditions
under the Plan, such performance goals and other conditions will be deemed to be met if and to the
extent so provided in the Award agreement relating to such Award.

Definition of “Change in Control”. For this purpose, a Change in Control shall mean the first of the following
to occur:

() any Person (as defined below) is or becomes the beneficial owner, as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the
Exchange Act, directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company (not including in the securities
beneficially owned by such Person any securities acquired directly from the Company or its Affiliates)
representing more than 50% of the combined voting power of the Company’s then cutstanding
securities; or

(i)  during any period of two consecutive years, individuals who at the beginning of such period constitute
the Board and any new director (other than a director designated by a Person who has entered into an
agreement with the Company to effect a transaction described in clause (i), (iii) or (iv) of this paragraph)
whose election by the Board or nomination for election by the Company’s stockbolders was approved
by a vote of a majority of the directors then still in office who either were directors at the beginning of
the period or whose election or nomination for election was previously so approved, cease for any
reason to constitute a majority thereof, or

(iii)  the stockholders of the Company approve a merger or consolidation of the Company with any other
corporation, which merger or consotidation is consummated, other than (A) a merger or consolidation
which would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto
continuing to represent (either by remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of
the surviving entity), in combination with newly acquired ownership acquired in such transaction by any
trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under an employee benefit plan of the Company or an
Affiliate, at least 50% of the combined voting power of the voting securities of the Company or such
surviving entity outstanding immediately after such merger or consolidation, or (B) a merger or
consolidation effected to implement a recapitalization of the Company (or similar transaction) in which
no Person acquires more than 50% of the combined voting power of the Company’s then outstanding
securities; or
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(iv)  the stockholders of the Company approve a plan of complete liquidation of the Company or an
agreement for the sale or disposition by the Company to any Person of all or substantially all the
Company’s assets, which liquidation, sale or disposition is consummated.

For purposes of this subsection 9(b), the term “Person” shall have the meaning given in Section 3(a¥9)
of the Exchange Act, as modified and used in Sections 13{d) and 14(d) thereof, however, a Person shall
not include (1) the Company or any of its Affiliates; (2) a trustee or other fiduciary holding securities
under an employee benefit plan of the Company or any of its Affiliates; (3) an underwriter temporarily
holding securities pursuant to an offering of such securities; or (4) a corporation owned, directly or
indirectly, by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the same proportion as their ownership
of stock of the Company,

Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, to the extent necessary to comply with the
requirements of Section 409A of the Code, no event shall constitute a “Change in Control” unless such
event also constitutes a change in the ownership or effective control of the corporation, or in the
ownership of a substantial portion of the assets of the corporation, as defined under Section 409A of the
Code and the regulations thereunder.

10. General Provisions

(a)

(b)

(<)

Compliance with Legal and Other Requirements. The Company may, to the extent deemed necessary or
advisable by the Committee, postpone the issuance or delivery of Stock or payment of other benefits under any
Award until completion of such registration or qualification of such Stock or other required action under any
federal or state law, rule or regulation, listing or other required action with respect to any stock exchange or
automated quotation system upon which the Stock or other securities of the Company are listed or quoted, or
compliance with any other obligation of the Company, as the Committee may consider appropriate, and may
require any Participant to make such representations, furnish such information and comply with or be subject to
such other conditions as it may consider appropriate in connection with the issuance or delivery of Stock or
payment of other benefits in compliance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations, listing requirements, or
other obligations.

Limits on Transferability; Beneficiaries. No Award or other right or interest of a Participant under the Plan
shall be pledged, hypothecated or otherwise encumbered or subject to any lien, obligation or liability of such
Participant to any party (other than the Company or a Subsidiary), or assigned or transferred by such Participant
otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution or to a Beneficiary upon the death of a Participant,
and such Awards or rights that may be exercisable shall be exercised during the lifetime of the Participant only
by the Participant or his or her guardian or legal representative, except that Awards and other rights (other than
ISOs and SARs in tandem therewith) may be transferred to one or more Beneficiaries or other transferees
during the lifetime of the Participant, and may be exercised by such transferees in accordance with the terms of
such Award, but only if and to the extent such transfers are permitted by the Committee pursuant to the express
terms of an Award agreement (subject to any terms and conditions which the Committee may impose thereon).
A Beneficiary, transferee, or other person claiming any rights under the Plan from or through any Participant
shall be subject to all terms and conditions of the Plan and any Award agreement applicable to such Participant,
except as otherwise determined by the Committee, and to any additional terms and conditions deemed necessa
or appropriate by the Committee.

Adjustments. In the event that any dividend or other distribution (whether in the form of cash, Stock, or other
property), recapitalization, forward or reverse split, reorganization. merger, consolidation, spin-off,
combination, repurchase, share exchange, liquidation, dissolution or other similar transaction or event affects
the Stock such that an adjustment is determined by the Committee to be appropriate under the Plan, then the
Coemmittee shall, in such manner as it may deem equitable, adjust any or all of

(1) the number and kind of shares of Stock which may be delivered in connection with Awards granted
thereafter,

(i1) the number and kind of shares of Stock by which the number of shares of Stock available for Awards
under Section 4 hereof and the annual per-person Award limitations are measured under Section 5
hereof.
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(iii)  the number and kind of shares of Stock subject to or deliverable in respect of outstanding Awards and

(iv)  the exercise price, grant price or purchase price relating to any Award and/or make provision for
payment of cash or other propery in respect of any outstanding Award. In addition, the Committee is
authorized to make adjustments in the terms and conditions of, and the criteria included in, Awards
(including Performance Awards and performance goals) in recognition of unusual or nonrecurring
events (including, without limitation, events described in the preceding sentence, as well as acquisitions
and dispositions of businesses and assets) affecting the Company, any Subsidiary or any business unit,
or the financial statements of the Company or any Subsidiary, or in response to changes in applicable
laws, regulations, accounting principles, tax rates and regulations or business conditions or in view of
the Committee’s assessment of the business strategy of the Company, any Subsidiary or business unit
thereof, performance of comparable organizations, economic and business conditions, personal
performance of a Participant, and any other circumstances deemed relevant; provided that no such
adjustment shall be authorized or made if and to the extent that such authority or the making of such
adjustment would cause Options, SARs or Performance Awards granted under Section 8(b) hereof to
Participants designated by the Committee as Covered Employees and intended to qualify as
“performance-based compensation™ under Code Section 162(m) and regulations thereunder to otherwise
fail to qualify as “performance-based compensation” under Code Section 162(m) and regulations
thereunder.

(d) Taxes. The Company and any Subsidiary is authorized to withhold from any Award granted, any payment
relating to an Award under the Plan, including from a distribution of Stock, or any payroll or other payment to a
Participant, amounts of withholding and other taxes due or potentially payable in connection with any
transaction involving an Award, and to take such other action as the Committee may deem advisable to enable
the Company and Participants to satisfy obligations for the payment of withholding taxes and other tax
obligations relating to any Award. This authority shall include authority to withhold or receive Stock or other
property and to make cash payments in respect thereof in satisfaction of a Participant's tax obligations, either on
a mandatory or elective basis in the discretion of the Committee.

(e) Amendment and Termination.

() The Board may amend, alter, suspend, discontinue or terminate the Plan or the Committee’s authority to
grant Awards under the Plan without the consent of stockholders or Participants, except that any
amendment or alteration to the Plan shall be subject to the approval of the Company’s stockholders not
later than the annual meeting next following such Board action if such shareholder approval is required by
any federal or state law or regulation or the rules of any stock exchange or automated quotation system on
which the Stock may then be listed or quoted, and the Board may otherwise, in its discretion, determine to
submit other such changes to the Plan to stockholders for approval; provided that, without the consent of an
affected Participant, no such Board action may materially and adversely affect the rights of such Participant
under any previously granted and outstanding Award. The Committec may waive any conditions or rights
under, or amend, alter, suspend, discontinue or terminate any Award theretofore granted and any Award
agreement relating thereto, except as otherwise provided in the Plan; provided that, without the consent of
an affected Participant, no such Committee action may materially and adversely affect the rights of such
Participant under such Award.

(i) Unless earlier terminated, the Plan shall terminate upon the earlier to occur of (A) the tenth anniversary of
Board approval of the Plan and (B) the date on which all shares of Stock avaiiable for issuance hereunder
have been issued as fully vested shares of Stock.

H Limitation on Rights Conferred under Plan. Neither the Plan nor any action
taken hereunder shall be construed as

(i) giving any Eligible Person or Participant the right to continue as an Eligible Person or Participant or in
the employ or service of the Company or a Subsidiary,

(i) interfering in any way with the right of the Company or a Subsidiary to terminate any Eligible Person’s
or Participant’s employment or service at any time,
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(g)

{h)

(1)

0

(k)

(0

(iti)  giving an Eligible Person or Participant any claim to be granted any Award under the Plan or to be
treated uniformly with other Participants and employees, or

(iv)  conferring on a Participant any of the rights of a shareholder of the Company unless and until the
Participant is duly issued or transferred shares of Stock in accordance with the terms of an Award.

Unfunded Status of Awards. The Plan is intended to constitute an “unfunded” plan for certain incentive awards
and other compensation. With respect to any payments not yet made to a Participant or his or her beneficiary, as
applicable, or obligation to deliver Stock pursuant to an Award, nothing contained in the Plan or any Award
shall give any such Participant or such beneficiary, as applicable, any rights that are greater than those of a
general creditor of the Company.

Nonexclusivity of the Plan. Neither the adoption of the Plan by the Board nor its submission to the stockholders
of the Company for approval shall be construed as creating any limitations on the power of the Board ot a
committee thereof to adopt such other incentive arrangements as it may deem desirable including incentive
arrangements and awards which do not qualify under Section 162(m) of the Code.

Payments in the Event of Forfeitures; Fractional Shares. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, in the
event of a forfeiture of an Award with respect to which a Participant paid cash or other consideration, the
Participant shall be repaid the amount of such cash or other consideration. No fractional shares of Stock shall be
issued or delivered pursuant to the Plan or any Award. The Committee shall determine whether cash, other
Awards or other property shall be issued or paid in lieu of such fractional shares or whether such fractional
shares or any rights thereto shall be forfeited or otherwise eliminated.

Governing Law. The validity, construction and effect of the Plan, any rules and regulations under the Plan, and
any Award agreement shall be determined in accordance with the Delaware General Corporation Law, without
giving effect to principles of conflicts of laws, and applicable federal law.

Awards under Preexisting Plans. Upon approval of the Plan by stockholders of the Company as required under
Section 10(1) hereof, no further awards shall be granted under the Preexisting Plans.

Plan Effective Date and Shareholder Approval. The Plan has been adopted by the Beard on February 28, 2008,
to be effective upon shareholder approval.
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